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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK
EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE
"STOCK EXCHANGE")

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to
accommodate small and mid-sized companies to which
a higher investment risk may be attached than other
companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective
investors should be aware of the potential risks of
investing in such companies and should make the decision
to invest only after due and careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally
small and mid-sized companies, there is a risk that
securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high
market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange and no assurance is given that
there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on
GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock
Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this report,
make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness
and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss
howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any
part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of China
Ocean Fishing Holdings Limited (the “Company”) collectively
and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars
given in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing
Rules”) for the purpose of giving information with regard to the
Company. The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries,
confirm that to the best of their knowledge and belief, the
information contained in this report is accurate and complete in
all material respects and not misleading or deceptive, and there
are no other matters the omission of which would make any
statement herein or this report misleading.
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Chairman’s Statement

ETRE®|E

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”), | hereby
present the Annual Report of the Company and its subsidiaries
(together, the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2019 (the
“Year") to our shareholders.

RESULTS

The Revenue for the Group decreased to approximately
HK$960,595,000 for the Year as compared to approximately
HK$1,294,944,000 in 2018. The Group’s aquatic products
business generated a total revenue of approximately
HK$905,142,000, the fishing operation also contributed to
approximately HK$53,811,000 to the Group's total revenue.
The Group has continued to develop its business relationships
with its business partners and potential partners in the PRC in
order to increase and explore new sources of income. The Group
continued to concentrate on aquatic products during the Year
and due to consumer’s health consciousness, the demand for
aquatic products increased.

The Group recorded an increase in gross profit to approximately
HK$80,992,000 in the Year as compared to approximately
HK$70,574,000 in 2018. The Group will continue to control the
material costs and explore new business opportunities, so as to
improve the gross profit of the Group. The gross profit margin,
excluding interest income received from the money lending
business, increased from 5.5% to 8.4% during the Year. Gross
profit margin for aquatic products were generally higher than
the electronic products. With the shift of trading to aquatic
products, there was a favourable impact on the Group’s gross
profit margin.

Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company for the Year
amounted to approximately HK$43,668,000 as compared to a
profit of approximately HK$57,054,000 in 2018. Included in the
profit attributable to equity holders were losses of approximately
HK$16,973,000 for the financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss held by the Group, which was not considered to
be the core business of the Group. The major component of the
Group's expenses were rent and rates, salaries and payroll, legal
and professional fee, depreciation and transportation expenses.
These major expenses components experienced increases during
the Year because ocean fishing business need to have more
employee, together with the addition to property, plant and
equipment, the depreciation expenses also increased.
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OPERATIONAL REVIEW
Supply chain management and related services

The supply chain management remains the main focus of the
Group. The Group is providing intermediate service between
suppliers and customers and it takes advantage of the business
networks and resources in order to assist small and medium-
sized enterprises in various industries to minimise the overall
operation cost. Owing to the solid financial background of
the Group and the great demand for supply chain service in
mainland China, the Group has established many strategic
partnerships with other supply chain companies, so as to
undertake the operation of purchase and sales based on the
services on import and export trade, logistic, customs clearance
and storage.

The Group expanded its supply chain management services of
aquatic products, the supply chain management and related
services has gathered its forward moving momentum again. The
Group also expanded its operation to vertically integrate with a
fishing subsidiary to secure the supply of aquatic products.

Money lending business

As at the end of the Year, unsecured loans totaling
HK$3,746,000 were granted to 2 individuals. Depending on
the financial strength of the various lenders, the Group charged
interest at rates which varied from 12% to 15% per annum.
The Group regularly assessed the recoverability risk of its loan
receivables portfolio to ensure that impairment loss, if any,
would be made in a timely manner. During the Year, the Group
generated interest income of approximately HK$1,642,000 from
its money lending business.
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Chairman’s Statement

ETRE®|E

PROSPECT

With the lead of the management team, the Company is
actively exploring business opportunities in other sectors
to diversify risks and broaden the sources of income of the
Company. The Company has adequate resources to continue
with its business operations, and will continue to focus on its
corporate objective to develop current businesses in order to
strengthen its competitiveness, integrate its capital resources
and contribute a maximum wealth to our equity holders.

With the stable growth of the Company’s supply chain
management business during the Year because of the aquatic
products business and new contracts negotiated with the
Company'’s customers, the Company will pay close attention to
its performance and future development. At the same time, the
management will continuously monitor and review the overall
operation and financial performance of the Group's businesses
so as to cope with the ever-changing business environment. The
management will continue to proactively seek other promising
investment and business opportunities to broaden the source
of income of the Group and enhance value to the shareholders
of the Company through investment and/or acquisitive business
or projects that have promising outlooks and prospects, and
with the Group’s new management team having extensive
experience in the marine fishing business, the Group will also
explore further opportunities in the marine fishing business.

Finally, on behalf of the Board, | would like to take this
opportunity to express my gratitude to all members of the Board
and staff for their dedication and contribution to the Group
and to those who have supported us. We will continue to make
our best efforts in developing our businesses to produce good
economic results and better return for our shareholders.

Liu Rongsheng
Chairman

Hong Kong, 24 June 2019
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Management Discussion and Analysis

OPERATIONAL REVIEW
Supply chain management and related services

The supply chain management service the main focus of the
Group. The Group is providing intermediate service between
suppliers and customers and it takes advantage of the business
networks and resources in order to assist small and medium-
sized enterprises in various industries to minimise the overall
operation cost. Owing to the solid financial background of
the Group and the great demand for supply chain service in
mainland China, the Group has established many strategic
partnerships with other supply chain companies, so as to
undertake the operation of purchase and sales based on the
services on import and export trade, logistic, customs clearance
and storage.

The Group expanded its supply chain management services of
aquatic products, the supply chain management and related
services has gathered its forward moving momentum again. The
Group also expanded its operation to vertically integrate with a
fishing subsidiary to secure the supply of aquatic products.

Money lending business

As at the end of the Year, unsecured loans totaling
HK$3,746,000 were granted to 2 individuals. Depending on
the financial strength of the various lenders, the Group charged
interest at rates which varied from 12% to 15% per annum.
The Group regularly assessed the recoverability risk of its loan
receivables portfolio to ensure that impairment loss, if any,
would be made in a timely manner. During the Year, the Group
generated interest income of approximately HK$1,642,000 from
its money lending business.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Revenue for the Group decreased to approximately
HK$960,595,000 for the Year as compared to approximately
HK$1,294,944,000 in 2018. The Group’s aquatic products
business generated a total revenue of approximately
HK$905,142,000, the fishing operation also contributed to
approximately HK$53,811,000 to the Group’s total revenue.
The Group has continued to develop its business relationships
with its business partners and potential partners in the PRC in
order to increase and explore new sources of income. The Group
continued to concentrate on aquatic products during the Year
and due to consumer’s health consciousness, the demand for
aquatic products increased.

EEENWE DM

& E DB

s EE R AHE R
HEREERFDEANRBNEFER-
AEERERERERETS ZHNFN
R ERRBEELER BBEITER
R/ R AR AR ERIE < BREAN
S B RO [E B BUS 5 DA K T 3 B 3
1 e 8 AR 75 B B KB SR - AN S B R KL b
B NRZY LB IERHBIER
EmEBREL OB S VR BEMERE
B AR TS EFARRB M E H &8 -

AEEEREARRBEERBEZBEKE
oo HEREEREERFCENREE
FES) o AEE T BRE EH I EHH
MBAREARS BERKEMNME-

MEEK

RAEER EHRBERQREBE
3,746,000t ER F2EERAL - REBEZE
RAZHBEND AEBRFFEI12%E
15%st B o AEETHTHEEKEZRE
& Z ] U [Bl & B - DA REAR B] B VE R E
BE(WE) RAFE AEEEEME
EBEEFBUALE1,642,0007T °

Bt 7% [ B8

AEBRAFEZRERLELHN B
960,595,000 T M =& — \F B A B
1,294,944,0007C c NEBIKE REBEE
#7785 #5905,142,000 T M AN S - TR ET
MAEREEBU A E B4 %S 53,811,000
Lo AEBEEEEREEPRERBHELE
ERHNEBBRASNEERES KA
R AEBMAARNFEEREFT THAKER
AR EBEZRBREES KERFKLEH-

RENSFBEIERARAR  2018-2019F K

9



10

Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEENWE DM

The Group recorded an increase in gross profit to approximately
HK$80,992,000 in the Year as compared to approximately
HK$70,574,000 in 2018. The Group will continue to control the
material costs and explore new business opportunities, so as to
improve the gross profit of the Group. The gross profit margin,
excluding interest income received from the money lending
business, increased from 5.5% to 8.4% during the Year. Gross
profit margin for aquatic products were generally higher than
the electronic products. With the shift of trading to aquatic
products, there was a favourable impact on the Group’s gross
profit margin.

Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company for the Year
amounted to approximately HK$43,668,000 as compared to a
profit of approximately HK$57,054,000 in 2018. Included in the
profit attributable to equity holders were losses of approximately
HK$16,973,000 for the financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss held by the Group, which was not considered to
be the core business of the Group. The major component of the
Group's expenses were rent and rates, salaries and payroll, legal
and professional fee, depreciation and transportation expenses.
These major expenses components experienced increases during
the Year because ocean fishing business need to have more
employee, together with the addition to property, plant and
equipment, the depreciation expenses also increased.

China Ocean Fishing Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018-2019

AEBRAFEHSEFIEMELEL
80,992,000 0 M —E— \NFH AEEE
70,574,0007T © 7 5 5] 6 4 48 12 11l JR A4 K B
AT REFEBHE UWIREAEENE
FleRIBREREBFENFE WAL
REBRAFEMNEFNEHS% EFAE
84% - KEMMEMNEX—REEFER
B BERZERKER HAEEHEF
REREFEE-

RFEEARRARERSE AEGE RN BB
#43,668,0007T © T == — )\ F &% M 475
#557,054,0007T ° R HEFF B A (L& T 21E
AEERENEREBEEATIRZER
BE (UTHBAREEZLER) 2EE
#9755 %16,973,0007T - AEE 2 T BRI IA
BEAHeRZM HFehIE EZEREE
BR TEREHER AFEZETIER
SIEBEM DHREFRBEBRTE
ZREE URABYE WMENEE E
9 2 N3 i o



Management Discussion and Analysis

Loans receivables

As at 31 March 2019, the Company has the following
outstanding loan transactions:

EEENWE DM

W E R
RZBE-NF=ZA=+—HB KXRFHMN
TAREMERR S :

Status
Name of Interest  at the date of
Loan No.  Date of Loan Borrower Loan Amount amount this report Collateral
HK$ 000 HK$000
EXEY ERAH B % EXEH FEeE REREEEMRR: B#R
(B¥FT) (B Tr)
1 10 April 2017 Fu Xiong* 1,246 31 Repayable on Unsecured
“E—+tFWA+THE 31 July 2019. EHF
ARZE-NE
tA=t—HEER-
2 11 May 2017 Lee Kim Wan 2,500 316 Repayable on Unsecured
“E—+tFRAT-H ZFHE 31 July 2019. EIR A

* for identification purposes only

The Board confirms that the above loans were entered in the
ordinary course of business and on normal commercial terms.
The Board considers that the terms of the above loans are in the
interests of the Company and the Shareholders as a whole.

All of the above loans were funded by internal resources of the
Group. To the best of the Directors’ knowledge, information
and belief, having made all reasonable enquiries, each of the
borrowers is a third party independent from the Company and
its connected persons.

AR_T-NE
tA=t—HEE-

* EREE

EEgRR LAEFRNIZERBREERE
AEEBBRERITL -EFERA LUE
RZERTEARRA RAIR 2 BB H &

ERE2HEFRGHAEERNLEREN -
REFLIFL A BEEREMMA FE
KA BRI ABLINARRREBE
AL2ZE=T-
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEENWE DM

Outlook

Despite the stable growth of the Company’s supply chain
management business during the Year because of the new
contracts being signed with the Company’s customers, the
Company will pay close attention to its performance and
future development. At the same time, the management will
continuously monitor and review the overall operation and
financial performance of the Group's businesses so as to cope
with the ever-changing business environment. The management
will continue to proactively seek other promising investment and
business opportunities to broaden the source of income of the
Group and enhance value to the shareholders of the Company
through investment and/or acquiring business or projects that
have promising outlooks and prospects, and with the Group’s
new management team having extensive experience in the
marine fishing business, the Group will also explore further
opportunities in the marine fishing business.

Liquidity, financial resources and capital structure

As at 31 March 2019, the Group had total assets of
approximately HK$1,693,051,000 (31 March 2018:
approximately HK$1,299,849,000), including bank balances and
cash equivalent of approximately HK$14,326,000 (31 March
2018: approximately HK$19,829,000).

As at 31 March 2019, there was general banking facilities
granted to a subsidiary of the Group of RMB26,000,000 (31
March 2018: RMB16,000,000) of which RMB24,900,000 (31
March 2018: RMB16,000,000) was utilised. Excluding the
above banking facilities, during the Year, the Group financed
its operation mainly with its own working capital and proceeds
from the issue of placing/subscription shares.

As at 31 March 2019, the gearing ratio (defined as the
ratio between total bank borrowings and total assets)
was approximately 1.71% (31 March 2018: 1.54%). The
Group's total bank borrowings as at 31 March 2019 was
HK$28,953,000 (31 March 2018: HK$20,000,000).

China Ocean Fishing Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018-2019
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Subscription of new shares

On 27 June 2018, the Company obtained the grant of a
specific mandate from the shareholders to issue 670 million
subscription shares to four subscribers at a subscription
price of HK$0.45 per subscription share, representing a total
subscription proceed of HK$301.5 million. The estimated net
proceeds from the subscription after deduction of expenses,
will amount to approximately HK$290 million. The proceeds
are currently being applied, as follows, (i) approximately
13.79% (i.e. approximately HK$40 million) to be used for the
development of the aquiculture business in Cambodia; (ii)
approximately 31.03% (i.e. approximately HK$90 million) to
development of aquatic trading business; (iii) approximately
6.90% (i.e. approximately HK$20 million) for the construction
of 1,000 Tons cold storage facilities in Mozambique to facilitate
the storage before exporting the aquatic products to PRC; (iv)
approximately 6.90% (i.e. approximately HK$20 million) for the
construction of pier in Mozambique; (v) approximately 3.45%
(i.e. approximately HK$10 million) for the construction of
processing plant of fishing-related business in Mozambique; (vi)
approximately 34.48% (i.e. approximately HK$100 million) for
the development of fishing business including the construction
of steel fishing vessels; and (vii) approximately 3.45% (i.e.
approximately HK$10 million) to the general working capital of
the Group.

Please refer to the Company’s announcements dated 27
June 2018 and the Company’s circular dated 8 June 2018
respectively for further details.

Exposure to fluctuations in exchange rates and related
hedges

Most of the transactions of the Group are denominated in Hong
Kong Dollar (“HKD") and Renminbi (“RMB"). The Group adopts
a conservative treasury policy with most of the bank deposits
being kept in HKD, or in the local currencies of the operating
subsidiaries to minimise exposure to foreign exchange risks.
As at 31 March 2019, the Group had no foreign exchange
contracts, interests or currency swaps or other financial
derivatives for hedging purposes.
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EEENWKR DN

Significant investment, material acquisitions and
disposal of subsidiaries and affiliated companies

As at 31 March 2019, the Group only held minimal investments
in securities in Hong Kong (collectively, the “Investments”)
(2018: approximately HK$50,701,000), representing an
investment portfolio of 1 (2018: 1) listed securities in Hong
Kong. The Group recorded a realised loss on disposal of
approximately HK$16,973,000 (2018: unrealised gain of
HK$26,700,000 and realised gain of approximately HK$919,000
respectively) during the Year. The realised loss on disposal was
mainly caused by the changes in market expectation and market
performance from the PRC market and the global economy.

Save as disclosed above, the Group had no significant
investments, material acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries and
affiliated companies during the Year.

Charge on group assets

As at 31 March 2019, the Group's share investment was held at
a securities margin account maintained with a stockbroker for
margin facilities granted. The margin facilities was not utilized
by the Group as at 31 March 2019.

Contingent liabilities

Save as disclosed above, the Group had no contingent liability as
at 31 March 2019 (31 March 2018: Nil).

Employees and remuneration policies

As at 31 March 2019, the Group had 127 (31 March 2018: 119)
employees including the Directors. Total staff costs (excluding
Directors’ emoluments) amounted to approximately HK$13.7
million for the Year, as compared to approximately HK$10.8
million in 2018. Remuneration is determined by reference
to market terms and the performance, qualification and
experience of individual employee. Year-end bonus based on
individual performance will be paid to employees as recognition
of and reward for their contributions. Other benefits include
contributions to statutory mandatory provident fund scheme
to its employees in Hong Kong and basic insurance for the
elderly, basic medical insurance, work injury insurance and
unemployment insurance to its employees in the PRC.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Future plans for material investments or capital assets
and their expected sources of funding in the coming
year

Save as disclosed in the “Outlook” above, the Group has no
future plans for material investments or capital assets in the
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Contractual arrangements

One of the business segments under development by the Group
is the marine fishing business which would be operated under
the contractual arrangement. This business was acquired by
the Group in December 2016. The following graph shows the
structure of the Group conducting this business as at 31 March
2019:
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Under this business, the operators are required to obtain
the license (i.e. Far Ocean Fishing Enterprise issued by the
Agricultural Department ( BE IR F/H¥M%)) to conduct
its business. Jin Yu Tang is the operating subsidiary of the
business holding the License. If Shenzhen Yuheng Trade
Management Co., Ltd (“Shenzhen Yuheng”) directly interested
in the equity interest in Jin Yu Tang, there will be a change
in enterprise nature of Jin Yu Tang and that the benefits and
tax concessions from the fishing operations that Jin Yu Tang is
eligible to participate will be restricted. Therefore the existing
fishing operations that Jin Yu Tang could undertake beyond the
permitted scope mentioned above will probably be affected.

Therefore in order to obtain the effective control on Jin Yu Tang
and the right to enjoy the economic benefits in the business
and assets of Jin Yu Tang, Shenzhen Yuheng has entered
into a set of control agreements (the “Control Agreements”)
with Jin Yu Tang and the existing shareholder which remains
effective since 1 December 2016. The Control Agreements
comprise (a) Loan Agreement; (b) Share Charge Agreement;
(c) Exclusive Purchase Agreement; (d) Shareholder’'s Power of
Attorney Agreement; (e) Cooperation Framework Agreement; (f)
Technical Support Service Agreement; and (g) Technical Research
Service Agreement. Set out below are the major terms and
other relevant information of the Control Agreements executed
amongst Shenzhen Yuheng, Jin Yu Tang and its respective
shareholder and directors:

(a) Loan Agreement

Pursuant to the loan agreement executed on 1 December
2016 (the “Loan Agreement”), an interest free loan of
RMB15 million will be provided by Shenzhen Yuheng to
the existing shareholder of Jin Yu Tang, with no fixed
term of repayment. The loan is secured by a charge of the
shareholdings in Jin Yu Tang.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

(b) Share Charge Agreement

(c)

Pursuant to the share charge executed on 1 December
2016 (the “Share Charge Agreement”), the existing
shareholder of Jin Yu Tang pledged his entire equity
interests in Jin Yu Tang to Shenzhen Yuheng, he will
convey to Shenzhen Yuheng all his interests in the dividend
and distributions for securing the repayment obligations of
the shareholders of Jin Yu Tang under the loan agreement.

Pursuant to the PRC rules, in the event that Jin Yu Tang
goes into liquidation, Shenzhen Yuheng as the beneficial
owner of the charged share interest has the priority in
recovering the repayment of the loan.

Exclusive Purchase Agreement

For the purposes of obtaining the rights to purchase all
(or part) of the equity interest and/or asset in Jin Yu Tang,
Shenzhen Yuheng entered into an exclusive purchase
agreement on 1 December 2016 (the “Exclusive Purchase
Agreement”) with the shareholder of Jin Yu Tang, pursuant
to which, an irrevocable and exclusive right was granted
by the shareholder to Shenzhen Yuheng (or its nominee)
to purchase all (or part) of the shareholders’ equity interest
in Jin Yu Tang. The consideration will be determined based
on the minimum amount of consideration as permissible
under the then PRC laws and regulations or, in case of
equity interest, the value of the registered capital.

Pursuant to the Exclusive Purchase Agreement, unless
with a prior written consent from Shenzhen Yuheng, the
shareholder of Jin Yu Tang would not vote in favour of
any resolutions in relation to any decision on the sale,
assignment, transfer or any other method of dealing with
the equity interest of Jin Yu Tang.
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(d) Shareholder’s Power of Attorney Agreement

(e)

Pursuant to the shareholder’s power of attorney
agreement executed on 1 December 2016 (the “Power
of Attorney Agreement”), Jin Yu Tang shall appoint the
person(s) nominated by Shenzhen Yuheng as directors to
the board of directors of Jin Yu Tang thereby creating an
effective control on the board of directors of Jin Yu Tang.
In addition, Shenzhen Yuheng has the right to remove
directors, the general manager and legal representatives of
each of Jin Yu Tang and replace them with its nominees as
it thinks fit.

The shareholder of Jin Yu Tang undertook to Shenzhen
Yuheng that as the shareholder of Jin Yu Tang, he
irrevocably assigned his voting rights to Shenzhen Yuheng
(or such other person as directed by Shenzhen Yuheng)
and to vote in accordance with the directions of Shenzhen
Yuheng on any resolution proposed at a general meeting
of the shareholder of Jin Yu Tang.

In addition, Shenzhen Yuheng is authorised to exercise the
shareholders’ rights in Jin Yu Tang including exercise of
voting rights, rights to nominate directors of Jin Yu Tang,
the rights to sell or transfer all or any of their respective
shareholding in Jin Yu Tang.

Cooperative Framework Agreement

Pursuant to the exclusive cooperative framework
agreement executed on 1 December 2016 (the
“Cooperative Framework Agreement”), Shenzhen Yuheng
will set up a management committee with Jin Yu Tang, and
both parties will occupy two positions. Shenzhen Yuheng
will provide technical research and technical support
services for deepwater aquatic products to Jin Yu Tang, in
return for service fees. The proportion of service fees will
eventually be determined by the management committee
in accordance with the agreed terms of the Cooperative
Framework Agreement. Shenzhen Yuheng may, at its sole
discretion, terminate Cooperative Framework Agreement
upon giving one month’s written notice in advance to Jin
Yu Tang at any time.
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Technical Support Service Agreement

Pursuant to the technical support service agreement
executed on 1 December 2016 (the “Technical Support
Service Agreement”), Jin Yu Tang will receive technical
support services from Shenzhen Yuheng, which includes:
business system and management technology, business
technology, customer service technology, services
permitted by PRC laws, etc. Jin Yu Tang shall pay technical
fee and any other costs arising from technical fee on a
monthly basis during the terms of the Agreement. The fee
is 100% of the monthly income, and the total monthly fee
should not exceed 100% of the monthly income.

Technical Research Service Agreement

Pursuant to the technical research service agreement
executed on 1 December 2016 (the “Technical Research
Service Agreement”), Jin Yu Tang will obtain technological
research and development services from Shenzhen Yuheng
to assist Jin Yu Tang in developing the application software
required for the operation of fishing business, and will pay
monthly service fee to Shenzhen Yuheng. The service fee
is based on a certain proportion of the revenue from the
service of Jin Yu Tang.

In accordance with the terms of the Control Agreements,
Shenzhen Yuheng is able to govern the financial and operating
policies of Jin Yu Tang and Shenzhen Yuheng can enjoy all of the
economic benefits of Jin Yu Tang because:

(i)

(ii)

(ii)

the board of directors of Jin Yu Tang is controlled by
Shenzhen Yuheng pursuant to the shareholder’s Power of
Attorney Agreement;

the general meeting of Jin Yu Tang is controlled by
Shenzhen Yuheng pursuant to the shareholders’ Power of
Attorney Agreement; and

all the benefits arising from the entire equity interests in Jin
Yu Tang is entirely conveyed to Shenzhen Yuheng pursuant
to the Share Charge Agreement, Cooperative Framework
Agreement and Loan Agreement.

The Group believes that, notwithstanding the lack of equity
ownership, the Control Agreements give the Group control over
Jin Yu Tang in substance. Accordingly, Jin Yu Tang is accounted
for as a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019, the business of marine
fishing is not yet commenced by Jin Yu Tang and it is principally
engaged in supply chain management services business.

Risk of the contractual arrangement

There is inherited risk of the contractual arrangement. The
Group has no equity ownership interest in Jin Yu Tang and
it relies on contractual arrangements to control and operate
the business of Jin Yu Tang under the Control Agreements.
However such contractual arrangements may not be as effective
in providing control over Jin Yu Tang as compared with direct
ownership since (i) there is no assurance that the Control
Agreements could comply with future changes in the regulatory
requirements in the PRC; (ii) these contractual arrangements will
not preserve Shenzhen Yuheng's control in the occurrence of
certain events which may be outside the control of Jin Yu Tang
and its respective shareholders; and (iii) potential conflicts of
interest between the Group and Jin Yu Tang and its respective
shareholders exists and whether the shareholders and directors
of Jin Yu Tang will act completely in the interest of the Group
is outside the control of the Group. Any of the above may
materially and adversely affect the validity, effectiveness and
enforceability of the control of the Group and Shenzhen Yuheng
on Jin Yu Tang and its respective shareholders. Any inability,
or limitation on Shenzhen Yuheng's ability to enforce the
contractual arrangements with the Jin Yu Tang and its respective
shareholders or to take any legal remedies under the PRC law
could disrupt the business and have a material adverse effect
on the financial position, results of operations and prospects
of this business. Whether such conflicts of interest could be
effectively managed or otherwise be resolved in the favour of
the Group and its subsidiaries will be crucial to the effectiveness
of contractual arrangements. In the event the disagreement
and dispute cannot be resolved under friendly negotiation and
proceed to arbitration, there is no guarantee that the final
decision under arbitration would be in favour of the Group.
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In order to mitigate the risk of the contractual arrangement,
the Group has since its acquisition of this business in December
2016 implemented the following measures to ensure the sound
and effective operation of the Control Agreements:

— the Board has nominated its representatives to
Shenzhen Yuheng and Jin Yu Tang to ensure that there
is a continuous and effective control over Jin Yu Tang's
operation and management. The Group has also obtained
the directors’ undertaking as detailed above;

—  suitable management has been assigned to Jin Yu Tang
to report regularly to the Board for review in relation to
major issues arising from implementation of the Control
Agreements;

—  suitable reporting system in line with the Group’s financial
reporting practice in the PRC have also been in place to
ensure that the Group would be full access and control
over the book and record of Jin Yu Tang and to obtain
periodic financial information to ensure proper financial
record are kept;

—  the proper record system for shareholders’ meeting and
directors’ meeting of Jin Yu Tang has worked effectively
and will continue to be in place, and a copy of these notice
for meeting and resolution will also be passed to Shenzhen
Yuheng and the Group before and after the meeting to
keep the Group informed on all important development of
Jin Yu Tang; and

—  the Group has worked closely and will continue to work
closely with the PRC legal advisors and the management of
the Jin Yu Tang on the update of rules and regulations of
the PRC to monitor the continue compliance of the rules
and regulations by Jin Yu Tang as to its conduct of business
and contractual arrangement.

In the event if the PRC government further release the
restriction on far ocean fishing operation to be undertaken by
foreign company, the Group will as soon as possible exercise
the exclusive right under the Control Agreements to acquire the
direct equity interest in Jin Yu Tang and unwind the contractual
structure.
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Biographies of Directors and Company Secretary

ESRPTANEBEE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Liu Rongsheng, aged 57, is an executive Director,
chairman, the chief executive officer of the Company and
the chairman of the Nomination Committee. He completed a
professional programme in International Economics and Trading
from Beijing Training University of Economics and Technology*
(4 R BE R T E 26T ) , the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC") in 1998. He also holds a qualification as a senior
economist in the PRC. Mr. Liu has over 25 years of experience
in import and export trading, logistics, corporate strategic
management, project management and finance business. He
is an executive director and the chief executive officer of Royal
Century Resources Holdings Limited, a company listed on the
GEM (stock code: 8125).

Mr. Fan Guocheng, aged 52, is an executive Director. He
graduated from Guangzhou Financial Higher Special School
(currently known as Guangdong University of Finance and
Economics) in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") in
1988. He is an accountant and holds an accounting qualification
certificate issued by Shenzhen Finance Bureau. Mr. Fan has
accumulated nearly 30 years of extensive experience in financial
management and has held various positions relating to financial
management, accounting and financial accounting in many
different industries in Shenzhen.

Ms. Wei Qing, aged 35, is an executive Director. She completed
a professional programme in Law from Shenzhen University
in 2010, Ms. Wei worked in #IJIH KB, the Shenzhen
Water Authority*, from 2010 to 2013 and also acted as a vice
chairman of Shenzhen Hydraulic Engineering Society in 2013
and was responsible for its day-to-day administration work. In
September 2013, Ms. Wei established three trading companies
which are principally engaged in import and export trading and
retail services, such as electronic products, wines from Europe
and the United States, and health care and cosmetics products
from Japan. She has extensive management experience.
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Biographies of Directors and Company Secretary

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Yang Yong, aged 41, is a non-executive Director. He
obtained a master’s degree in economics from Nankai University,
majoring in finance. He is currently the general manager
of COFCO Capital (Hong Kong) Co., Ltd. and chairman of
Shenzhen Mingcheng Financial Services Co., Ltd. (a subsidiary
of COFCO). Before joining COFCO in April 2013, Mr. Yang has
worked in China Construction Bank and CCB International
(Holdings) Limited for many years. He has also served as
Assistant General Manager of COFCO Trust Co., Ltd. and
General Manager of Shenzhen Mingcheng Financial Services
Co., Ltd. and other positions. Mr. Yang also has extensive
experience in the financial and investment market.

Mr. Lui Chun Pong, aged 50, is a non-executive Director.
He obtained a Bachelor of Arts degree from the University
of Hong Kong, a Master of Laws degree from the Chinese
University of Hong Kong, a Master of Accountancy degree from
Charles Sturt University in Australia and an Executive Master
of Business Administration degree from the City University
of Hong Kong. Mr. Lui is a fellow member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants and Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants, an associate member of the
Taxation Institute of the Hong Kong and a Certified Tax Advisor
in Hong Kong. He is also an associate member of the Institute
of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators and the Hong Kong
Institute of Chartered Secretaries. Mr. Lui held senior positions
at a number of Hong Kong companies listed on the main board
of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited with over 27
years of experience in financing and accounting, fund raising,
mergers and acquisitions, company flotations, and real estate
business development, including property development and
investment in the People’s Republic of China, Hong Kong and
overseas countries. Mr. Lui also serves the community through
his participation in promoting sports and youth and student’
affairs in Hong Kong. Mr. Lui was a baseball coach and was
appointed as a team secretary and a deputy delegate leader of
the Hong Kong Women's Baseball Team during the Women's
Baseball World Cup in 2006 and in 2014. In respect of public
services rendered to youth and students’ affairs, Mr. Lui is a
leader of various leadership mentoring programs in Hong Kong
United Youth Association, Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and Hong Kong Professionals and Senior Executives
Association. Mr. Lui was a director of Hong Kong United Youth
Association in 2014/2015 and a member of the Budget Proposal
2017-18 Subcommittee of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Mr. Lui is currently a member of the Hong
Kong Student Affairs Sub-committee of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants.
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Biographies of Directors and Company Secretary

ESRPTANEBEE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Pang Pui Hung, Paton, aged 50, is an independent non-
executive Director, chairman of each of the Audit Committee
and Remuneration Committee and a member of the Nomination
Committee. He obtained a master degree in Professional
Accounting from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University. He has
over 25 years of experience in the finance and accounting fields
and has been a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, the Taxation Institute of Hong
Kong and Association of International Accountants. Mr. Pang is
also registered as Certified Tax Advisor in Hong Kong.

Mr. Pang has been engaged in provision of consultancy services
in accounting and financial management. He worked for
accounting firms and was responsible for the audits of a number
of new listing applicants and companies listed on the Stock
Exchange. Mr. Pang has been engaging in senior financial and
company secretarial positions in several companies of which
shares are listed on the Stock Exchange since June 2014.

Mr. Lam Man Hing, aged 50, is an independent non-
executive Director and member of the Audit Committee. He
obtained a master’s degree in business management from
Jinan University. He is currently the chairman of Hong Kong
Industrial & Commercial Association Limited; the managing
director of ¥ m /7 BIBR (%A% ) &£ E B R 2 & Xinhua Nanfang
International (Holding) Co., Ltd.*; the honorary president of
Chongqging Chaozhou Overseas Friendship Association and
Chongging Chaoshan Chamber of Commerce. He has extensive
management experience.

Mr. Li Cao, aged 32, is an independent non-executive Director
and member of each of the Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee. He graduated from
China Youth University of Political Studies with a bachelor’s
degree in international trade and is currently studying at the
Graduate School of Renmin University of China. Mr. Li has been
employed in a managerial capacity at various corporations in the
PRC since 2009, and has considerable management experience.
He is currently the office director of Shenzhen City Technology
and Innovative Enterprises Service Centre* (CRIIITHEL Al %
fR7% A 05) , and the chief secretary of each of the Shenzhen
Ocean Society and Shenzhen Ocean Industry Association.
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Biographies of Directors and Company Secretary

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Lam Chi Ming, Francis, aged 60, has over 30 years of
experience in the field of financial and general management.
Mr. Lam is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants. Mr. Lam obtained a Bachelor’'s degree
of Arts in Economics and Social Studies from the University
of Manchester. Mr. Lam was the company secretary and/or
financial controller of several companies of which shares are
listed on the Stock Exchange since October 1991 and had
extensive working experience in an international accounting
firm.
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Report of the Directors

EETHSE

The Directors of the Company hereby present the annual report
and the audited financial statements of the Group for the Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
Details of the principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out in
note 42 to the consolidated financial statements.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

An analysis of the Group’s revenue and contribution to results
by reporting segments and geographical areas of operations
for the Year is set out in note 5 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group's results for the Year are set out in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income in this annual report on
pages 69 and 70.

The board of Directors (the “Board”) did not recommend the
payment of any dividend for the Year.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the business of the Group as well as discussion
and analysis of the Group’s performance during the Year and
the material factors underlying its financial performance and
financial position can be found in the “Chairman’s Statement”
and “Management Discussion and Analysis” set out on
pages 6 to 8 and pages 9 to 21 respectively. Details of the
Company’s share option scheme are provided on page 13 of
the “Management Discussion and Analysis”. An analysis of the
Group’s financial risk management objectives and policies is
provided in note 37 to the consolidated financial statements.
An indication of likely future development in the Company’s
business is set out on page 12 of the “Management Discussion
and Analysis”. No important event affecting the Group has
occurred since the end of the Year.
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SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The following is a summary of the published result of the
Group for each of the last five financial years and of the assets,
liabilities and non-controlling interests of the Group as at 31

March 2019, 2018, 2017, 2016 and 2015.
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Consolidated results mEXE
Year ended 31 March
BZ=A=1-HLEE
(In HK$000) 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
(L BEFTEEN) “E-NE ZE-N\F ZE+tF ZE-RF CZEZ-I1F
Continuing operation FREEXH
Revenue Yz 960,595 1,294,944 121,667 1,662,929 1,632,858
Profit/(loss) before taxation from BT EKR
continuing operation BHRARA (BB) 47,079 74,434 (82,862)  (197,018) (59,849)
Income tax expenses PR (503) (15,151) (1,466) (1,622) -
Discontinued operations BRILEER
Profit/(loss) for the year from BRILERER
discontinued operations w5/ (B8) = = 17,129 (7,226) (1,426)
Profit/(loss) for the year RN/ (BE) 46,576 59,283 (67,199)  (205,866) (61,275)
Attributable to: MTNATEM:
Equity holders of the Company AARREFEA 43,668 57,054 (67,199) (205,532) (59,185)
Non-controlling interests JErER s 2,908 2,229 = (334) (2,090)
46,576 59,283 (67,199) (205,866) (61,275)
Consolidated assets and liabilities and non-controlling GEEEREBNRFERER
interests
As at 31 March
R=A=+-H
(In HK$000) 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
(L EEFBEN) “B-hE —F-\F —FT—+F ZE-F —EF-nf
Total assets BEE 1,693,051 1,299,849 326,143 344,763 819,881
Total liabilities wefE (400,924) (360,731) (50,500) (17,002) (341,791)
Non-controlling interests VR & (59,974) (46,367) = = 2,251
1,232,153 892,751 275,643 327,761 480,341

HESEREIERARAT 2018-2019%F 3 27



28

Report of the Directors

EETHSE

Environmental Policies and Performance

The Group is committed to achieving environmental
sustainability. The Group’s commitment to protect the
environment is well reflected by the continuous efforts in
promoting green measures and awareness in our daily business
operations. The Group’s business is subject to national,
provincial and local environmental laws and regulations of the
PRC. During the Year, so far as the Directors are aware, there
were no material breach of applicable environmental laws and
regulations of the PRC that have a significant adverse impact on
the business and operations of the Group.

The Group also encourages environmental protection and
promote awareness towards environmental protection to the
employees. The Group adheres to the principle of recycling and
reducing. It implements green office practices such as double-
sided printing and copying, setting up recycling bins, promoting
using recycled paper and reducing energy consumption by
switching off idle lightings and electrical appliance.

The Group endeavours to comply with the relevant laws and
regulations regarding environmental protection and adopt
effective measures to achieve efficient use of resources,
waste reduction and energy saving. The Group will review its
environmental practices from time to time and will consider
implementing further eco-friendly measures and practices in the
operation of the Group's businesses to move towards enhancing
environmental sustainability.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

The Group recognises the importance of compliance with
regulatory requirements and the risk of non-compliance with
such requirements could lead to the suspension or termination
of operating licences. The Group has been allocating system and
staff resources to ensure ongoing compliance with rules and
regulations and to maintain cordial working relationships with
regulators effectively through effective communications. For
the Year, the Group has complied, to the best of the directors’
knowledge, with all relevant rules and regulations that have a
significant impact on the Company.

China Ocean Fishing Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018-2019
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Key Relationships with Employees, Customers and
Suppliers

Being people-oriented, the Group ensures all staff are
reasonable remunerated and also continues to improve and
regularly review and update its policies on remuneration and
benefits, training, occupational health and safety.

The Group maintains a good relationship with its customers. A
customer complaint handling mechanism is in place to receive,
analyse and study complaints and make recommendations on
remedies with the aim of improving service quality.

The Group is in good relationship with its suppliers and conducts
a fair and strict appraisal of its suppliers on an annual basis.

RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES RELATING TO THE
GROUP’S BUSINESS

The Group’s financial condition, results of operations, and
business prospects may be affected by a number of risks and
uncertainties directly or indirectly pertaining to the Group’s
businesses. The followings are the key risks and uncertainties
identified by the Group. There may be other risks and
uncertainties in addition to those shown below which are not
known to the Group or which may not be material now but
could turn out to be material in the future.

Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that deteriorates profitability or affects
ability to meet business objectives arising from the movement
in market prices. The management of the Group manages and
monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Operational Risk

Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or
failed internal processes, people and systems or from external
events.

Responsibility for managing operational risks basically rests
with every function at divisional and departmental levels. Key
functions in the Group are guided by their standard operating
procedures, limits of authority and reporting framework. The
management will identify and assess key operational exposures
regularly so that appropriate risk response can be taken.
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Report of the Directors

EEEHE

Investment Risk

Investment risk can be defined as the likelihood of occurrence
of losses relative to the expected return on any particular
investment. Key concern of investment framework will be
balancing risk and return across different investments, and
thus risk assessment is a core aspect of the investment decision
process. Proper authorisation system has been set up and
detailed analysis will be made before approving investments.
Regular updates on the progress of the investments of the
Group would be submitted to the Board.

Manpower and Retention Risk

The Group may face the risk of not being able to attract
and retain key personnel and talents with appropriate and
required skills, experience and competence which would meet
the business objectives of the Group. The Group will provide
attractive remuneration package to suitable candidates and
personnel.

Financial Risk

The Group’s also faces financial risks including interest rate risk,
foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. Details of
these financial risks are set out in note 37 to the consolidated
financial statements.

SUBSIDIARIES

Details (including the principal activities) of the Company’s
subsidiaries as at 31 March 2019 are set out in note 42 to the
consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment
of the Group during the Year are set out in note 13 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND EQUITY-LINKED
AGREEMENT

Details of movements in the Company’s issued share capital are
set out in note 26 to the consolidated financial statements.

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Share Option
Scheme” and “Convertible Bonds”, no equity-linked
agreements were entered into during the Year or subsisted at
the end of the Year.
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ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES

Save as disclosed in Management Discussion and Analysis, the
Group did not have any material acquisitions or disposals of
subsidiaries and investments during the Year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to
the existing shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”).

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Except for subscription of new shares disclosed in the
“Management Discussion and Analysis”, the Company did not
redeem any of its listed shares, nor did the Company or any of
its subsidiaries purchase or sell any such shares during the Year.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during the Year are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on pages 73 to 74 of the annual
report and in note 41 to the consolidated financial statements.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS

Details of movements in the convertible bonds of the Company
during the year are set out in note 26 to the consolidated
financial statement.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 March 2019, no reserves of the Company were
available for cash distribution and/or distribution in specie
(2018: Nil), as computed in accordance with the Companies Act
1981 of Bermuda. In addition, the Company's share premium
account had a balance of approximately HK$1,378,822,000 as
at 31 March 2019 (2018: approximately HK$947,369,000).
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Year, revenue attributable to the Group’s five largest
customers accounted for 94% (2018: 97%) of the total revenue
for the Year. Revenue attributable to the largest customer
accounted for 48% (2018: 32%) of the total revenue for the
Year.

During the Year, purchases from the Group’s five largest
suppliers accounted for 94% (2018: 97%) of the total
purchases for the Year. Purchases from the Group’s largest
supplier or accounted for 48% (2018: 57%) of the total
purchases for the Year.

As far as the Directors are aware, neither the Directors or any
of their close associates nor any Shareholders which, to the
best knowledge of the directors, own more than 5% of the
Company’s issued share capital had any beneficial interests in
the Group's five largest customers and suppliers during the Year.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this report
were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Liu Rongsheng
(executive Director,
Chairman and chief
executive officer)

Mr. Fan Guocheng

Ms. Wei Qing

Lord Cao Yunde
(Co-Chairman)

Mr. Chen Liang

(resigned on 31 May 2018)

(resigned on 31 May 2018)

Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Yang Yong

Mr. Lui Chun Pong (appointed on 2 October 2018)
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Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Pang Pui Hung,
Paton
Mr. Lam Man Hing (appointed on 8 August 2018)

Mr. Li Cao (appointed on 4 December 2018)

Ms. Li Yuen Fong,
Michelle

Mr. Zhu Yifeng

(resigned on 4 December 2018)

(resigned on 8 August 2018)

In accordance with bye-laws 84(1) and (2) of the Bye-laws of
the Company (the “Bye-laws”), Mr. Liu Rongsheng and Mr. Fan
Guocheng will retire from office by rotation at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company (the “AGM"). Pursuant
to bye-law 83(2) of the Bye-laws, Mr. Lam Man Hing, Mr. Lui
Chun Pong and Mr. Li Cao will retire from office at the AGM.
All the above retiring Directors, being eligible, have offered
themselves for re-election thereat.

The Company confirmed that it has received from each of
its independent non-executive Directors the annual written
confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the
GEM Listing Rules and considered them to be independent as at
the date of this report.

DIRECTORS’ AND COMPANY SECRETARY'S
BIOGRAPHIES

The biographical details of the Directors and Company Secretary
of the Group are set out on pages 22 to 25 of the annual
report.
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EEEHE

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors and the independent non-
executive Directors has entered into a letter of appointment
with the Company for a term of one to three years commencing
from the date of appointment and will continue thereafter until
terminated by either party giving not less than one month's
notice in writing to the other party.

Save as aforesaid, none of the Directors proposed for re-election
at the forthcoming AGM has a service contract with the
Company, which is not determinable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Details of the transactions during the Year between the Group
and connected persons (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) in
which a Director has beneficial interest are set out in the section
“Related Party Transactions” of this report and note 34 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Save as disclosed above, no transactions, arrangements or
contracts of significance in relation to the business of the Group
to which the Company, or any of its holding companies, or
any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party and in
which a Director or an entity connected with a Director had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the
end of the Year or at any time during the Year, nor was there
any transaction, arrangements or contract of significance for the
provision of services to the Company or any of its subsidiaries by
a controlling shareholder (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules)
or any of its subsidiaries for the Year. There was also no contract
of significance between the Company or one of the subsidiaries
and the controlling shareholders or any of its subsidiaries.

RELATED AND CONNECTED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

Except otherwise disclosed in note 34 to the consolidated
financial statements, the Group had no transactions incurred
during the Year which need to be disclosed as connected
transactions in accordance with the requirements of the GEM
Listing Rules.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed during the Year.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE
INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and the five
individuals with the highest emoluments for the Year are set
out in notes 8 and 9 to the consolidated financial statements,
respectively.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Details of the Company’s share option scheme are set out in the
Management Discussion and Analysis on pages 157 to 158 and
note 30 to the consolidated financial statement.

No share option has been granted, exercised, cancelled or
lapsed under the Scheme since its adoption.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

Appropriate insurance covers on directors’ and officers’ liabilities
have been in force to protect the directors and officers of the
Group from their risk exposure arising from the business of the
Group.

Pursuant to the Bye-laws, the Directors shall be indemnified and
secured harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company
from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages
and expenses, which they shall or may incur or sustain by or by
reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted in or about the
execution of their duty.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any taxation relief available to the
Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Shares.
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EEEHE

CHANGES IN DIRECTOR’S INFORMATION EEEREE
The changes in Directors’ information are set out below: EEEHEHNAT

Name of Director

BEE=nS

Details of changes

BEHE

Mr. Chen Liang

PR == o A
Lord Cao Yunde
EEEEE

BH == o

Ms. Wei Qing

mEs Lt

Mr. Lui Chun Pong
=R Bk A

Mr. Zhu Yifeng

- Resigned as executive Director, compliance officer and authorized

representative on 31 May 2018
- RIZ-N\FRA=T-"HBHERTEST ESTELRERRR

- Resigned as executive Director and Co-Chairman on 31 May 2018

- RIZE-N\FRA=T-—HABHERTEELRBEEZRE

—  Appointed as Compliance officer and authorized representative on 31May

2018
- RIE-N\FRA=ZT-"HEZERERTIEREEREX

- Appointed as non-executive Director on 2 October 2018

- RIE-N\F+RA-REZERIFNITES

—  Resigned as independent non-executive Director and a member of the Audit

Committee on 8 August 2018

REBRLE - RZE-N\FNANBBABUERTEZIREZZESN

Mr. Lam Man Hing - Appointed as independent non-executive Director on 8 August 2018

MXERE - RIZIZE-N\FNANBEBZEABIFNTES

Mr. Li Cao —  Appointed as independent non-executive Director on 4 December 2018

FREA - RIZE-N\FT+_RAURABZEERBUIIFNTES

Ms. Li Yuen Fong,Michelle —  Resigned as independent non-executive Director and a member of the Audit
committee on 4 December 2018

FEE L - RIE-N\FH+_ANABEBIUFRNTEERERZTEGNE
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 March 2019, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company in the Shares,
underlying Shares and debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Future Ordinance, Chapter 571 of the Laws
of Hong Kong (the “SFO")) which have been notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and
8 of the SFO (including interest or short positions which they
had taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFO), or as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Rules
5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules relating to the securities
transactions by directors were as follows:
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Long position in the Shares gvid sy
Approximate
Number of percentage of issued
Name of Director Capacity ordinary Shares held share capital
HEBITRAE
EEnA g7 BEEBRRH™E BRNBEDL
Ms. Wei Qing (Note 1) Beneficial owner 80,428,000 1.90%
st (AaE1) EmEAA 80,428,000 1.90%
Mr. Fan Guocheng Beneficial owner 800,000 0.02%
S B S A& BEHERAA 800,000 0.02%
Notes: W1z -

(1)  Ms. Wei Qing is beneficial interested in 69,032,000 shares
through Sunny Sky Capital Management Limited.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2019, none of the
Directors nor the chief executive of the Company had any
interests or short positions in any shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporation
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO which were required:
(@) to be notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or
short positions which he is taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO); or (b) pursuant to Section 352 of
the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein; or (c)
pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules relating
to the securities transactions by directors to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange.

(1) BBLTEBEBEREAEEERAFER
% 569,032,000% A& 17 °
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EEEHE

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under paragraphs headed “Directors, Chief
Executive’s Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying
Shares and Debentures” and “Share Option Scheme” above,
at no time during the Year were rights to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of
the Company or of any other body corporate granted to any
Directors or their respective spouses or children under 18 years
of age, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was the
Company, its holding company or any of its subsidiaries or
fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the
Directors, their respective spouses or children under 18 years of
age to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 March 2019, the interests and short positions of
persons in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or, who
was, directly or indirectly, interested in 10% or more of the
nominal value of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote
in all circumstances at general meetings of the Company, or
substantial shareholders as recorded in the register of substantial
shareholders required to be kept by the Company under Section
336 of the SFO were as follows:
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Long position in the Shares RG 2R
Approximate
Number of percentage of issued
Name of shareholder Capacity ordinary Shares held share capital
HEBRITRAE
BRRMEEB ) BFEEZEREE BMAOB D
Liu Yi Beneficial owner 724,292,000 17.14%
EES BEamEB A 724,292,000 17.14%

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2019, so far as is
known to any Directors, none of any persons had an interest or
short position in the Shares or underlying Shares which would
fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of
Division 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or, who was directly or
indirectly, interested in 5% or more of the nominal value of any
class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances
at general meetings of any other members of the Group, or
any other substantial shareholders whose interests or short
positions were recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN SECURITIES OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Other than the interests disclosed above in respect of the
substantial shareholders, as at 31 March 2019, no other person
is individually and/or collectively entitled to exercise or control
the exercise of 5% or more of the voting power at the general
meetings of the Company and are able, as a practicable manner,
to direct or influence the management of the Company.
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EEEHE

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and to the best knowledge of the Directors as at the
date of this report, there is a sufficient public float of the issued
Shares (i.e. at least 25% the issued Shares being held by the
public) as required under the GEM Listing Rules throughout the
Year and thereafter up to the date of this report.

DONATIONS

No charitable and other donations were made by the Group
during the Year (2018: Nil).

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year under review and up to the date of this report
The director who has an interest in any business apart from the
Group's business, which competes or is likely to compete either
directly or indirectly, with the Group’s business that need to be
disclosed pursuant to Rule 11.04 of the GEM Listing Rules is as
follows:

Director Name of company

£ NEER XBHE

Nature of business

RANREFRE
BEARRABNAER WHEERA
FERHMRA RAFEREREEAR
BEAMAL B RTRHAKCEMED
RARENRADRHBE (NEDP25%
MERTRIDEARER)

B
R ER B O AN R T2 30 4 AF AR AN E AR K
(ZT—N\F E)-

EENHFRE 2ER

REBEFEAREEARERR EFRN
HAEEESEENBEEBRBEF N
BRBRE 2 EMER (BRAEEEZKIN F
HEARKBGEM EMRAIE11.04KETHE
FIREZS LT

Nature of Interests

BHENE

Mr. Liu Rongsheng
BRERHE

Royal Century Resources Holdings Limited
("Royal Century") and its subsidiaries

CRERERARAR ((CRER]) R
HRtBAT

WEZH

Mr. Pang Pui Hung, Paton
AU it

Markway Finance Limited (“Markway")
ERBBERAR ([BR) BEXRH
As Mr. Liu Rongsheng is the executive director and chief
executive officer of Royal Century and has not involved in the
daily operation of the subsidiaries of Royal Century which are
operating the money lending business, the Group is capable of
carrying on its business independently to, and at arm’s length
from the business of those companies.

As Mr. Pang Pui Hung, Paton is an independent non-executive
director of the Company and has not involved in the daily
operation of the Group, the Group is capable of carrying on
its business independently to, and at arm’s length from the
business of Markway

Save as disclosed above none of the Directors was interested in
any business (apart from the Group’s business) which competed
or was likely to compete, either directly or indirectly with the
business of the Group during the year.
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COMPLIANCE ADVISER'S INTERESTS

As at 31 March 2019, except for the compliance adviser
agreement entered into between the Company and Gram
Capital Limited on 15 August 2018, neither Gram Capital
Limited nor its directors, employees or its close associates (as
defined under the GEM Listing Rules) had any interests in the
securities to the Company which is required to be notified to the
Company pursuant to Rule 6A.32 of the GEM Listing Rules.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

A report on the principal corporate governance practices
adopted by the Company is set out on page 43 to page 58 of
this annual report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company set up an audit committee (the "Audit
Committee”) on 18 October 2001, with written terms of
reference in compliance with the GEM Listing Rules, for the
purpose of reviewing and providing supervision over the
financial reporting process and internal control of the Group.
The Audit Committee comprised the three independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Pang Pui Hung, Paton as the
chairman of the Audit Committee, Ms. Li Yuen Fong, Michelle
resigned on 4 December 2018, Mr. Zhu Yifeng resigned on 8
August 2018, Mr. Lam Man Hing appointed on 8 August 2018
and Mr. Li Cao appointed on 4 December 2018. During the
Year, the Audit Committee held four meetings to review and
supervise the financial reporting process, and to provide advice
and recommendations to the Board.

The financial statements of the Group for the Year have
been reviewed by the Audit Committee, which is of the
opinion that such statements comply with the applicable
accounting standards, as well as the Stock Exchange's and legal
requirements, and that adequate disclosures have been made.
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EETHSE

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
Subsequent Event

On 6 May 2019, Jin Yu Tang (Cambodia) Fishery Co., Ltd (“Jin
Yu Tang (Cambodia)”), a company established in Cambodia
with limited liability and is a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Group, entered into a Joint Venture Agreement with Mr. Theang
Chhoeung to enable the Group to conduct aquaculture business
in the Cambodia for a period of 10 years. Pursuant to the Joint
Venture Agreement, Jin Yu Tang (Cambodia) and Mr. Theang
have conditionally agreed to make a capital contribution in the
amount of US$16.0 million and US$4.0 million, respectively, to
the Joint Venture Company in consideration for the Ordinary
Shares in the share capital of the Joint Venture Company. Upon
Completion, Jin Yu Tang (Cambodia) and Mr. Theang will own
80% and 20% of the voting interests in the Joint Venture
Company, respectively.

Save as disclosed above, change of directors disclosed under
the section of “Corporation Information” on page 78 and note
37 to the consolidated financial statements, the Group had no
material event subsequent to the end of reporting period and
up to the date of this report.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the Year have been
audited by Reanda Lau & Au Yeung (HK) CPA Limited, who will
retire and, being eligible, offer itself for re-appointment at the
forthcoming AGM.

Having been approved by the Board upon the Audit
Committee’s recommendation, a resolution to re-appoint
Reanda Lau & Au Yeung (HK) CPA Limited as the auditor and to
authorise the Directors to fix its remuneration will be proposed
at the forthcoming AGM.

Save as disclosed above, there have been no change of the
independent auditors for the preceding three years.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
Liu Rongsheng
Executive Director, Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 24 June 2019
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Corporate Governance Report

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has adopted the code provisions set out in the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) and Corporate
Governance Report contained in Appendix 15 to the GEM
Listing Rules throughout the Year. The Company has applied
the principles in the CG Code and complied with the code
provisions set out in the CG Code for the Year, save and except
for the following:

In accordance with the CG Code provision A.2.1, the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer should be separated and
should not be performed by the same individual to ensure a
balance of power and authority. The division of responsibilities
between the chairman and chief executive should be clearly
established and set out in writing. The roles of the chairman and
the chief executive officer of the Company are performed by Mr.
Liu Rongsheng. The Board considers that the present structure
is more suitable for the Company for it provides strong and
consistent leadership in the planning and execution of long-term
business plans and strategies of the Company. The Directors will
continue to review the effectiveness of the Group’s corporate
governance structure to assess whether changes, including the
separation of the roles of the chairman and chief executive
officer, as and when necessary.

Code provision A.6.7 of the CG Code provides that independent
non-executive Director and other non-executive Directors should
attend general meetings and develop a balanced understanding
of the views of Shareholders. Mr. Zhu Yifeng and Mr. Yang
Yong were not able to attend the special general meeting of
the Company held on 8 August 2018 due to other business
engagement. Other Board members who attended the 2018
AGM and all the special general meetings were already of
sufficient calibre and number for answering questions raised by
the Shareholders at the 2018 AGM and all the special general
meetings.
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TxRERBERE

CODE OF CONDUCT REGARDING DIRECTORS’
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
directors’ securities transactions on terms no less exacting than
the required standard of dealings as set out in Rules 5.48 to
5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules. Having made a specific enquiry
with all the Directors, each of them confirmed that he/she had
complied with such code of conduct and the required standard
of dealings regarding securities transactions throughout the
Year.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND BOARD
MEETINGS

The Board is responsible for the Group’s corporate policy
formulation, business strategies planning, business
development, risk management, major acquisitions, disposals
and capital transactions, and other significant operational and
financial matters. Major corporate matters that are specifically
delegated by the Board to the management include the
preparation of annual, interim and quarterly financial statements
for the Board’s approval before public reporting, execution
of business strategies and initiatives adopted by the Board,
implementation of adequate systems of internal controls and
risk management procedures, and compliance with relevant
statutory requirements and rules and regulations. During the
Year and up to date of this report, the Board comprised the
following Directors:

China Ocean Fishing Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018-2019

ERETRERGZBRETH

ARFIEREZHETELSRIEM—ER
SPER EERNE GEM TR BISE5.48%
S5.67IKFTRERPEAER - MEBESE
HHEERAR FESEEEREAFRA
FE—BHETHUERTENREEETE
HFRGFIMEZR SR

EXEREEEER

EEeREAKBZEREBERSIF]  ¥HE
BEARE XBBR EREE TRWE-
HENMEARZ AR EMEKREERYB
EH-EFERMEREEEREZIER
AEERRE REFE PHRFEHER
RAREZER AR AMATEL BITE
BREREES® %ZWZ? M TS Z

B B 4% I Ko B B TR AR A B ST AR
BAEZ R RAUNEN - RAFERBE
AREARZEETEXNBRBETIES:



Executive Directors:

Mr. Liu Rongsheng
(executive Director,
Chairman and chief
executive officer)

Mr. Fan Guocheng

Ms. Wei Qing

Lord Cao Yunde
(Co-Chairman)

Mr. Chen Liang

(resigned on 31 May 2018)

(resigned on 31 May 2018)

Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Yang Yong
Mr. Lui Chun Pong

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Pang Pui Hung,
Paton
Mr. Lam Man Hing

Mr. Li Cao (appointed on 4 December 2018)

Ms. Li Yuen Fong,
Michelle
Mr. Zhu Yifeng

(appointed on 2 October 2018)

(appointed on 8 August 2018)

(resigned on 4 December 2018)

(resigned on 8 August 2018)
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The Directors’ biographical information is set out on pages 22
to 25 of this annual report. All Directors have given sufficient
time and attention to the affairs of the Group. Each executive
Director has sufficient experience to hold the position so as
to carry out his/her duties effectively and efficiently. Save as
disclosed above, there is no financial, business, family or other
material relationship among the members of the Board.

The Company appointed three independent non-executive
Directors who have appropriate and sufficient experience and
qualifications to carry out their duties so as to protect the
interests of Shareholders. Each of them has been appointed
for a term of one to three years commencing on the date of
appointment, which will continue thereafter until terminated by
either party giving the other not less than one month’s notice.
Every Director should be subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years and is eligible for re-election in
accordance with the Bye-laws.

Pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules, the Company
has received written confirmation from each independent
non-executive Director of his/her independence. Based on such
confirmations of independence, the Company considers all of
the independent non-executive Directors to be independent.

Apart from the regular Board meetings, the Board meets on
other occasions when a board-level decision on a particular

matter is required.

During the Year, 13 Board meetings and an AGM were held.
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Details of the attendance of the meetings of the Board members
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i

BERAWE

EEeNBHFEAFEZCEFTEETRH LI

during the Year are as follows: BEBEET
Board General
meetings meetings
Attended/ Attended/
Eligible to  Eligible to
Name of Directors attend attend
Exsged REKE
EHE/ CHE/
RERLEE SERLERE
EEpnA ZEBERYE Z2g8R%"E
Executive Directors:
HITES:
Mr. Liu Rongsheng 13/13 171
(executive Director, Chairman
and chief executive officer)
BIRE S (HITEFE T/EH#
BEEHITE)
Mr. Fan Guocheng 13/13 0/1
Ms. Wei Qing 13/13 11
iR
Lord Cao Yunde (Co-Chairman) (resigned on 31 May 2018) 0/1 n/a
BERBE (HEEE) (R=ZZF—-—NFAA=1—HEF)
Mr. Chen Liang (resigned on 31 May 2018) 1/1 n/a
fR== e (RZFE-NFAA=1+—HEFT)
Non-executive Directors:
FHITES
Mr. Yang Yong 8/13 0/1
BETE
Mr. Lui Chun Pong (appointed on 2 October 2018) 5/7 n/a
=R A& (R-ZF-NF+HA-HEZE)
Independent Non-executive Directors:
BYFHITES:
Mr. Pang Pui Hung, Paton 13/13 11
TOmE R &
Mr. Lam Man Hing (appointed on 8 August 2018) 10/10 n/a
M BEE (RZEBE-NFNANAEBEL)
Mr. Li Cao (appointed on 4 December 2018) 4/4 n/a
FHEREE (RZEB-NF+_HALEZF)
Mr. Zhu Yifeng (resigned on 8 August 2018) 0/3 0/1
REHEE (RZFE-NFNNANAFT)
Ms. Li Yuen Fong, Michelle (resigned on 4 December 2018) 8/9 1/1

FEIT L
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DIRECTORS’ INDUCTION AND CONTINUING
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Pursuant to code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all Directors
should participate in continuous professional development
to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. This is to
ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed
and relevant. Up to the date of this report, all Directors have
participated in continuous professional development by
attending training courses or reading related materials/in house
briefing on the topics related to corporate governance and
regulations as follows:

ESEMREEERRR

RIEEEE AT RIH T AIRIEA 65K
EREFRD2EBBEXZIRUNBERNE
MME 2B AREEEER
BEREAMIEGMBZBERA TRESS
FHEM - BEEAHREEH 2RBEFCE
BEEATEBELEERRRIIZHEIR
RREERBME NG RE 28R
BEERUR:

Reading
materials/
In house
briefing/
training
Name of Directors courses
BIEM R,
REERE
EspE EAIRE
Executive Directors:
HITES:
Mr. Liu Rongsheng v
(executive Director, Chairman
and chief executive officer)
BleRESE (MITEF FEF
BEMITE)
Mr. Fan Guocheng v
Ms. Wei Qing 4
Bt
Lord Cao Yunde (Co-Chairman) (resigned on 31 May 2018) v
BEEBR (HELE) (R=ZFE-NFAA=+—HFF)
Independent Non-executive Directors:
BYFHTES:
Mr. Pang Pui Hung, Paton v
ZI IR
Ms. Li Yuen Fong, Michelle (resigned on 4 December 2018) 4
PRI LL (RZFE-NF+ZHABEFE)
Mr. Zhu Yifeng (resigned on 8 August 2018) v
REBEE (RZFE-NFNANABE)
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board values diversity as a factor in selecting candidates to
serve on the Board, and believes that the diversity which exists
in its composition provides significant benefits to the Board and
the Company.

The Board adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity
Policy”) which relates to the selection of candidates for the
Board. The Board believes that a key success factor of an
effective Board is that it comprises a range and balance of skills,
experience, knowledge and independence, with individuals
that work as a team. The Board Diversity Policy was adopted to
ensure that diversity in its broadest sense continues to remain a
feature of the Board.

The Nomination Committee has been delegated with the
responsibilities for the review of the Board Diversity Policy on an
annual basis.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

In accordance with the CG Code provision A.2.1, the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer should be separated and
should not be performed by the same individual to ensure
balance of power and authority. The division of responsibilities
between the chairman and chief executive should be clearly
established and set out in writing. The roles of the chairman and
the chief executive officer of the Company are performed by Mr.
Liu Rongsheng. The Board considers that the present structure
is more suitable for the Company for it provides strong and
consistent leadership in the planning and execution of long-term
business plans and strategies of the Company.

The Directors will continue to review the effectiveness of the
Group’s corporate governance structure to assess whether
changes, including the separation of the roles of the chairman
and chief executive officer, as and when necessary.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Board is also responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties as set out below:

a) to develop and review the Company's policies and
practices on corporate governance;

b) to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of the Directors and senior
management;

¢ to review and monitor the Company's policies and
practices and compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to the employees
and the Directors; and

e) to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code
and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

The Board is also responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties as set out below:

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three Board committees, namely
the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee, to oversee particular aspects of the
Company'’s affairs. The Board committees are provided with
sufficient resources to discharge their duties.

The written terms of reference for each of the Board committees
named above are in line with the GEM Listing Rules and are
posted on the respective websites of the Stock Exchange and
the Company.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established in January
2006 with written terms of reference in compliance with the
CG Code. The Remuneration Committee presently comprises
two members, all being independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Pang Pui Hung, Paton, serving as the chairman and
Mr. Li Cao.

The role and function of the Remuneration Committee are to
make recommendations to the Board for its final determination
on the specific remuneration packages of all Directors, including
benefits in kind, pension rights and compensation payments,
including any compensation payable for loss or termination of
their office or appointment.

The Remuneration Committee held 4 meetings during the Year
to review the remuneration package of the Directors and senior
management. Details of the attendance of the Remuneration
Committee meetings are as follows:

i

BERAWE

FMEES
FMEE N _TTRF—AKL F2E
ﬁﬁﬁé%ﬁzﬁ? A EESHE B E -
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Number of

meetings

attended/

Eligible to

Members attend

X174

EEREE

RE ZERHE

Mr. Pang Pui Hung, Paton 4/4
(chairman)

R E (FE)

Ms. Li Yuen Fong, Michelle 4/4
FREAHLLT

Mr. Li Cao (appointed on 4 December 2018) n/a
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and the senior
management of the Company for the Year are set out in notes 8
and 9 to the consolidated financial statements.

Pursuant to code provision of B.1.5 of the CG Code, the annual
remuneration of the senior management (other than the
Directors) for the Year by band is set out below:

AR (BE)

Remuneration bands (in HK$)

EENREREERE Z2HMH

ARBEERESRERENNEE 2 5
BB AR B I S R MR8 K9 -

iR 3 EA A2 TRV B.1 51
BERE (EERINRAEE 25 EHH
BB -

Number of individuals

AE

Nil to 1,000,000 £ %1,000,000

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a Nomination Committee on 23
March 2012 with written terms of reference in compliance with
the CG Code. The Nomination Committee presently comprises
three members, namely Mr. Liu Rongsheng, an executive
Director, serving as the chairman, and two independent non-
executive Directors, Mr. Pang Pui Hung, Paton and Mr. Li Cao.

The Nomination Committee is mainly responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on appointment of the Directors
and succession planning for the Directors. The Board takes into
consideration criteria such as the expertise and experience of the
relevant candidates, the market situation and applicable laws
and regulations when considering new director appointments.

The Nomination Committee held 4 meetings during the Year to
review the structure and composition of the Board as well as
the Board Diversity Policy and made recommendations on the
appointment and re-appointment of retiring Directors. Details of
the attendance of the Nomination Committee meetings are as
follows:
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BERAWE

Number of
meetings
attended/
Eligible to
Members attend
BiiE,/
BERHE
RE ZEEHE
Mr. Liu Rongsheng (chairman) 4/4
BleRERE (EE)
Ms. Li Yuen Fong, Michelle 4/4
FFH L
Mr. Pang Pui Hung, Paton 4/4
MR &
Mr. Lam Man Hing (appointed on 8 August 2018) 2/2
MXERE (RZFE-NFNNANABEE)
Mr. Zhu Yifeng (resigned on 8 August 2018) 0/2
KEBRE (RZFE-NFNANAEE)
AUDIT COMMITTEE EREES
The Company set up an audit committee (the "Audit ARAFER_ZTE—F+A T+ N\NHERE

Committee”) on 18 October 2001, with written terms of
reference in compliance with the GEM Listing Rules, for the
purpose of reviewing and providing supervision over the
financial reporting process and internal control of the Group.
The Audit Committee comprised the three independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Pang Pui Hung, Paton as the
chairman of the Audit Committee, Mr. Lam Man Hing and Mr. Li
Cao. During the Year, the Audit Committee held four meetings
to review and supervise the financial reporting process, and to
provide advice and recommendations to the Board.

The financial statements of the Group for the Year have
been reviewed by the Audit Committee, which is of the
opinion that such statements comply with the applicable
accounting standards, as well as the Stock Exchange’s and legal
requirements, and that adequate disclosures have been made.
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Number of
meetings
attended/
Eligible to
Members attend
BHE/
BEREE
RE ZEEY™E
Mr. Pang Pui Hung, Paton 4/4
(chairman)
ZELRE (£E)
Ms. Li Yuen Fong, Michelle (resigned on 4 December 2018) 3/3
FmIE L (RZFE—-NF+ZABEFE)
Mr. Zhu Yifeng (resigned on 8 August 2018) 01
REBRLE (RZFE-NFNNANABT)
Mr. Lam Man Hing (appointed on 8 August 2018) 3/3
MXBHEE (RZFE-NFNANEEEZE)
Mr. Li Cao (appointed on 4 December 2018) 11
FHEREE (RZFE-NF+ZHHEZF)

During the Year, the Audit Committee reviewed the first and
third quarterly results and interim results for the Year, the annual
results of the Group for the Year and the accounting principles
and practice adopted by the Group and recommended to the
Board for considering the re-appointment of independent
auditor at the 2018 AGM.

The annual results for the Year have been reviewed by the
Audit Committee at its meeting held on 24 June 2019 before
submission to the Board for approval. The members of the
Audit Committee considered that the results were prepared in
accordance with applicable accounting standards and the GEM
Listing Rules and sufficient disclosure had been made.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

It is the external auditor’s responsibility to form an independent
opinion, based on their audit, on the consolidated financial
statements and to report their opinion solely to the
Shareholders, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Bermuda Companies Act and for no other purpose. They do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the content of the auditor’s report.

During the year, the fees charged by the Company’s auditors,
Reanda Lau & Au Yeung (HK) CPA Limited for the statutory audit
and non-audit assignments of the Group for the year amounted
to approximately HK$1,000,000 and Nil respectively.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Lam Chi Ming Francis is the company secretary of the
Company. During the year, Mr. Lam has duly complied with
relevant professional training requirements in accordance with
Rule 5.15 of the GEM Listing Rules
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INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for maintaining the Group's internal
controls and risk management for reviewing the effectiveness of
these controls annually. Internal control systems are designed to
meet the particular needs of the Group and the risk to which it
is exposed.

In consideration of the size of the Group, the Board does not
consider to establish an internal audit team at present. However,
the key control procedures established by the Group are day-
to-day supervision of the business by the executive Directors,
supported by the managers responsible for the operation and
the key division support functions of finance, information
system and human resources. The key elements of internal
controls described below have been in place throughout the
Year:

- procedures for the approval of capital expenditure and
payments;

- reqular financial information provided to management for
reviewing the Group’s performance;

—  clearly defined management structure and lines of
responsibility.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Under the Bye-laws, Shareholders holding at the date of deposit
of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital
of the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary, to require
a SGM to be called by the Board for the transaction of any
business specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall be
held within two months after the deposit of such requisition.
Within 21 days of such deposit, the Board should proceed to
convene such meeting.
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Shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company or put
forward any enquiries or proposals to the Board. The contact
details are as follows:

The Company Secretary

China Ocean Fishing Holdings Limited

Address:  Room 03, 22/F, China Resources Building,
26 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong

Fax No.. 852-3956 4882

To put forward proposals at an AGM or a SGM, the

Shareholders shall submit a written notice of those proposals

with detailed contact information to the Company Secretary at

the above address.

The request will be verified with the Company’s branch share
registrar in Hong Kong and upon its confirmation that the
request is proper and in order, the Company Secretary will ask
the Board to include the proposed resolution in the agenda for
the general meeting.

PROCEDURE FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO SEND
ENQUIRES TO THE BOARD

Shareholders are provided with contact details of the Company,
such as telephone hotline, fax number, email address and postal
address, in order to enable them to make any query that they
may have with respect to the Company. They can also send their
enquiries to the Board through these means. The contact details
of the Company are provided in this report, the “Corporate
Information” section of this annual report and the Company’s
website.

The Board welcomes views of Shareholders and encourages
them to attend general meetings to raise any concerns that they
may have with the Board or the management directly. Board
members and appropriate senior staff of the Group are available
at the meetings to answer any questions raised by Shareholders.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the
preparation of the financial statements of the Group for the
Year. In preparing the financial statements, the generally
accepted accounting standards in Hong Kong have been
adopted, appropriate accounting policies have been used and
applied consistently, and reasonable and prudent judgments and
estimates have been made.

The Board is not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions which may cast significant doubt over
the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. Accordingly,
the Board has continued to adopt the going concern basis in
preparing the financial statements.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company keeps on promoting investor relations and
enhancing communication with the existing Shareholders and
potential investors. It welcomes suggestions from investors,
stakeholders and the public. Enquires to the Board or the
Company may be sent by post to the Company’s principal place
of business in Hong Kong.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS OF THE
COMPANY
During the Year, there were no changes in the Company’s

Memorandum of Association and the Bye-laws except the
change of Company’s name.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

I.NﬂMDA

REANDA LAU & AU YEUNG (HK) CPA LIMITED
NREZEE(FE)BEEBMAERAS]

To the shareholders of
China Ocean Fishing Holdings Limited
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
China Ocean Fishing Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “the Group”) set out on
pages 69 to 188, which comprise the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 March 2019, and the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, consolidated statement
of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Company and the Group as at 31 March 2019, and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS OF OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs"”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the “Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements” section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B & AR S

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key Audit Matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as
follows:

o Recoverability of trade and loan receivables

o Acquisition of a subsidiary and goodwill assessment and
contingent consideration payable
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continuea)

Key Audit Matter

Independent Auditor’s Report
B & AR S

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Recoverability of trade and loans receivables

As at 31 March 2019, the Group had trade and loans
receivables of HK$231 million and HK$71 million
respectively. Provision is made for lifetime expected
credit losses on trade and loan receivables.

Trade receivables of the Group comprise mainly
receivables for supply chain management services
business and ocean fishing business. Loan receivables
of the Group comprise mainly receivables for money
lending business.

Management applied judgement in assessing
the expected credit losses. Receivables relating
to customers with known financial difficulties or
significant doubt on collection of receivables are
assessed individually for provision for impairment
allowance. Expected credit losses are also estimated by
grouping the remaining receivables based on shared
credit risk characteristics and collectively assessed
for likelihood of recovery, taking into account the
nature of the customer, its geographical location and
its ageing category, and applying expected credit
loss rates to the respective gross carrying amounts
of the receivables. The expected credit loss rates are
determined based on historical credit losses experience
and are adjusted to reflect current and forward-
looking information such as macroeconomic factors
affecting the ability of the customers to settle the
receivables.

We focused on this area due to the magnitude of the
trade and loan receivables and the estimation and
judgement involved in determining the expected credit
losses allowance of the trade and loan receivables.

Our audit procedures in relation to the recoverability of
trade and loans receivables include:

o verified the balances of trade and loans
receivables by requesting and receiving
confirmations on a sample basis;

o tested aging of trade and loans receivable
balances at year end on a sample basis;

e  obtained a list of long outstanding receivables
and identified any debtors with financial difficulty
through discussion with management;

o assessed the recoverability of these outstanding
receivables through our discussion with
management and latest correspondence with
customers; and

o assessed the recoverability of the balances by
comparing the outstanding amounts as at year
end against subsequent settlements.

o Obtained management’s assessment on the
expected credit losses allowance of receivables.
We corroborated and validated management’s
assessment based on the historical settlement
pattern, correspondence with the customers,
evidence from external sources including the
relevant public search results relating to the
financial circumstances of the relevant customers
and relevant forward-looking information such
as macroeconomic factors used in management’s
assessment.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continuea)

Key Audit Matter

Independent Auditor’s Report
B & AR S

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Acquisition of a subsidiary and goodwill assessment and contingent consideration payable

On 27 July 2018, the Group completed the acquisition
of 65% of equity interests in Lianyungang Anni Ocean
Fishing Co., Ltd (“Lianyungang Anni”). The goodwill
arising on this acquisition amounted to HK$64 million.

The considerations for the acquisition include
contingent consideration payables which would be
settled upon fulfilment of profit guarantee of the
subsidiary as specified in the related acquisition
agreement, details set out in Notes 27 and 35 of the
consolidated financial statements.

The management engaged an independent
professional valuer to valuate the fair value of
contingent consideration and assessed goodwill
for potential impairment as at 31 March 2019 by
comparing the carrying amount of the cash-generating
unit to which goodwill has been allocated with the
recoverable amount determined by assessing the
value-in-use by preparing a discounted cash flow
forecast. Preparing a discounted cash flow forecast
involves the exercise of significant management
judgement, in particular in forecasting revenue
growth and operating profit and in determining an
appropriate discount rate, as such we considered this
is a key audit matter.

Related disclosures about Principal Accounting Policies
and Goodwill are included in note 3 and note 17 to
the consolidated financial statements.

Our audit procedures in relation to the acquisition
of subsidiary and potential impairment of goodwill
include:

o checked the consideration paid and inspect
management’s valuation for the contingent
consideration payable for the acquisition by the
Group.

o checked the intercompany balances and
transactions between Lianyungang Anni and the
Group to assess the accuracy and completeness
of the elimination adjustments;

o Assessed the appropriateness of the valuation
methodologies used;

o assessing the reasonableness of the allocation
of purchase price to all identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed, and reviewing
the accounting treatment of the business
combinations;

e Assessed the reasonableness of key assumptions
based on our knowledge of the business and
industry;

o Assessed management’s sensitivity analyses
on the key assumptions such as the growth
rates and discount rates as these are the key
assumptions against which the value-in-use
calculations are most sensitive to; and

o Tested source data to supporting evidence
on a sample basis, such as approved budgets
and available market data and considering the
reasonableness of these budgets.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
other information. The other information comprises all the
information in the Group’s 2019 annual report, but does not
include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the Other Information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the Other Information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work
we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this Other Information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITY OF DIRECTORS" AND AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
We report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended), and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
company's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used

and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the company’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Reanda Lau & Au Yeung (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Franklin Lau Shiu Wai

Practising Certificate Number P0O1886

Hong Kong, 24 June 2019
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

mEERHEWER

Year ended 31 March 2019 B Z -—F—NWF=A=+—HIFFZF

2019 2018
Note HK$’000 HK$000
—E-hEF —E-NF
Mt BT BT T
Revenue from contracts with ZBF &K
customers 6 960,595 1,294,944
Cost of services rendered and RERE AR E
cost of goods sold Bz AR (879,603) (1,224,370)
Gross profit E 7 80,992 70,574
Other revenue H b U 2= 6 438 12
Other income H A 6 45,667 22,237
Selling and distribution costs $HE &5 KA (485) (752)
Administrative expenses THRAX (76,284) (39,137)
Net impairment loss FEUBERE R 2 R EE B F
for trade receivables (564) -
Finance costs B & KA (5.414) (4,957)
Net unrealised profit on financial #E@EBEZIEAFEIIEZ
assets at fair value through PREEZARER
profit or loss a7 R - 26,700
Gain on change in fair value on B sKAREZ
contingent consideration payable A {E & 8) Uk x5 2,729 -
Other operating expenses AT - (243)
Profit before taxation KRB A R 7 47,079 74,434
Income tax expenses FTiSfiFE 10 (503) (15,151)
Profit for the year FREF 46,576 59,283
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REEHEWER

Year ended 31 March 2019 #Z - ZE—hLE=H=+—HIFZF

2019 2018
Note HK$°000 HK$°000
—E-hF —EB-N\F
Htit BT T BT
Other comprehensive FRHEMZE (BIE)
(loss)/income for the year: W g -
Items that may be reclassified EEAEEGT 7 HE
subsequently to profit or loss: Bahr)HEE -
Exchange differences on ERZENZER
consolidation (56,001) 26,968
(56,001) 26,968
Total comprehensive FREME (FE) REEE
(loss)/income for the year (9,425) 86,251
Profit attributable to: TR ATEAERF :
Equity holders of the Company AR A MEREA A 12 43,668 57,054
Non-controlling interests FEFE AR E 2R 2,908 2,229
46,576 59,283
Total comprehensive UTATEEZE
(loss)/income attributable to: (E5i8) WEFELE:
Equity holders of the Company ~ AR RIIEAEREH A (12,333) 84,022
Non-controlling interests SRR IR = 2,908 2,229
(9.425) 86,251
Earnings per share BRER 12
Basic BN HK1.14 cents Bl HK2.14 cents &1
Diluted E HK1.13 cents B4l HK1.96 cents /&1l
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e B AR R R R

At 31 March 2019 R-ZE—hNF=HA=+—H

2019 2018
Note HK$°000 HK$000
—E-NEF —E-N\F
oka BT T JEMF T
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment W B RRE 13 43,522 48,482
Construction in Progress EEIR 15 421,780 251,125
Intangible assets B EE 14 - 89
Other assets EEE 16 544 665
Goodwill EES 17 116,971 52,777
582,817 353,138
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 18 530 =
Other assets EmEE 16 121 121
Trade and other receivables JE Ui BR TR K2 L fih JiE U R 19 1,024,344 696,948
Loans receivables JEUE 3K 21 70,913 179,112
Financial assets at fair value through #E B85 A FEYIBERZ
profit or loss TREE 20 = 50,701
Bank balances and cash BT EES 22 14,326 19,829
1,110,234 946,711
Current liabilities REBAE
Trade and other payables JE 11 BR 3R I EL At FE - 3R 23 215,088 262,276
Borrowings BE 24 87,325 23,959
Corporate bonds NEER 28 7,589 =
Convertible bonds AR E A 26 = 50,238
Contingent consideration payables &1 sk A K (B 27 15,739 =
Tax payable FET IR 12,347 13,817
338,088 350,290
Net current assets REBEEFE 772,146 596,421
Total assets less current liabilities 2 Z ERRB & & 1,354,963 949,559
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Deferred income EEWA 25 48,174 6,035
Borrowings BE 24 11,628 -
Corporate bonds NCIIEES 28 3,034 -
Deferred tax liabilities R IBE E 32 - 4,406
62,836 10,441
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e B AR R R R

At 31 March 2019 R-ZE—hNFEF=H=+—H

2019 2018
Note HK$°000 HK$°000
—E-hEF —E-N\F

Wit EE T BT T

NET ASSETS EEFE 1,292,127 939,118
Capital and reserves AR %

Share capital A& A 29 42,260 33,176
Reserves G 1,189,893 859,575

Equity attributable to equity holders A~ RIR% 5B A 1L B 25

of the Company 1,232,153 892,751
Non-controlling interests JEVE I = 59,974 46,367
TOTAL EQUITY R 1,292,127 939,118

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on RZE-—AFEARNAZTHAKLESSHE

24 June 2019 and signed on its behalf by REENZ THUTESEAKREE
Liu Rongsheng Fan Guocheng
BleE SE B
Chairman Director
*E EF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
REEagB X

Year ended 31 March 2019 #EZ_-FE—NF=HA=+—HIFZ

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

ALNARERE AR

Reserves
f
Convertible
bonds Non-
Share Share  Contributed Eichange equiy  Accumulated Total controlling
Note cpitdl premium surplus Tesere Teserve Josses TESENVES Subtotal interests Total
haRES
(In HK$ 000) (LR FTAEL) i RE  RGEE  BARR  EXRE  BEmHE  ZaER Bk N FEERER At
At 1 April 2017 RZF—tENA-A 20,146 516,585 594,707 (6,359) - (849,436) 255497 275,643 - 275,643
Profit for the year ERE 5 - - - - 57,054 57,054 57,054 229 59,283
Other comprehensive income £t 2 EHx (F8)
(loss)
ftems that may be reclassified LY BEL b
subsequently to profit or loss BRAER
Exchange differences on RRRZERZE
consolidation - - - 27442 - - 27,442 27,442 - 27,442
Total comprehensive income FREENRGE
for the year - - - 27442 - 57,054 84,49 84,49 2,209 86,725
Transactions with equity holders EREREAETZRS
Contributions and distributions &Rk
Issue of shares upon placing REEMETRR 290, (i) 8864 334,91 - - - - 334951 343815 - 33815
lssue of convertible bonds EUaRES - - - - BB - 8798 887% - %
Shares issued upon conversion of - EE TR ERE
convertible bonds BIRA 290i) 4,166 95,833 = = = = 95,833 99,999 - 99,999
Change in ownership interest AR ERZE
Acquisition of subsidiaries WENBAR - - - S S S S S 44,138 44,138
13,030 430,784 - - 88,798 - 519,582 532,612 44,138 576,750
At 31 March 2018 R=F-\§=A=1-H 33,176 947,369 594,707 21,083 88,798 (792,382) 859,575 892,751 46,367 939,118

RENSFBEIERARAR  2018-2019F K
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

RERBEH X

Year ended 31 March 2019 #HZE_-ZF—NF=A=+—HIFFZE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

EDARERAE AR
Reserves
e
Convertible
bonds Non-
Share Share  Contributed ~ Exchange equity  Accumulated Total controlling
Note capital premium surplus reserve Teserve [osses Teserves Subtotal interests Total
TERES
(I HKS 009) (LR FLAEL) Mt Bk RGEE & ARR  EXRE  BRRE  RHER Gk Nt FERER £
At 1 April 2018 RZF-N\ENA-A 33,176 947,369 594,707 21,083 88,798 (792,382) 859,575 892,751 46,367 939,118
Profit for the year ERigi - - - - - 43,668 43,668 43,668 2,908 46,576
Other comprehensive income 2 Elx (F8)
(loss)
Items that may be reclassified LY BEL b
subsequently to profit or loss BRAER
Exchange differences on GRRZENZE
consolidation - - - (56,001) - - (56,001) (56,001) - (56,001)
Total comprehensive income FREENRLE
for the year - - - (56,001) - 43,668 (12,333) (12333) 2,908 (9,425)
Transactions with equity holders EREREAETZRS
Contributions and distributions &R Ak
Issue of shares upon placing REEMETRD 290 () 6700 294,800 - - - - 294800 301,500 - 301,500
Shares issued upon conversion of - BB IR ERE
convertible bonds BIRA 29) 2,38 136,653 - - (88,798) - 47,855 50,239 - 50,239
Acquisition of subsidiaries WERBAA - - - - - - - - 12,293 12,293
Acquisition of non-controlling ~ WEESFE RS
interests - - - - = (4 (4 (4) (1,59) (1,59)
908 431453 - - (887%9) () 34651 B35 1069 36243
At 31 March 2019 R-E-NE=A=1-H 42,260 1378822 594,707 (34,918) - (748,718) 1,189,803 1,232,153 59,974 1,292,127
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Note:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

mERBED X

Year ended 31 March 2019 B Z -—F—NWF=A=+—HIFFZF

Exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences
arising from the translation of the financial statements of foreign
operations.

The laws and regulations of the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC") require wholly foreign-owned enterprises in the
PRC (“WFOE") to provide for certain statutory reserves, namely
general reserve, enterprise expansion fund and staff welfare
and bonus fund which are appropriated from the net profit as
reported in the PRC statutory accounts.

The Group's subsidiaries in the PRC, which are WFOE, are
required to allocate at least 10% of their after-tax profit to the
general reserve until the reserve has reached 50% of its registered
capital. The general reserve can only be used, upon approval by
the relevant authority, to offset accumulated losses or increase
capital. The enterprise expansion fund can only be used to
increase capital upon approval by the relevant authority. The staff
welfare and bonus fund can only be used for the welfare of the
employees of the subsidiaries in the PRC. Appropriation to the
enterprise expansion fund and staff welfare and bonus fund is at
the discretion of the board of directors of the subsidiaries in the
PRC.

The subsidiaries in the PRC incurred after-tax losses and therefore
no transfer to the statutory reserve was made for the years ended
31 March 2019 and 2018.

The convertible bonds reserve represents the equity components
of the convertible bonds issued. The convertible bonds issued
are split into their liability and equity components at initial
recognition at the fair values of each of the convertible bonds.

Hrat -

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

ERFRERAEREEBINEHT B R
RMEL ZSNEZFE -

REFEARKME (FE])2ZER
ER-PENEBELR (S EEED
F 1) EBEDBDEE R B ARTIRANBA
ETEAEREB B —RERES X
BRES BIGMRAMESFEE -

AEBENPEMBARBIHBEELE
WRE BRI EEELRANRERRR
BHPEFHREE 0N IFREESEERE
REZMEANS 0% R -BAFBEES
VAR BREE BUEREREERI
WMBFHBREIE MR A - MBAEEER
HESTMARIERE RitEREARE
BRIE IR A - B TR M RALF 2 RIE
RAREMEARE BNz mE A
CEERESNBIRBMRANES A H
TEMNEBARNEEERE

FEKEL AR ERBEBE ALBE
—E-AER-F-NE=A=t+-BL
FEIEFAE FEER-

AR (B % B T D B T A BRI 5 2
s E S - DRTTRREERTSRD
TERRETRRESRS HHHAABR
HESEDS -
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

RMERERER

Year ended 31 March 2019 #Z — &

—NF=A=F—HIFE

2019 2018
Note HK$’000 HK$°000
Bt BYFT B For
OPERATING ACTIVITIES ReEy
Profit before taxation B 31 A1 A 47,079 74,434
Amortisation of intangible assets 42 & &= # §54 2 12
Amortisation of other assets Hibh&EE#E 121 121
Loss allowance on JE W BR SRS 1B
trade receivables 564 -
Depreciation of property, M- BE MEEBETE
plant and equipment 5,529 1,916
Impairment loss of intangible EmEEAEREBEEE
assets 81 -
Interest income FEWA (438) (12)
Gain on disposal of property, HEWE - BB RE&HE 2 &=
plant and equipment 4 -
Loss/(gain) on disposal of financial i & B BEREAFENEZ
assets at fair value through CRMEEZER, (W)
profit or loss 16,973 (919)
Net unrealised gain on financial BBEZIERAFEINNEZ
asset at fair value through TREEZKRER
profit or loss W ek F 58 - (26,700)
Provision for deposit paid and B iR K H e W B
other receivables - 243
Impairment loss on loan interest  FERE FF) B 2 B EEE
receivables - 598
Written off of loan interest JE W E BRF B8R
receivables 2,162 -
Gain on fair value change of Y AREBz A FEZE KA
contingent consideration
payables (2,729) -
Changes in working capital LEESH
Inventories e (530) 3,292
Trade and other receivables JIE W2 B 5% K2 EL b 8 W 3R (364,523) (406,640)
Loan receivables JEW B R 106,037 (87,297)
Trade and other payables JE AT BR R % EL At FE 5 3R (113,606) 132,275
Deferred income EIEUWA 16,384 5,660
Exchange difference MEH ZRE (8,232) 4,329
(295,122) (298,688)
Cash used in operations REEKFARS
Income tax paid XATATEH (3,794) (824)
Net cash used in operating KEEEFTARE
activities (298,916) (299,512)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

RERERER

Year ended 31 March 2019 B Z _-—F— NWF=A=+—HIFFZF

2019 2018
Note HK$°000 HK$°000
iz BT T BT T

INVESTING ACTIVITIES REED
Interest received R & RSN 438 12
Net cash outflow from WEHB AR 2

acquisition of subsidiaries Remt F58 (32,610) (17,863)
Proceeds from sale of financial HEBBREREATEYIEZ

assets at fair value through EREEMGHRIEA

profit or loss 33,728 67,011
Purchase of financial assets at BEABRIEBREATEIERZ

fair value through profit or loss & @& E - (24,000)
Purchase of construction BETEIR

in progress (94,646) (128,463)
Purchase of property, BEWME BWEREH

plant and equipment (1,947) (28,318)
Net cash outflow from RETBERERLFEHE

investing activities (95,037) (131,621)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES Emﬁ/”ﬁw
Net proceeds from corporate BITRARIEFZMEHRIBFE

bond issued 10,623 =
Net proceeds from shares issued A ¥ B2 & M 2 1T D AT 15 3K

upon new placing T8 29 301,500 343,815
Net proceeds from issue of BT MRESRZ

convertible bonds FTiSsRI8 F 58 = 99,999
Repayment of margin facility BEAFRHME - (16,857)
Proceeds from borrowings BB PSR IE 76,462 -
Net cash from financing METBHFRERESTFHR

activities 388,585 426,957
Net decrease in cash and ReRREEEY

cash equivalents AR (5,368) (4,176)
Cash and cash equivalents REHNEESRESEEY

at beginning of reporting

period 19,829 23,955
Effect on foreign exchange rate ~ IMNEERES) 2 L2 JF58

changes, net (135) 50
Cash and cash equivalents at HREHRBESRBEESESEY

end of reporting period, BRITHEBRES

represented by bank

balances and cash 14,326 19,829

FENSFHEERER AT 2018-2019F 3
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

China Ocean Fishing Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is
incorporated in Bermuda on 7 June 2001 as an exempted
company with limited liability under the Bermuda
Companies Act of 1981. The Company’s shares are
listed on the GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The registered office of
the Company is located at Clarendon House, 2 Church
Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda and its principal place
of business is located at Suite 2203, 22/F, China Resources
Building, 26 Harbour Road, Wan Chai, Hong Kong.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding
and the principal activities of its subsidiaries are business
of supply chain management services, money lending and
ocean fishing.

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the
"HKICPA") and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. These consolidated financial
statements also comply with the applicable disclosure
requirements under the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM
Listing Rules”).

China Ocean Fishing Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018-2019

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR RN

Year ended 31 March 2019 #Z - ZE— LF=A=+—HI FZ

AAEHR
FEEFHEZERER AR (X
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—NWN\—EBRERFERBREH
M BEREER AT AR AIK
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RFT)) GEM ET o KA A 2 7 it
E {7 Clarendon House, 2 Church
Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda * M
HEXrZEEmUUNEEETBEE
2657 2 K [E22182203F -

ARAZEBEBBREEBR N HHK
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5~ BB MR F I -

& 15 2 8
ZEZRAVBRRDBRIBEE S ST
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EMRE - ZEREMBRRAFTES
B X FTGEM#ZE %5 E W AR B ([GEM_E
MAR]) ZBRBEELRE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ERR N

Year ended 31 March 2019 B Z -—F—NWF=A=+—HIFFZF

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of Preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, except for financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss and contingent
consideration payables which have been measured at fair
value.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to
exercise its judgement in the process of applying the
Group’s accounting policies.

All amounts have been rounded to the nearest thousand,
unless otherwise indicated.

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those
of the previous financial year, except for the adoption of
new and amended standards as set out below.

(a) Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued a number of new HKFRSs
and amendments to HKFRSs that are first effective
for the current accounting period of the Group. Of
these, the following developments are relevant to the
Group'’s financial statements:

. HKFRS 9, Financial Instruments

° HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with
customers

° HK(IFRIC) 22, Foreign currency transactions and

advance consideration

The Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period.

3.

EEFBR

mREXE
RERBRRAFEINRZEME
ERENXRAERAFESEN
B AR B B R TR E 2 PN A R
%o

mENTABEVBREEA Z2EE Y
BHRFBEERE TERS AR -
HIREEEERERASE SR
RiBREPITEEAE -

BRRBEHRAN MAEBELHEEER
B2 T2

B ™ X E R T R] R ERT 2 £ R
SN FRER RS ETBUR B E— R
BE B

(@) EFBERNEE
BREGTHAGERMHZ AN
BEMBHREER MEEEWH
BEENNETE YR AEER
SEESAHEERER - EHT
Jlg st 2 SRR E 2 B
A BR

o FAABMBMEERFEIWR
(&R TA]

o BEUBEHREERIFEISH
[BEEA XA

o HE (BEBRMEHRERER
EE)REBEN [N EZ
S RIEMRE]

REBIWARFAERRA S
7 1 R AE R B Rl Sk e i

RENSFBEIERARAR  2018-2019F K

79



80

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

%Aﬂﬂé‘ﬁ%w%

Year ended 31 March 2019 #ZF —ZE—hF=A=+—HIFE

3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(a) Changes in accounting policies (continued)
(i) HKFRS 9, Financial instruments

HKFRS 9 replaces HKAS 39, Financial
instruments: recognition and measurement. It
sets out the requirements for recognising and
measuring financial assets, financial liabilities
and some contracts to buy or sell nonfinancial
items.

Further details of the nature and effect of the
changes to previous accounting policies are set
out below:

a. Classification of financial assets and
financial liabilities

HKFRS 9 categories financial assets into
three principal classification categories:
measured at amortised cost, at fair value
through other comprehensive income
(FVOCI) and at fair value through profit
or loss (FVPL). These supersede HKAS
39's categories of held-to-maturity
investments, loans and receivables,
available-for-sale financial assets and
financial assets measured at FVPL. The
classification of financial assets under
HKFRS 9 is based on the business
model under which the financial asset is
managed and its contractual cash flow
characteristics. Under HKFRS 9, derivatives
embedded in contracts where the host
is a financial asset in the scope of the
standard are not separated form the host.
Instead, the hybrid instrument as a whole
is assessed for classification.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Year ended 31 March 2019 &%

3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(@) Changes in accounting policies (continued)

(i) HKFRS 9, Financial instruments
(continued)

b.  Credit losses

HKFRS 9 replaces the “incurred loss”
model in HKAS 39 with the “expected
credit loss” (ECL) model. The ECL model
requires an ongoing measurement of
credit risk associated with a financial asset
and therefore recognises ECLs earlier than
under the “incurred loss” accounting
model in HKAS 39.

The Group applies the new ECL model
to financial assets measured at amortised
cost (including cash and cash equivalents
and trade and loan receivables).

For further details on the Group's
accounting policy for credit losses, see
note 3(0).

The adoption of HKFRS 9 does not have
any material impact on the financial
position and the financial result of the
Group.

(ii) HKFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

HKFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive
framework for recognizing revenue and
some costs from contracts with customers.
HKFRS 15 replaces HKAS 18, Revenue,
which covered revenue arising from sale of
goods and rendering of services, and HKAS
11, Construction contracts, which specified
the accounting for construction contracts.
The Group has elected to use the modified
retrospective approach which means that the
cumulative impact of the adoption will be
recognised in retained earnings at 1 April 2018.
Therefore, comparative information has not
been restated and continues to be reported
under HKAS18. As allowed by HKFRS 15, the
Group has applied the new requirements only
to contracts that were not completed before 1
April 2018.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR RN

Year ended 31 March 2019 #Z — &

3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(a) Changes in accounting policies (continued)

(ii) HKFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (continued)

(1)

Timing of revenue recognition

Previously, revenue from sale of goods
was generally recognised at a point in
time when the risks and rewards of
ownership of the goods had passed to
the customers. Under HKFRS 15, revenue
is recognised when the customer obtains
control of the promised good or service in
the contract. This may be at a single point
in time or over time. HKFRS 15 identifies
the following three situations in which
control of the promised good or service is
regarded as being transferred over time:

—  When the customer simultaneously

receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group’s
performance, as the Group
performs;

—  When the Group’s performance

creates or enhances an asset that
the customer controls as the asset is
created or enhanced; or

—  When the Group’s performance

does not create an asset with an
alternative use to the Group and the
Group has an enforceable right to
payment for performance completed
to date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ERR N

Year ended 31 March 2019 B Z -—F—NWF=A=+—HIFFZF

3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(a) Changes in accounting policies (continued)

(ii) HKFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (continued)

0

(1)

Timing of revenue recognition (continued)

If the contract terms and the Group's
activities do not fall into any of these
3 situations, then under HKFRS 15 the
Group recognises revenue for the sale of
that goods or services at a single point
in time, being when control has passed.
Transfer of risks and rewards of ownership
is only one of the indicators that is
considered in determining when the
transfer of control occurs. The adoption
of HKFRS 15 does not have a significant
impact on the Group’s financial position
and results of operation for the period.
There is also no material impact to the
Group’s retained earnings as at 1 April
2018.

Presentation of contract assets and
liabilities

Under HKFRS 15, a receivable is
recognised only if the Group has an
unconditional right to consideration. If
the Group recognises the related revenue
before being unconditionally entitled to
the consideration for the promised goods
and services in the contract, then the
entitlement to consideration is classified as
a contract asset.

3. XESTHE#®)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR RN

Year ended 31 March 2019 #HZE_-ZF—NF=A=+—HIFFZE

3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(a) Changes in accounting policies (continued)

(ii) HKFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (continued)

(i)

Presentation of contract assets and
liabilities (continued)

Similarly, a contract liability, rather than a
payable, is recognised when a customer
pays consideration, or is contractually
required to pay consideration and the
amount is already due, before the Group
recognises the related revenue. For a
single contract with the customer, either a
net contract asset or a net contract liability
is presented. For multiple contracts,
contract assets and contract liabilities of
unrelated contracts are not presented on
a net basis. The adoption of HKFRS15
does not have significant impact to the
Group. As a result, there was no impact
on the Group’s consolidated statement of
financial position on 1 April 2018.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ERR N

Year ended 31 March 2019 B Z -—F—NWF=A=+—HIFFZF

3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(continued)

TESEE ()

(a) Changes in accounting policies (continued) (a) EFTBEEHEE (£)
(iii) HK(IFRIC) 22, Foreign currency (i) &E (B %R E2E

transaction and advance consideration

This interpretation provides guidance on
determining “the date of the transaction” for
the purpose of determining the exchange rate
to use on initial recognition of the related asset,
expense or income (or part of it) arising from a
transactions in which an entity receives or pays
advance consideration in a foreign currency.

The interpretation clarifies the “the date of the
transaction” is the date on initial recognition
of the non-monetary asset or liability arising
from the payment or receipt of advance
consideration. If there are multiple payments or
receipts in advance of recognising the related
item, the date of the transaction for each
payment or receipt should be determined in
this way. The adoption of HK(IFRIC) 22 does
not have any material impact on the financial
position and the financial result of the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR RN

Year ended 31 March 2019 #HZE_-ZF—NF=A=+—HIFFZE

3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FTESHHEEX &)
(continued)
(b) New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet (b) EEMEERERZHTRE

effective

The Group has not early applied new and revised
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet
effective for the financial year beginning 1 April
2018. These new and revised HKFRSs include the
following which may be relevant to the Group.

BT B BMBREER
AEEYEEFEANR _-F—N
FOA—HBRBZMBEEER
MR EARERZ FE] MR &
MR E LR - Al gE A K [E
1EREZ 2 FHR] R AEIE R B AR
BHREEMNEERATEIER

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
RT3 BB z%
HHENETtHBER

HKFRS 16 Leases
BEAVBREENFEIHEE

HK(IFRIC) 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments
B (BB BREREEES)FNAMETHREEZ THERAE

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015 —2017 Cycle
ERUBREEN _ZE-—NFE_T—+FRERAFREUE

China Ocean Fishing Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018-2019

1 January 2019
—2—-NF—H—H

1 January 2019
—2—N%—HA—H

1 January 2019
—E-hF—H—H



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Year ended 31 March 2019 B Z -—F—NWF=A=+—HIFFZF

3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FESHEX &)
(continued)
(b) New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet (b) ERMEERERZHTRE

effective (continued)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment
of what the impact of these amendments and new
standards is expected to be in the period of initial
application. So far the Group has identified some
aspects of HKFRS 16 which may have a significant
impact on the consolidated financial statements.
Further details of the expected impacts are discussed
below. While the assessment has been substantially
completed for HKFRS 16, the actual impacts upon
the initial adoption of the standards may differ
as the assessment completed to date is based on
the information currently available to the Group,
and further impacts may be identified before
the standards are initially applied in the Group's
interim financial report for the six months ended 30
September 2019. The Group may also change its
accounting policy elections, including the transition
options, until the standards are initially applied in
that interim financial report.

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17 Leases and related
interpretations. The new standard introduces a
single accounting model for lessees. For lessees
the distinction between operating and finance
leases is removed and lessees will recognise right-
of-use assets and lease liabilities for all leases (with
optional exemptions for short-term leases and leases
of low value assets). HKFRS 16 carries forward
the accounting requirements for lessors in HKAS
17 substantially unchanged. Lessors will therefore
continue to classify leases as operating or financing
leases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR RN

Year ended 31 March 2019 #Z - ZE— LF=A=+—HI FZ

3.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(b) New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet

effective (continued)
HKFRS 16 Leases (continued)

HKFRS 16 is effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2019. The Group intends to
apply the simplified transition approach and will not
restate comparative amounts for the year prior to
first adoption.

Based on a preliminary assessment, the standard
will affect primarily the accounting for the Group's
operating leases. The Group's office property leases
are currently classified as operating leases and the
lease payments (net of any incentives received
from the lessor) are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term. Under HKFRS
16 the Group may need to recognise and measure a
liability at the present value of the future minimum
lease payments and recognise a corresponding right-
of-use asset for these leases. The interest expense on
the lease liability and depreciation on the right-of-use
asset will be recognised in profit or loss. The Group’s
assets and liabilities will increase and the timing of
expense recognition will also be impacted as a result.

As disclosed in note 33, the Group’s future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases for its office property amounted to
HK$2,093,000 as at 31 March 2019. These leases
are expected to be recognised as lease liabilities, with
corresponding right-of-use assets, once HKFRS 16 is
adopted. The amounts will be adjusted for the effects
of discounting and the transition reliefs available to
the Group.

Other than the recognition of lease liabilities and
right-of-use assets, the Group expects that the
transition adjustments to be made upon the initial
adoption of HKFRS 16 will not be material. However,
the expected changes in accounting policies as
described above could have a material impact on the
Group's consolidated financial statements from 2019
onwards.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ERR N

Year ended 31 March 2019 B Z -—F—NWF=A=+—HIFFZF

3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(b) New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet

(c)

effective (continued)

HK(IFRIC) 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments

The interpretation of HKAS 12 Income Taxes sets out
how to apply that standard when there is uncertainty
about income tax treatments. Entities are required to
determine whether uncertain tax treatments should
be assessed separately or as a group depending on
which approach will better predict the resolution
of the uncertainties. Entities will have to assess
whether it is probable that a tax authority will accept
an uncertain tax treatment. If yes, the accounting
treatment will be consistent with the entity’s income
tax filings. If not, however, entities are required to
account for the effects of the uncertainty using either
the most likely outcome or expected value method
depending on which method is expected to better
predict its resolution.

The Group is unable to estimate the impact of
the interpretation on the consolidated financial
statements until a more detailed assessment has
been completed.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the
financial statements of the Company and all of its
subsidiaries as at 31 March each year. The financial
statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the
same reporting year as that of the Company using
consistent accounting policies.
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Year ended 31 March 2019 #Z - ZE— LF=A=+—HI FZ

3.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(d)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured
entities) over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity when the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over the entity.
Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They are
deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

Shenzhen Yuheng Trade Management Co., Limited
ORYIFBEE SEEAER AR, “Shenzhen Yuheng”),
the Company’s wholly-owned subsidiary, entered into
a series of contractual arrangement (“Contractual
Arrangements”) with Jin Yu Tang (Shenzhen) Fishery
Company Limited CRYITEEEREER AR, “Jin
Yu Tang”), wholly-owned by Mr. Hong Maoji which
enable Shenzhen Yuheng to:

—  exercise effective financial and operational
control over Jin Yu Tang;

—  exercise equity shareholders’ voting rights of Jin
Yu Tang;

- receive substantially all of the economic
interest and returns generated by Jin Yu Tang
in consideration for the business support
and technical services provided by Shenzhen
Yuheng, at Shenzhen Yuheng's discretion;

—  obtain an irrevocable and exclusive right to
purchase the entire equity interest in Jin Yu
Tang from Mr. Hong Maoji; and

—  obtain a pledge over the entire equity interest
of Jin Yu Tang from Mr. Hong Maoji as collateral
security to guarantee performance of all of the
obligations of Mr. Hong Maoji and Jin Yu Tang
under the Contractual Arrangements.

China Ocean Fishing Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018-2019

3.

TESEE (®)

(d)

B 2 F

IR R R AR E AT HIREL
EHER(BREEBLLER)-
EAKER/SEZ T BMAE
QE e G o ek
HRER - AR EBMEBZE
BORNTZEZZERE K&
BEMERIZ TR B AR BE
HREEEEASE AERRE
EARE AR B L F B sl #
RIERERIEGRA AR

ARR2BEWBERRIRYIFEE
ZFEBEBRAR (IRYIFED)
AKX EEZEEA ZFY
MEEEREERAR([EE
EDRIL—RINEGHLH (A
WBE])  EARIIFIERES

—  HEEEAEARNYY
B I

- THEEFTENEZRRE
IRKE

- RINFERBREEBX
¥ LM ARTS - R ERE
EEEANBRBOLHE
gk Ko E A RAE

- ESRAXCELEBEE
FERMEAEDNH A
BH R B RN R

- BHAXCEAERBHEL
AR R - (ERYE
RAKCEERETER
TERNLZHETHERE
) B B8 4K 4



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ERR N

Year ended 31 March 2019 B Z -—F—NWF=A=+—HIFFZF

3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FESIEBE (&)

(continued)

(d) Subsidiaries (continued) d) KMEBAR(£&)

Pursuant to applicable PRC laws and regulations,
foreign investors are restricted from conducting far
ocean fishery services or holding equity interest in an
entity conducting such services in China. As a result
of the Contractual Arrangements, the Group has
rights to variable returns from its involvement with
Jin Yu Tang, has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over Jin Yu Tang, and is considered
to have control over Jin Yu Tang. Consequently,
Jin Yu Tang is considered to be a subsidiary of the
Group and the financial statements of Jin Yu Tang
are included in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.

However, there are uncertainties regarding the
interpretation and application of existing and future
PRC laws and regulations which could affect the
Company'’s ability to exercise control over Jin Yu
Tang, its right to receive substantially all of the
economic interest generated by Jin Yu Tang, and
its ability to consolidate the financial results of Jin
Yu Tang into the Group’s consolidated financial
statements. The Company believes that, based on the
legal opinion obtained from the Company’s PRC legal
counsel, the Contractual Arrangements are legally
binding and enforceable and do not violate current
PRC laws and regulations.

Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method to account
for business combinations. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the
fair values of the assets transferred, the liabilities
incurred to the former owners of the acquired
business and the equity interests issued by the
Group. The consideration transferred includes the
fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement. Identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination
are measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Year ended 31 March 2019 #Z — &

3.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(d) Subsidiaries (continued)

Business combinations (continued)

The Group recognises any non-controlling interest in
the acquired entity on an acquisition-by-acquisition
basis. Non-controlling interests in the acquiree that
are present ownership interests and entitle their
holders to a proportionate share of the entity’s net
assets in the event of liquidation are measured at
either fair value or the present ownership interests’
proportionate share in the recognised amounts
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other
components of noncontrolling interests are measured
at their acquisition date fair value, unless another
measurement basis is required by HKFRS.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred
by the Group is recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. Subsequent changes to the
fair value of the contingent consideration that is
deemed to be an asset or liability is recognised
in accordance with HKAS 39 in profit or loss.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity
is not remeasured, and its subsequent settlement is
accounted for within equity.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the
amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value of any
previous equity interest in the acquiree over the
fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired is
recorded as goodwill. If the total of consideration
transferred, non-controlling interest recognised
and previously held interest measured is less than
the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary
acquired in the case of a bargain purchase, the
difference is recognised directly in the statement of
comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Year ended 31 March 2019 B Z -—F—NWF=A=+—HIFFZF

3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(d) Subsidiaries (continued)

(e)

(f)

Business combinations (continued)

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies
are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the transferred asset. When necessary,
amounts reported by subsidiaries have been adjusted
to conform with the Group’s accounting policies.

Separate financial statements

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less
impairment losses. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividends received and receivable.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a subsidiary
is measured at the excess of the fair value of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair
value of any previously held equity interest in the
acquiree over the acquisition date amounts of the
identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed
of the acquired subsidiary. Goodwill arising on an
acquisition of an associate is measured as the excess
of the cost of investment over the Group's share
of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities of the acquired associate.
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Year ended 31 March 2019 #Z - ZE— LF=A=+—HI FZ

3.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(f)

Goodwill (continued)

Goodwill on acquisition of subsidiary is recognised
as a separate asset. Goodwill on acquisitions of
associates is included in interests in associates.
Goodwill is carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses, which is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may
be impaired. For the purpose of impairment test and
determination of gain or loss on disposal, goodwill
is allocated to cash-generating units. An impairment
loss on goodwill is not reversed.

In respect of a subsidiary, any excess of the
acquisition date amounts of identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed of the acquired
subsidiary over the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the
acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree, if
any, after reassessment, is recognised immediately
in profit or loss as a bargain purchase. In respect of
an associate, any excess of the Group’s share of its
net fair value of identifiable assets and liabilities over
the cost of investment is recognised immediately as
income.
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Year ended 31 March 2019 B Z -—F—NWF=A=+—HIFFZF

3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(9)

(h)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)
Trademarks

The initial cost of acquiring trademarks is capitalised.
Trademarks with indefinite useful lives are carried
at cost less accumulated impairment losses.
Trademarks with finite useful lives are carried at cost
less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses. Amortisation is provided on the
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives of
10 years.

Computer software

Research costs are expensed as incurred. Costs
incurred on development activities, which involve
the application of research findings to a plan or
design for the production of new or substantially
improved products and processes, are capitalised if
the product or process is technically and commercially
feasible and the Group has sufficient resources
to complete the development. The expenditure
capitalised includes the cost of materials, direct
labour and an appropriate proportion of overheads.
Other development expenditure is recognised in
profit or loss as an expense as incurred. When the
asset is available for use, the capitalised development
costs are amortised on a straight-line basis over the
estimated useful life.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses. The cost of an item of property,
plant and equipment comprises its purchase price
and any directly attributable costs of bringing the
asset to its working condition and location for its
intended use. Repairs and maintenance are charged
to profit or loss during the year in which they are
incurred.
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Year ended 31 March 2019 #Z — &

3.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(h) Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost less
accumulated impairment losses of property, plant and
equipment over their estimated useful lives from the
date on which they are available for use and after
taking into account their estimated residual values,
using the straight-line method. Where parts of an
item of property, plant and equipment have different
useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated on a
reasonable basis and depreciated separately. The
principal annual rates used are as follows:

Leasehold improvements over the remaining

lease terms

Leasehold land over the term of
the lease

Building 5-20%

20% to 33%
20% to 33%

Furniture and fixtures
Computer and office
equipment

Motor vehicles

Plant and machinery

Fishing vessels

20% to 25%
7%-20%
7%-10%

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item) is included in profit or
loss in the year in which the item is derecognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ERR N

Year ended 31 March 2019 #Z —ZE—hF=HA=+—HI FE

3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FEETHE#H)
(continued)
(i) Financial assets (i) &®mEE
Investments and other financial assets REREMEHEE
(a) Classification @

From 1 April 2018, the Group classifies its
financial assets in the following measurement
categories:

—  those to be measured subsequently at fair
value (either through other comprehensive
income (“OCI") or through profit or loss),
and

- those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s
business model for managing the financial
assets and the contractual terms of the cash
flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and
losses will either be recorded in profit or loss
or OCI. For investments in equity instruments
that are not held for trading, this will depend
on whether the Group has made an irrevocable
election at the time of initial recognition to
account for the equity investment at fair
value through other comprehensive income
("FvocCl”).

The Group reclassifies debt investments when
and only when its business model for managing
those assets changes.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR RN

Year ended 31 March 2019 #&Z &

3.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

()

Financial assets (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

(b)

(c)

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on trade-date, the date
on which the Group commits to purchase or
sell the asset. Financial assets are derecognised
when the rights to receive cash flows from
the financial assets have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a
financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case
of a financial asset not at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVPL"), transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition of
the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial
assets carried at FVPL are expensed in profit or
loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirety when determining
whether their cash flows are solely payment of
principal and interest.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ERR N

Year ended 31 March 2019 B Z -—F—NWF=A=+—HIFFZF

3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(i) Financial assets (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

(c) Measurement (continued)
Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’s business model
for managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. There are three
measurement categories into which the Group
classifies its debt instruments:

o Amortised cost: Assets that are held
for collection of contractual cash flows
where those cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest are
measured at amortised cost. Interest
income from these financial assets is
included in finance income using the
effective interest rate method. Any gain or
loss arising on derecognition is recognised
directly in profit or loss and presented in
other gains/(losses) together with foreign
exchange gains and losses. Impairment
losses are presented as separate line item
in the consolidated income statement.
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e MR RN

Year ended 31 March 2019 #Z - ZE— LF=A=+—HI FZ

3.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

()

Financial assets (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

(c) Measurement (continued)

Debt instruments (continued)

FVOCI: Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows and for selling
the financial assets, where the assets’
cash flows represent solely payments of
principal and interest, are measured at
FVOCI. Movements in the carrying amount
are taken through OCI, except for the
recognition of impairment gains or losses,
interest income and foreign exchange
gains and losses which are recognised in
profit or loss. When the financial asset
is derecognised, the cumulative gain
or loss previously recognised in OCl is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss
and recognised in other gains/(losses).
Interest income from these financial assets
is included in finance income using the
effective interest rate method. Foreign
exchange gains and losses are presented
in other gains/(losses) and impairment
expenses are presented as separate
line item in the consolidated income
statement.

FVPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria
for amortised cost or FVOCI are measured
at FVPL. A gain or loss on a debt
investment that is subsequently measured
at FVPL is recognised in profit or loss and
presented net within other gains/(losses) in
the period in which it arises.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e
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Year ended 31 March 2019 B Z -—F—NWF=A=+—HIFFZF

3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(i) Financial assets (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

(c)

Measurement (continued)
Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity
investments at fair value. Where the Group's
management has elected to present fair value
gains and losses on equity investments in
OCl, there is no subsequent reclassification
of fair value gains and losses to profit or loss
following the derecognition of the investment.
Dividends from such investments continue to be
recognised in consolidated income statement as
other income when the group’s right to receive
payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets
at FVPL are recognised in other gains/(losses)
in the consolidated income statement as
applicable. Impairment losses (and reversal
of impairment losses) on equity investments
measured at FVOCI are not reported separately
from other changes in fair value.
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Year ended 31 March 2019 #HZE_-ZF—NF=A=+—HIFFZE

3.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

()

Financial assets (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

(d)

(e)

Impairment

From 1 April 2018, the Group assesses on a
forward-looking basis the expected credit losses
associated with its debt instruments carried
at amortised cost and FVOCI. The impairment
methodology applied depends on whether
there has been a significant increase in credit
risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the
simplified approach permitted by HKFRS 9,
which requires expected lifetime losses to
be recognised from initial recognition of the
receivables, see note 20 and 37 for further
details.

Accounting policies applied until 31 March
2018

Financial assets
Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets as
fair value through profit or loss, and loans
and receivables. The classification depends
on the purpose for which the financial assets
were acquired. Management determines the
classification of its financial assets at initial
recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ERR N

Year ended 31 March 2019 B Z -—F—NWF=A=+—HIFFZF

3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(i) Financial assets (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

(e) Accounting policies applied until 31 March
2018 (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Classification (continued)

(@

(b)

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss are financial assets held for
trading. A financial asset is classified in
this category if acquired principally for
the purpose of selling in the short term.
Assets in this category are classified as
current assets if expected to be settled
within 12 months; otherwise, they are
classified as non-current.

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. They are included in current
assets, except for those with maturities
greater than 12 months after the end of
the reporting period. These are classified
as non-current assets. The Group’s
loans and receivables comprise “trade
and other receivables” and “cash and
cash equivalents” in the consolidated
statement of financial position.
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Year ended 31 March 2019 #Z - ZE— LF=A=+—HI FZ

3.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

()

Financial assets (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

(e)

Accounting policies applied until 31 March
2018 (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on the trade-date -
the date on which the Group commits to
purchase or sell the asset. Investments are
initially recognised at fair value plus transaction
costs for all financial assets not carried at fair
value through profit or loss. Financial assets
carried at fair value through profit or loss
are initially recognised at fair value, and the
transaction costs are expensed in the statement
of comprehensive income. Financial assets
are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the investments have expired
or have been transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all risks and rewards
of ownership. Financial assets carried at fair
value through profit or loss is subsequently
carried at fair value. Loans and receivables are
subsequently carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method. The Group
assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a
financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ERR N

Year ended 31 March 2019 B Z -—F—NWF=A=+—HIFFZF

3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FEETHE#H)
(continued)
(i) Financial assets (continued) (i) S@EE£)
Investments and other financial assets REREME@MEE (&)
(continued)
(e) Accounting policies applied until 31 March © HZ-_F—-—NF=AH

2018 (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
assesses whether there is objective evidence
that financial assets, other than those at fair
value through profit or loss, are impaired. The
impairment loss of financial assets carried at
amortised cost is measured as the difference
between the assets’ carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flow
discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate. Such impairment loss
is reversed in subsequent periods through
profit or loss when an increase in the asset’s
recoverable amount can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment was
recognised, subject to a restriction that the
carrying amount of the asset at the date the
impairment is reversed does not exceed what
the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.
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Year ended 31 March 2019 #Z - ZE— LF=A=+—HI FZ

3.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

()]

Convertible bonds

Convertible bonds issued by the Company that
contain both the liability and conversion option
components are classified separately into their
respective items on initial recognition. Conversion
option that will be settled by the exchange of a fixed
amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed
number of the Company’s own equity instruments is
classified as an equity instrument.

The liability component of convertible bonds is
recognised initially at the fair value of a similar
liability that does not have an equity conversion
option. The equity component and embedded
derivative component are recognised initially at the
difference between the fair value of the convertible
bonds as a whole and the fair value of the liability
component.

Any directly attributable transaction costs of issuing
convertible bonds are allocated to the liability and
equity components in proportion to their initial
carrying amounts.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the liability
component of convertible bonds and is measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.
The derivative component of convertible bond is re-
measured using fair value model.

If the bonds are converted, the convertible bonds
equity reserve, together with the carrying amounts of
the liability and derivative components at the time of
conversion, is transferred to share capital and share
premium as consideration for the shares issued. If the
bonds are redeemed, the convertible bonds equity
reserve is released directly to retained profits, and
any difference between the amount paid relating
to the liability component and the fair value of the
liability and derivative components is recognised in
consolidated income statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Year ended 31 March 2019 B Z -—F—NWF=A=+—HIFFZF

3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(k) Cash and Cash equivalents

U]

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise
bank deposits with original maturity with three
months, cash at banks, and short-term highly liquid
investments which are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to
an insignificant risk of changes in value, net of bank
overdrafts.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when control over a product
or service is transferred to the customer, at the
amount of promised consideration to which the
Group is expected to be entitled, excluding those
amounts collected on behalf of third parties.

Revenue from the sale of merchandises (supply chain
management and ocean fishing) is recognised when
control of the goods has transferred, being when
the goods have been delivered to the customer’s
specific location (delivery). Following delivery, the
customer has full discretion over the manner of
distribution and price to sell the goods, has the
primary responsibility when on selling the goods and
bears the risks of obsolescence and loss in relation to
the goods. A receivable is recognised by the Group
when the goods are delivered to the customers as
this represents the point in time at which the right
to consideration becomes unconditional, as only the
passage of time is required before payment is due.

3. XESTHE#®)

(k)

0]

RERAEEEY
MERRERERME HER
ReFEYERE=EARNIHH
RITERFRERE  ARABE
BEESENBERS REE
REEEPARZEHALRZER
BIRE (MR|ITES) ©

Uy 55 RR

EEMIRBEGIREZARE
BHAERERNAGREHRE
(TEERRE=TWINEE)
BRERFPE  TEBEABWRA-

EEREHRDER (ERE
KNTEPERM (RE) )
HEERHEDMmBA (fEE
BB RER TP
AERRERAERET AR
EE YAREEERRIEIER
EREmMmERBRZBER A
SERERRNERTFHERE
WK - R R L Ty R R (B
Z FER R A B AR A 2 R M B
B BIMEAFRRBEERAKR
ERBIER 2 3K o

N
4

RENSFBEIERARAR  2018-2019F K

107



108

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR RN

Year ended 31 March 2019 #Z - ZE— LF=A=+—HI FZ

3.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

V)

(m)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Interest income is recognised and accrued using the
effective interest method. When a loan receivable is
impaired, the Group reduces the carrying amount to
its recoverable amount, being the estimated future
cash flow discounted at the original effective interest
rate of the instrument, and continues unwinding
the discount as interest income. Interest income on
impaired loan receivables are recognised using the
original effective interest rate.

Foreign currency translation

[tems included in the financial statements of each of
the Group's entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates (the “functional currency”). The
consolidated financial statements are presented in
the currency of Hong Kong dollars, which is the
Company’s functional and presentation currency.

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the statement of profit
or loss. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the retranslation of non-monetary items carried
at fair value are recognised in the statement of profit
or loss except for those arising on the retranslation
of non-monetary items in respect of which gains
and losses are recognised directly in equity, in which
cases, the gains or losses are also recognised directly
in equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Year ended 31 March 2019 &%

3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(m) Foreign currency translation (continued)

The results and financial position of all the Group's
entities that have a functional currency different from
the presentation currency (“foreign operations”) are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

o Assets and liabilities for each statement
of financial position presented and, where
applicable, goodwill and fair value adjustments
on the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation
which are to be treated as assets and liabilities
of that foreign operation, are translated at the
closing rate at the end of the reporting period.

o Income and expenses for each statement
of comprehensive income are translated at
average exchange rate.

o All resulting currency translation differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

o On the disposal of a foreign operation (that
is, a disposal of the Group's entire interest in
a foreign operation, or a disposal involving
loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation, a disposal involving loss of
joint control over a joint venture that includes
a foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss
of significant influence over an associate that
includes a foreign operation), all of the currency
translation differences accumulated in equity
in respect of that operation attributable to
the owners of the Company are reclassified to
profit or loss.
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Year ended 31 March 2019 #Z — &

3.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(n)

(o)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost, which comprises all costs of
purchase and, where applicable, other costs that
have been incurred in bringing the inventories to
their present location and condition, is calculated
using the first in, first out method. Net realisable
value represents the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of
those inventories is recognised as an expense in the
period in which the related revenue is recognised.
The amount of any write-down of inventories to
net realisable value and all losses of inventories are
recognised as an expense in the period of the write-
down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal
of any write-down of inventories is recognised as a
reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as
an expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.

Credit losses and impairment of assets
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments
(A) Policy applicable from 1 April 2018

The loss allowance is measured at an
amount equal to lifetime expected credit
losses (ECLs), which are those losses that
are expected to occur over the expected
life of the trade receivables. The loss
allowance is estimated using a provision
matrix based on the Group's historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for factors
that are specific to the debtors and an
assessment of both the current and
forecast general economic conditions at
the reporting date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ERR N

Year ended 31 March 2019 #EZ_-E—NLF=HA=+—HIFZ

3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FESHEBX#)
(continued)
(o) Credit losses and impairment of assets (o) FEBBEREERME (&)
(continued)
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments (i) BBEILATHEZIEEER
(continued) (#&)
(A)  Policy applicable from 1 April 2018 A) BARZ-ZFE—/F
(continued) P9 A — H U #.2 B

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting

& (&)
B EERRESHE

date with any changes recognised as an WERHEFTE
impairment gain or loss in profit or loss. EREEHEEET
The Group recognises an impairment gain R REBTHER
or loss with a corresponding adjustment WREEZ 98B
to the carrying amount of trade and other &5 18 7 45 BR 1 B IR AR
receivables through a loss allowance RN E Ath fE U SR IE A
account. REEELEER
o
The gross carrying amount of a trade EWE SR H e
debtor or other receivable is written off U BR B9 BR T 42 5E AR08
(either partially or in full) to the extent AREYATRERNERT
that there is no realistic of recovery. This is T LA (o sk &
generally the case when the debtor does ) cBER—REIE
not have assets or sources of income to EEEAKENESE
generate sufficient cash flows to repay the EHRE R UNEER
amounts subject. AeREMEEIBA
HR
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(o) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments
(continued)

(B) Policy applicable prior to 1 April 2018

Prior to 1 April 2018, the Group assesses
whether there is objective evidence that
financial assets, other than those at fair
value through profit or loss, are impaired.
The impairment loss of financial assets
carried at amortised cost is measured
as the difference between the assets’
carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flow discounted
at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate. Such impairment loss is
reversed in subsequent periods through
profit or loss when an increase in the
asset’s recoverable amount can be related
objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment was recognised, subject
to a restriction that the carrying amount
of the asset at the date the impairment
is reversed does not exceed what the
amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.
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Year ended 31 March 2019 #HZE_-ZF—NF=A=+—HIFFZE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ERR N

Year ended 31 March 2019 B Z -—F—NWF=A=+—HIFFZF

3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FESHEE®)
(continued)
(o) Credit losses and impairment of assets (o) EEBEREERE (&)
(continued)
(ii) Impairment of other assets (i) BEtEEHE

At the end of each reporting period, the
Group reviews internal and external sources
of information to assess whether there is any
indication that property, plant and equipment,
intangible assets, other assets and investment in
associates may be impaired or impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists or may
be reduced. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated,
based on the higher of its fair value less
costs to sell and value in use. Where it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable amount
of an individual asset, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the smallest group of
assets that generates cash flows independently
(i.e. cash-generating unit).

If the recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-
generating unit is estimated to be less than
its carrying amount, the carrying amount of
the asset or cash-generating unit is reduced
to its recoverable amount. Impairment losses
are recognised as an expense in profit or loss
immediately.

A reversal of impairment loss is limited to the
carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating
unit that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior years.
Reversal of impairment loss is recognised as an
income in profit or loss immediately.

For investments in associates recognised
using the equity method, the impairment loss
is measured by comparing the recoverable
amount of the investment as a whole with
its carrying amount. The impairment loss
is reversed if there has been a favourable
change in the estimates uses to determine the
recoverable amount.

The accounting policy for recognition and
reversal of the impairment loss for goodwill is
stated in the accounting policy for goodwill in
the earlier part of this note.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR RN

Year ended 31 March 2019 #Z - ZE— LF=A=+—HI FZ

3.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(p)

(q)

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other
leases are classified as operating leases.

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged
to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term
of the relevant lease.

Lease incentives are recognised in profit or loss as
an integral part of the net consideration agreed for
the use of the leased asset. Contingent rentals are
recognised as expenses in the accounting period in
which they are incurred.

Employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits are
accrued in the year in which the associated services
are rendered by employees.

Defined contribution plans

The obligations for contributions to defined
contribution retirement scheme for the staff in Hong
Kong are recognised as an expense in profit or loss as
incurred and are reduced by contributions forfeited
by those employees who leave the scheme prior the
contributions are vested fully in those employees. The
assets of the scheme are held separately from those
of the Group in an independently administered fund.

Pursuant to the laws and regulations of the PRC,
contributions to the defined contribution retirement
schemes for the Group’s PRC staff are made to
the relevant government authorities in the PRC,
which are calculated on certain percentages of
the applicable payroll costs as stipulated under the
requirements in the PRC. These contributions are
expensed as incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ERR N

Year ended 31 March 2019 B Z -—F—NWF=A=+—HIFFZF

3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(r)

Share-based payment transactions
Equity-settled transactions

The Group’s employees, including directors, receive
remuneration in the form of share-based payment
transactions, whereby the employees rendered
services in exchange for shares or rights over shares.
The cost of such transactions with employees is
measured by reference to the fair value of the equity
instruments at the grant date. The fair value of share
options granted to employees is recognised as an
employee cost with a corresponding increase in a
reserve within equity. The fair value is determined
using the Black-Scholes-Merton model, taking into
account the terms and conditions of the transactions,
other than conditions linked to the price of the
shares of the Company (“market conditions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised,
together with a corresponding increase in equity,
over the years in which the vesting conditions are
to be fulfilled, ending on the date on which the
relevant employees become fully entitled to the
award (“vesting date”). During the vesting period,
the number of share options that is expected to
vest ultimately is reviewed. Any adjustment to the
cumulative fair value recognised in prior years is
charged/credited to profit or loss for the year of
the review, with a corresponding adjustment to the
reserve within equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR RN

Year ended 31 March 2019 #Z - ZE— LF=A=+—HI FZ

3.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(r)

Share-based payment transactions
(continued)

Equity-settled transactions (continued)

When the share options are forfeited after the
vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry
date, the amount previously recognised in share
options reserve will be transferred to accumulated
losses.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are
modified, an additional expense is recognised for any
increase in the value of the transaction as a result
of the modification, as measured at the date of
modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled before
the vesting date, it is treated as if it had vested on
the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet
recognised for the award is recognised immediately.
However, if a new award is substituted for the
cancelled award, and designated as a replacement
award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled
and new awards are treated as if they were a
modification of the original award, as described
above.

Share-based payment transactions in which the
Company grants share options to subsidiaries’
employees are accounted for as an increase in value
of investment in subsidiaries in the Company’s
statement of financial position which is eliminated on
consolidation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ERR N

Year ended 31 March 2019 &%

3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(s)

Taxation

The charge for current income tax is based on the
results for the year as adjusted for items that are
non-assessable or disallowed. It is calculated using
tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method,
on all temporary differences at the end of the
reporting period between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the
consolidated financial statements. However, any
deferred tax arising from initial recognition of
goodwill; or other asset or liability in a transaction
other than a business combination that at the time of
the transaction affects neither the accounting profit
nor taxable profit or loss is not recognised.

The deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at
the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period
when the asset is recovered or the liability is settled,
based on tax rates and tax laws that have been
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary
differences, tax losses and credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences
arising on investment in subsidiaries and associates,
except where the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences is controlled by the Group and
it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR RN

Year ended 31 March 2019 #Z - ZE— LF=A=+—HI FZ

3.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(t)

(u)

Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as
part of the cost of those assets, until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in
consolidated income statement in the period in
which they are incurred.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when the customer
pays consideration before the Group recognises the
related revenue. A contract liability would also be
recognised if the group has an unconditional right
to receive consideration before the Group recognises
the related revenue. In such cases, a corresponding
receivable would also be recognised.

When the contract includes a significant financing
component, the contract balance includes interest
accrued under the effective interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ERR N

Year ended 31 March 2019 B Z -—F—NWF=A=+—HIFFZF

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(v) Segment reporting
Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in the consolidated financial
statements, are identified from the financial
information provided regularly to the Group's
chief operating decision maker for the purpose
of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of business
and geographical locations.

Individual material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless
the segments have similar economic characteristics
and are similar in respect of the nature of products
and services, the nature of production processes,
the type or class of customers, the methods used to
distribute the products or provide the services, and
the nature of the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material may be
aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and assumptions concerning the future
and judgements are made by the management in the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements.
They affect the application of the Group’s accounting
policies, reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and
expenses, and disclosures made. They are assessed on an
on-going basis and are based on experience and relevant
factors, including expectations of future events that
are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.
Where appropriate, revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period of revision and future periods, in
case the revision also affects future periods.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR RN

Year ended 31 March 2019 #HZE_-ZF—NF=A=+—HIFFZE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(a)

(b)

Critical judgements made in applying
accounting policies

Ownership of motor vehicles

Certain motor vehicles of the Group are registered in
the name of independent third parties, which hold
the motor vehicles on behalf of the Group under
trust arrangement. In the opinion of the directors,
the trust arrangement is sufficient to create valid
trusts under the law of Hong Kong that the Group
is the beneficial owner of the motor vehicles.
Therefore, the Group has accounted for these motor
vehicles as property, plant and equipment of the
Group.

Key sources of estimate uncertainty
Impairment of receivables

The Group makes provision for impairment of
receivables based on assumptions about risk of
default and expected loss rates (Note 3(o) and
37). The Group uses judgement in making these
assumptions and selecting the inputs to the
impairment calculation, based on the Group's
past history, existing market conditions as well as
forward-looking estimates at the balance sheet date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Year ended 31 March 2019 B Z -—F—NWF=A=+—HIFFZF

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 4. BERESIHESTRHE (&)

JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(b) Key sources of estimate uncertainty

(b) fEEFTAEEMZEERR

(continued)

Impairment of property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets

The management determines whether the Group's
property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
are impaired where an indication of impairment
exists. This requires an estimation of the recoverable
amount of the property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets, which is equal to the higher of net
selling price or the value in use. Estimating the value
in use requires the management to make an estimate
of the expected future cash flows from property,
plant and equipment and intangible assets and
also to choose a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value of those cash flows. Any
impairment will be charged to profit or loss.

Fair value of convertible bonds

The fair value of convertible bonds are determined
using valuation techniques including reference to
other instruments that are substantially the same,
discounted cash flow analysis and option pricing
model. The inputs to these models are taken from
observable markets where possible, but where this
is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in
establishing fair values.

Fair value of contingent consideration
payable

The fair value of contingent consideration payable
was determined by using valuation techniques as
the date of acquisition and the end of each financial
reporting period. The Group uses its judgement to
select a method and make assumptions, include
estimating future cash flows from the acquired
business and/or post-acquisition performance of the
acquired businesses and fair value of the Company’s
shares, which are mainly based on market conditions
existing at the end of each reporting period. Changes
in assumption used could materially affect the fair
value of these balances and as a result affect the
Group'’s financial condition and results of operation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR RN

Year ended 31 March 2019 #Z - ZE— LF=A=+—HI FZ

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(b) Key sources of estimate uncertainty
(continued)

Impairment of goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill have
suffered any impairment, in accordance with the
accounting policy stated in Note 3(f). The recoverable
amounts of groups of cash-generating units (the
"CGUs") have been determined based on value-in-
use calculations. These calculations require the use of
estimates (Note 17).

As of 31 March 2019, as the recoverable amounts
of the CGUs that contain goodwill were higher than
their carrying amounts, there was no impairment of
goodwill with indefinite useful life.

5. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

The Group manages its businesses by individual
companies, which are organised by a mixture of both
business lines and geographical locations. In a manner
consistent with the way in which information is reported
internally to the Group's chief operating decision makers,
who are the directors of the Company, for the purposes
of resource allocation and performance assessment, the
Group has presented the following reporting segments.
No operating segments have been aggregated to form the
following reporting segments:

—  Supply chain management segment which provides
services involving the planning and implementation
of an integrated solution for the effective flow of
business, logistic, information and funds;

- Money lending segment which provides money
lending services.

—  Ocean fishing segment which provides fishing and

catching business in open sea beyond the coastal
region.
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Year ended 31 March 2019 &%

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (continued)
(@) Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment performance
and allocating resources between segments, the
Group’s chief operating decision makers monitor
the results, assets and liabilities attributable to each
reporting segment on the following bases:

Segment assets include all allocated assets with
the exception of interest in associates and other
corporate assets. Segment liabilities include trade
and other payables attributable to the sales/service
activities of the individual segment.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reporting
segments with reference to revenue generated
by those segments and the expenses incurred by
those segments or which otherwise arise from the
depreciation of assets attributable to those segments.
However, assistance provided by one segment to
another, including sharing of assets and technical
know-how, is not measured.

Information regarding the Group’s reporting
segments as provided to the Group’s chief operating
decision makers for the purposes of resource
allocation and assessment of segment performance
for the years ended 31 March 2019 and 2018 is set
out below.
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Year ended 31 March 2019 #HZE_-ZF—NF=A=+—HIFFZE

5. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (continued) 5 oEER (&)
(a) Segment results, assets and liabilities () PHEE BEERARE (&)
(continued)
Supply chain
management services Money lending Ocean fishing
business business business Consolidated
HESEBREEY REES BEREER &e
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018

HKS000  HKS000 — HKS00  HKSO00 — HKS000  HKS0O0 — HKS000  HKS000
ZE-AF ZE-N\F ZB-AF ZZ-)\F ZB-AF ZZ-\F ZB-AF ZT-\fF
BETT BETT BETT  BETT  BETT  EETr BETT BEFT

Segment revenue ABWE
Sale of goods to external customers MNP HEER 905,142 1,252,294 - - 53,811 25993 958,953  1,78287
Service fees from external customers ASND % P YRR 5 & R - 361 1,642 16,296 - - 1,642 16,657
905,142 1,252,655 1,642 16,296 53,811 25,993 960,595 1,294,944
Segment results FHER 58,411 39,556 (962) 14,059 29,175 9,658 86,624 63,273
Unallocated income KARBA 5,181 34,681
Unallocated expenses FAERT (45229)  (33,430)
Profit before taxation BB AR 46,576 64,524
Income tax expenses FEHEY - (5,41)
Profit for the year ERER 46,576 59,283
I
Assets and liabilities BERERE
Segment assets DEEE 927,313 544,613 4,161 116,977 549,638 409,852 1,481,112 1,071,442
Unallocated assets, including RORAE B8R
interests in associates NGl 211,939 228,407
Consolidated total assets RAKEER 1,693,051 1,299,849
I
Segment liabilities AHEE 150,783 183,441 7 21 136,250 102,538 287,040 286,200
Unallocated liabilties FPEAR 113,884 74,531
Consolidated total liabilities GREELER 400,924 360,731
I
Other segment information HitpHER
Amortisation of intangible assets EVEERH 1 12 - - - - 1 12
Amortisation of other assets Hip SESH - - - - - - 121 121
Depreciation & 1,471 82 - - 3,027 798 5,529 1916
Impairment loss of loan interest receivables fEMK &7 8 2 HEFE - - 2,162 598 - - 2,162 598
Additions to non-current assets REFRYEE 36 4,984 - - 1902 335236 1947 362,850
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Year ended 31 March 2019 B Z -—F—NWF=A=+—HIFFZF

5. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (continued)
(b) Geographical information

(c)

The Group's operations are primarily derived from
external customers located in Hong Kong and the
PRC. The following table provides an analysis of
the Group’s revenue from external customers by
geographical market and information about the non-
current assets by locations of assets:

5. oEER (&)

(b) HEEFH
AEBXBKEEZRBMURESR
REMINBRS - TREYIEH
EHi5E D AREERBINERS
BV SN DT A IR B ERL B 2
DHIEREBEENER -

Revenue from external Carrying amounts of
customers non-current assets

RENDEF R E FRBEENEREE
2019 2018 2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-0F ZTN\F ZF-hEF ZTN\F
BETFT BET T BETFT BT T
Hong Kong BE 141,079 390,638 25,075 27,627
PRC H 801,459 904,306 544,355 316,940
Others Hih 18,057 - 13,387 8,571
960,995 1,294,944 582,817 353,138

Information about major customers

For the year ended 31 March 2019, four customers
(2018: four customers) that individually accounted
for over 10% of total revenue of the Group are set
out below:

0 FEEFZEH
BHE-_T-hhF=A=+—H
FEFE - AOEREF (ZZT—AN
FONEERP)EAAMEAEELE
WzEHBiB10%  IREF T :

Supply chain
management
services business Consolidated
HEEEEREER RE
2019 2018 2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000
—E-nEFE ZE-)\F ZE-hF =ZT-N\E
BYEFT BT BEFT BT
Customer A BEA 469,350 324,533 469,350 324,533
Customer B XFB 157,569 132,764 157,569 132,764
Customer C BEC 139,594 421,017 139,594 421,017
Customer D ZFED 105,482 - 105,482 -
Customer E BPE - 272,280 - 272,280
871,995 1,150,594 871,995 1,150,594
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Year ended 31 March 2019 #Z - ZE— LF=A=+—HI FZ

6. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME 6. WmRHEMBA
An analysis of the Group's revenue and other income REERARFEN KRG REMBAZ
during the year is as follows : AT
2019 2018
HK$°000 HK$°000

—E—-RE —E-NF
BT T BT T

Revenue from contracts with BEEEHWA

customers
Sale of goods from: KEURTEBZEMEE

Supply chain management HEEEEREES

services business 905,142 1,252,655

Ocean fishing business BB TS 53,811 25,993
Service fees from: RKEUNTEREZRBER:

Interest income from EEERR B A

loans to customers 1,642 16,296

Revenue ION 960,595 1,294,944
Interest income B HA 438 12
Other revenue Hibur 438 12
Interest income from other loan H & FF B U A 12,960 5,400
Gain on disposal financial assets at HEFEBEREATESERZ

fair value through profit or loss TREE W - 919
Government subsidy income BT 8 BE W A 6,944 6,859
Exchange gain b 3 W am - 6,629
Gain on disposal of Pre-sale land consent H&EE LR B E 2 Wz 20,392 —
Sundry income T A 5,371 2,430
Other income H g A 45,667 22,237
Total revenue PN 1,006,700 1,317,193
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Year ended 31 March 2019 B Z -—F—NWF=A=+—HIFFZF

e ERR N

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 7. BRBADEF
Profit before taxation is stated after charging (crediting): PR ADE M TR (BT A) ToIFIEE
HR
2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$°000
—®¥-nE —T-)\F
BB F T B TFoT
Employee benefit expenses EEERBEX
(including directors’ remuneration) (BREEMS)
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind % 4% A8 R EWMHER 18,139 15,375
Contribution to defined contribution FRERKET B 2 3K
schemes 277 265
18,416 15,640
Finance costs & B A
Margin facility interest expense FREEMNEMX 200 184
Convertible bonds interest AR ESR N A - 4,773
Corporate bond interest NAEEFHE 145 -
Interest for other borrowing HMEEZHE 4,881 =
Interest for bank borrowing RITEBEZFE 188 -
5,414 4,957
Other items H1EE
Amortisation (included in B (GTATTEAL) -
administrative expenses):
— Intangible assets —BREE 1 12
— Other assets —HihEE 121 121
Auditor's remuneration % BLAH BN & 1,579 857
Cost of goods sold EEEmKAR 879,603 1,224,370
Depreciation of property, M HWEREETE
plant and equipment 5,529 1,916
Exchange loss/(gain), net PE N BB (e ) F 5 4,727 (6,629)
Impairment loss: BE B -
— Intangible assets —BEE 81 -
— Net impairment loss for —ERERFURE BB F 5
trade receivables 564 -
Written off of loan interest receivables [ Y & 5 FI| 8. Hifl 8 2,162 598
Loss/(gain) on disposal financial assets at H&EFEBIBRIEZAFENERZ
fair value through profit or loss eRMEEZEE,/ (WKEH) 16,973 (919)
Operating lease payments for premises ¥ ¥ 2 & & HEH R 4,684 3,259
Provision for deposit paid and B Tire & H A EUGRIE &
other receivables (included in other (GFAEMMELRT)
operating expenses) - 243
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Year ended 31 March 2019 #HZE_-ZF—NF=A=+—HIFFZE

8. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION 8. EEM=
The aggregate amounts of remuneration received and ARAlESE W RERMEEEN
receivable by the Company’s directors are as follows: ™~
2019
ZE-NF
Salaries,  Contribution
allowances to defined
Directors'  Discretionary  and benefits  contribution
fees bonus in kind scheme Total
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
§& 28 REMR
2ok BEEL REUAE  HEZER @t
BETT AETT BT BETR BHFR
Executive directors BiTES
Mr. Liu Rongsheng (executive Director, chairman and WRERE (RTEF IRRERAGE)
Chief Executive Officer) (appointed as executive Director and (RZE-AENALRERIHIEER
Chairman on 7 September 2016 and appointed as IRR-Z-tERATARERTA
Chief Executive Officer on 16 May 2017) BEHAE) 1,182 60 - 18 1,260
Lord Cao Yunde (Executive Director and Co-Chairman) EEEHE (MTESRYELE)
(appointed on 20 February 2017 and resigned on (RZE—tF-A-+HEZAR
31 May 2018) RZZ-N\ERA=T—HEME) 160 - - - 160
Mr. Fan Guocheng (appointed on 16 May 2017) BEFLE
(RZZ—tFRR+RBEZA) 822 60 - 18 900
Mr. Chen Liang (appointed on 20 February 2017 and Brid (RZB-—tF-_A-THEZAR
resigned on 31 May 2018) RZZ-NERAZT—AEE) 157 - - 3 160
Ms. Wei Qing (appointed as independent non-executive director ~ B+ (W=E—tF\AZ+ RARZEE
on 25 August 2017, resigned as independent non-executive BUSTESY R-F—tFTATH
director on 10 October 2017 and appointed as executive BEBUENTEERN T —tF
director on 10 October 2017) TATREZEHTES) 822 60 - 18 900
3,143 180 - 57 3,380
Non-executive Director FyrEs
Mr. Yang Yong (appointed on 10 October 2017) BELE(RZZ—tETATREZRA) 480 - - - 480
Mr. Lui Chun Pong (appointed on 2 October 2018) BERALE (RZE-\FTAZBEZE) 120 - - - 120
600 - - - 600
Independent Non-executive Directors BUkHTES
Mr. Pang Pui Hung, Paton (appointed on 16 May 2017) YR E
(RZZ—tERA+REEZE) 150 - - - 150
Ms. Li Yuen Fong, Michelle (appointed on 14 September 2016 FmF &+ (W=F-R"FNATEAR
and resigned on 4 August 2018) BZEERN=Z-\E\AWAET) 101 25 - - 126
Mr. Zhu Yifeng (appointed on 10 October 2017 and REBEE(RZT—+ETATH
resigned on 4 August 2018) BZERR-F-\F\ARARE) 50 - - - 50
Mr. Lam Man Hing (appointed on 8 August 2018) wx&LE (R=E-\ENA\BEZH) 97 - - - 97
Mr. Li Cao (appointed on 4 December 2018) FREE(RZE-NFT-ANAEZRf) 49 - - - 49
447 25 - - 472
4,190 205 - 57 4,452
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Year ended 31 March 2019 #EZ_-FE—NF=HA=+—HIFZ

8. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION (continued) 8. EEM= (&)
2018
“E-N\E
Salaries, Contribution
allowances to defined
Directors’  Discretionary ~ and benefits ~ contribution
fees bonus in kind scheme Total
HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000
A= REMHN
BEHE BERL  REDNE  HEZER @t
BB BETr BETT BB BETT
Executive directors HTES
Mr. Liu Rongsheng (executive Director, chairman and AREESE (BITES TRRERHOE)
Chief Executive Officer) (appointed as executive Director and (RZB—R"ENALAERAHTESR
Chairman on 7 September 2016 and appointed as IRR-Z-tFRATARERAA
Chief Executive Officer on 16 May 2017) BEHAR) 1,002 = = 18 1,020
Lord Cao Yunde (Executive Director and Co-Chairman) EEEHE (RTESRYELR)
(appointed on 20 February 2017 and resigned on —tF-A-ZTREZER
31 May 2018) RZB-NFEA=1-BHH) 960 2 - - 960
Mr. Gan Weiming (appointed on 14 September 2016 and HEREE (R-T-~FNAATHRREZE
resigned on 2 August 2017) RRZZ-tFN\AZBET) 203 - - - 203
Mr. Fan Guocheng (appointed on 16 May 2017) BEEE
(RZE—tFRR+~BEZA) 474 - 38 15 527
Mr. Chen Liang (appointed on 20 February 2017 and RRih (RZB—tE-_A-THEZAR
resigned on 31 May 2018) RZE-\ERA=T—REE) 942 - - 18 960
Dr. Chu Ping Hang (appointed on 7 September 2016 and FEREBLT (R-T-~FLALAREAR
resigned on 16 May 2017) RZZ—tFRATABRE) 102 - - 3 105
Ms. Wei Qing (appointed as independent non-executive director ~ BB %+ (W=F—+F\A=+RARZE
on 25 August 2017, resigned as independent non-executive BUSTEZY R-F—tFTATH
director on 10 October 2017 and appointed as executive BEBUFNTESRR-_Z—tFTA
director on 10 October 2017) TREZEHTES) 331 - 15 6 35
4,014 - 53 60 4127
Non-executive Director ¥4TES
Mr. Yang Yong (appointed on 10 October 2017) HELE (RZZ—tETATREZHE) 228 - - - 28
228 - - - 228
Independent Non-executive Directors BUkHTES
Mr. Pang Pui Hung, Paton (appointed on 16 May 2017) yinkRE
(RZB—tERATRAEEE) 131 - - - 131
Ms. Li Mei (resigned on 2 August 2017) Rt (R=Z—tFN\RZAEHE) 4 - - - 4
Ms. Li Yuen Fong, Michelle (appointed on 14 September 2016) ~ ZH &+
(RZB-—"FNATHEEZRE) 150 - - - 150
Mr. Chui Man Lung, Everett (resigned on 16 May 2017) BuEEE(R=F—tFRA T/ HE{E) 38 = = = 38
Mr. Zhu Yifeng (appointed on 10 October 2017) REBEE (R-E—tFETATREZH) 71 - - - 71
431 - - - 431
4,673 - 53 60 4,786
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8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued) 8.

There was no arrangement under which a director waived
or agreed to waive any remuneration for the years ended
31 March 2019 and 2018. In addition, no emoluments
were paid by the Group to any of the directors as an
inducement to join, or upon joining the Group or as a
compensation for loss of office for the years ended 31
March 2019 and 2018.

There were no loans, quasi-loans or other dealings in
favour of the directors of the Company that were entered
into or subsisted during the years ended 31 March 2019
and 2018.

The directors are of the opinion that no transactions,
arrangements and contracts of significance in relation
to the Company’s business to which the Company was
a party and in which a director of the Company or a
connected entity of a director had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the years ended 31 March 2019
and 2018.

9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS 9.

The five highest paid individuals during the year
included three directors (2018: three), details of whose
remuneration are set out in note 8 to the consolidated
financial statements above. Details of the remuneration of
the remaining two (2018: two) highest paid individuals,
who are not directors, are as follows:

EEME (@)
RBE-_ZT-NEFR-_T-N\F=
A=t—BLFE SEFHUEITL
MEXRERREAME 2 251t
S AREERBE_FT-AFR
“E-N\E=A=T—BLEFERE
MEEZMERBE  EREEINA
AEBINEMAREE R EE -
KAERERERIAE -

AANFREBEEZE—NLFER=_F—N
FZAZ+—HULEFERALET LK
GENEEASTAZER EER
FHMZ G o

EEZRR REAFERLBE-ZT
—NER=ZFT-N\F=ZA=t+—HLE
FENEMAERE SEFERQFIE
RN BEBARAREBLIEAR S
LHRANEBERRREEHEEF 2
BERNETHEERXEEZEKR
Mo

bl

Bk

AfuESHAL
FARURSHFALTEE =L (=F
—N\F ZEF EMeHBCH
SR X AR A TS HRR M FES o KR
N (ZF—N\F:MU)IFEFKER
BEFAL EMEFBEEIINT

2019 2018

HK$’000 HK$000

—E-nE —T)\F

BT T BT T

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind  #7& 285 R EWFIZE 1,416 1,401
Contribution to defined contribution REENEE 2 3K

schemes 36 24

1,452 1,425
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Year ended 31 March 2019 B Z -—F—NWF=A=+—HIFFZF

FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS 9. HEfUBRSEHFAL (£
(continued)
The two (2018: two) highest paid individuals’ MEL(ZE—N\F ML) &EaFALT
remuneration falls within the following band: BEFHMNFUATEER :
Number of employees
BE®E
2019 2018

—2-AE T )\F

Nil to HK$1,000,000 = Z= % #1,000,0007C 2 2
No remuneration was paid by the Group to any of the RBE_Z-NFrR_ZE-N\F=A
two (2018: two) highest paid individuals as an inducement =T+—BILEFE ANEELEREMA
to join or upon joining the Group, or as a compensation M (ZE—N\F W) &EEFALT
for loss of office for the years ended 31 March 2019 and AT EAE - (EREBIIMAREER
2018. R E AR E B8 R HER
BRI 1E -
There was no arrangement under which any of the two RBE_Z-NFrR_ZE—-\F=A
(2018: two) highest paid individuals waived or agreed =t+—BHLEFE M (ZT—N\F:
to waive any remuneration for the year ended 31 March M) &= AT ERT L MEKE
2019 and 2018. EREEOME 2L
INCOME TAX EXPENSES 10. PSRRI
The Group's profits are taxed at different rates depending REERRANRTRM X EA
on the country in which the profits arises. The key W EFAREEGENNER 2
applicable tax rates are as below: EANHTEAT:
On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council R_ZE-N\F=ZA-_+—H B
passed The Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill 2017 FEBBLE—LERBE (EET)
(the “Bill") which introduces the two-tiered profits tax (BT EROIER) ([EHER])
rates regime. The Bill was signed into law on 28 March SIAFEHRMRS - GPIERR_-F
2018 and was gazetted on the following day. Under the —NF=ZAZ+N\BEBKRRERE"
two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the first HK$2,000,000 WHEBHE - BEFEHRARS - &
of profits of the qualifying group entity will be taxed at BEREEEREE%2,000,0007T 2%
8.25%, and profits above HK$2,000,000 will be taxed F#E H2 T 8. 25% mk £ 1M 1R 48 /8 H&
at 16.5%. The profits of group entities not qualifying for 2,000,0007T 2 ) H #HHR 5t % 16.5% =k
the two-tiered profits tax rates regime will continue to be Mo PHFENERMBAFERZEE
taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%. BRI BEBEELR —T%16.5%
AR ©
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Year ended 31 March 2019 #Z - ZE— LF=A=+—HI FZ

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSES (continued)

The directors of the Company considered the amount
involved upon implementation of the two-tiered profits tax
rates regime as insignificant to the consolidated financial
statements. Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided
at the rate of 8.25% on the first HK$2,000,000 of the
estimated assessable profit of the qualifying group entity
and 16.5% on the estimated assessable profit above
HK$2,000,000 for the year ended 31 March 2019 (2018:

16.5%).

The provision for the PRC enterprise income tax is based
on the statutory tax rate of 25% on the estimated taxable
profits determined in accordance with the relevant income
tax rules and regulations of the PRC for the year ended 31

March 2019 (2018: 25%).

According to the relevant law and regulations in PRC
Enterprises Income Tax — Section 27 sub-section 1,
enterprises engaged in catching fishery business can be
exempted from PRC Enterprises Income Tax. The Ministry
of Agriculture of the PRC issued the ocean fishing license
to a subsidiary of the Company which will be renewal on

31 March 2020.

The provision for the Cambodia corporate income tax is
based on the statutory tax rate of 20% on the estimated
taxable profits determined in accordance with the relevant
income tax rules and regulations of Cambodia for the year

ended 31 March 2019 (2018: 20%).
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Year ended 31 March 2019 B Z -—F—NWF=A=+—HIFFZF

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSES (continued) 10. FRIBBIFAX (&)
The provision for the Mozambique corporate income tax is HE_Z-—NF=ZA=+—HBLLHF
based on the statutory tax rate of 32% on the estimated B ERUEREEMEHEBEE DR
taxable profits determined in accordance with the relevant fly 51 P& 2R A i A 1832 %% 7E B & 4k
income tax rules and regulations of Cambodia for the H- AATEDRBEESRE =B
year ended 31 March 2019 (2018: 32%). Tax benefit for SHRABREREE (ZE—N\F:
Mozambique Investment Law for fishing industry can enjoy 2% ) R TEBEZHBHEZ
50% reduction on corporate income tax rate. HIBEBRRUZELEMGMBE L
50% 5 % °
2019 2018
HK$°000 HK$°000

—E—-RE —E-)N\F
JBEF T BT T

Current tax BN EA B 1R
Hong Kong Profits Tax, current year RNEFZBBFER 2,324 1,023
PRC enterprise income tax BRI

— Current year —ARFE - 9,723

— Over-provision for prior year — BT FEEERE (2,724) S
Cambodia corporate income tax, REFERBREPEREN

current year 3,202 S
Mozambique corporate income tax, RERBERIREEMRGEH

current year 2,106 -
Deferred tax EIET IR (4,405) 4,405
Total income tax expenses FREBimXEHE 503 15,151
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Year ended 31 March 2019 #HZE_-ZF—NF=A=+—HIFFZE

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSES (continued) 10. FRIBHIRAX (&)
Tax expense for the year is reconciled to profit 7 £F [ B 18 BR 2 B BR B A% B ¥ AR

before taxation

2019 2018
HK$°000 HK$'000
—2-nE T N\%
BEFT  EETRT

Profit before taxation B 56 A4 7 47,079 74,434
Notional tax calculated on profit R BR AT & N LAAE B B =K

before taxation, calculated at BARRMZ

the rates applicable to profits in MEFABEZ2HRBRTIE

countries concerned 14,226 15,658
Non-deductible expenses AT HUR A IE 2 232 1,331
Non-taxable revenue FEFE R UL 2 (1,476) (2,415)
Unrecognised tax losses ) AR MR 2 T IR T 1R 3,361 2,674
Unrecognised temporary differences MARER GRERE 160 (562)
Utilisation of previously unrecognised EALARAERZ

tax losses T IE &1 (11,004) (1,475)
Over-provision for prior year AAFEHEERE (2,724) S
Tax concessions MG ER (2,272) (60)
Income tax charges P88 503 15,151
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11.

12.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Year ended 31 March 2019

DIVIDENDS

The Board do not recommend the payment of a dividend
for the Year (2018: Nil).

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share
is based on the profit attributable to equity holders of
the Company and the weighted average number of the
Company’s ordinary shares in issue during the year as
follows:

1.

12.

e ERR N

HBE-F-—AFZA=1—ALFE
3=\
EEETRBRNAFERS (=2
—\EF ) o

ZFREAEF

EREAREERANTIBERE AR
Ejﬂﬂ%?—rﬁ/\fﬁﬁﬂ%&iﬁﬂﬁ
AIE BT E @A A INRE 9 A% BhE
NS

2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-hEF —ZET-N\F
BYTFT BT T
Profit attributable to equity holders of RARIRERE ARBIL R T
the Company 43,668 57,054

Number of shares

B EAE
2019 2018
ZE-NF —T-)\F

Weighted average number of ordinary ~ FUFTESBREAAF 2
shares in issue during the year for the FABETER

purposes of basic earnings per share HNHE 39 AR 8L
Effect to dilutive potential ordinary share E# &%

L)

3,832,820,009 2,666,372,097

BB R E

— Convertible bonds — AR (E 5 31,172,000 238,338,000
Weighted average number of ordinary ~ AT ESREERF 2

shares in issue during the year for the FABBITERERD

purposes of diluted earnings per share  JN#E 9 R% & 3,863,992,009 2,904,710,097

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the
number of ordinary shares outstanding due to the effect of
all dilutive potential ordinary shares and the Group’s profit
attributable to owners of the Company.

The Company has dilutive potential ordinary shares
attributable to convertible bonds.

LU AP e T
BRIE B T0iE B AR BTSN
2 BA B AR A A
WA

AREER RS ESB BN ES

SBENEL B
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

13. % -BEEKE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR RN

Year ended 31 March 2019 #Z - ZE— LF=A=+—HI FZ

Leasehold Furniture ~ Computer
landand  Leasehold and  and office Motor  Plant and Fishing
building improvements fixtures  equipment vehicles  machinery vessels Total
HKS 000 HKS 000 HK$ 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HK$ 000 HKS 000 HK$ 000
BELHR  BEWE Bk
BT 8 GARZE HOERE AE  BEREE b1 @it
E¥Fr  BEFT BETr BEFn BEFr BETL BETn BEFR
Cost B
At 31 March 2017 and 1 April 2017 RZE—t+E=ZA=1-HER
“Z-+¥MA-A - - - m 1877 - - 2249
Additions hE 21,450 - 397 17 6,350 4 - 28318
Acquisition of subsidiaries WERBAR 1544 = 3 9 = 3,148 25927 30,681
Exchange realignment EiEE - - - 4 - 12 1,467 1525
At 31 March 2018 and 1 Apri 2018 RZE-\EZA=1t-AR
“Z-/\EmA-A 22,99% - 400 544 8,227 3,764 213% 62,723
Additions HE 64 = 17 67 182 1617 = 1,947
Disposal HE = 5 = ) - . . “
Reclassification ENnE 2378 - (397) - - (1,981) - -
Exchange realignment EiAE S = 18 (56) 62 (390) (1751) 17
At 31 March 2019 R=2-1¥ZR=1-8 25,436 - 38 551 8471 2410 25,643 62,549
Accumulated depreciation and RtERAE
impairment
At 31 March 2017 and 1 April 2017 RZB—+EZA=1-HER
“E-+4NA-A - - - 176 931 - - 1,107
Depreciation e 157 - 2 94 654 116 875 1916
Acquisition of subsidiaries WENREAR 162 - 2 7 - 1,145 9334 10,650
Exchange realignment EiEE - - - 20 - - 548 568
At 31 March 2018 and 1 April 2018 RZE-N\EZR=1+-BR
“5-\¥MA-A 319 = 2 297 1,585 1,261 10,757 14,241
Depreciation ik 1,057 - 5 76 1832 186 2313 5529
Reclassification EEipr] 959 - (20) - - (939) - -
Exchange realignment ERAZ - - m (19 12 (20) (715) 743
At 31 March 2019 R=Z-1F=ZR=1-8 2335 - 6 354 3429 488 12,415 19,027
Net book value REFE
At 31 March 2019 RZF-NF=R=t1-H 23,101 - 3 197 5,042 1,922 13228 43522
At 31 March 2018 RZF-NE=A=1-H 2,675 - 378 217 6,642 1903 16,637 43,482
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ERR N

Year ended 31 March 2019 B Z -—F—NWF=A=+—HIFFZF

14. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

14. BEFREE

Computer
software  Trademarks Total
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
S EG BE @t
BEFT BT EEFT
Reconciliation of carrying amount - FEEHR-8Z-2-N\%
year ended 31 March 2018 ZAZT-BLFE
At 1 April 2017 R-E—tFMA—H 5 86 91
Amortisation B (3) o) (12)
Exchange realignment AR - 10 10
At 31 March 2018 RZB-Nf=A=1-H 2 87 89
Reconciliation of carrying amount - REEHR-8Z2-2-NF
year ended 31 March 2019 ZAZt-HL¥E
At 1 April 2018 RZE—-\EMA—H 2 87 89
Amortisation i @ - @
Impairment loss AEER - (81) (81)
Exchange realignment BN AR - (6) (6)
At 31 March 2019 R=B-NE=ZA=1-H - - -
At 31 March 2018 R-B-NE=R=+-H
Cost KA 6 124 130
Accumulated amortisation and impairment losses R # 35 i (E /518 (4) (37) (41)
2 87 39
At 31 March 2019 R-B-RE=R=+-H
Cost KA 2 87 89
Accumulated amortisation and impairment losses 2T #$5 A (E/E 1B ) (87) (89)
15. CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS 15. EETE
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$°000
—E-NF —T-)N\F
Professional fishing vessels HEREMN BT T BT T
Opening book amount HYBRE B 251,125 -
Acquisition of subsidiary g N =N 95,755 112,824
Additions NE 94,646 128,463
Exchange realignment PE H FE B (19,746) 9,838
Closing book amount HRBRMEE 421,780 251,125
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR RN

Year ended 31 March 2019 #Z - ZE— LF=A=+—HI FZ

16. OTHER ASSETS

16. HMEE

2019 2018
HK$°000 HK$°000
—E-hAEFE ZZT-N\F
BT B TFoT

Net carrying amount fREFE
At beginning of the reporting period R & HA ) 786 907
Amortisation B (121) (121)
At end of the reporting period R EHR 665 786
Current portion e ENER R 121 121
Non-current portion e BN EB 1D 544 665
665 786

Other assets represent payments for the right to use the
vehicle licence plates and are amortised on a straight-line

HiEERKRERTEER ZEF
MR TIABEAER T FHEBM R E#

basis over a lease period of 10 years. B o
17. GOODWILL 17. B8
2019 2018
HK$°000 HK$°000
—E-hEF —E-N\F
BT T B TFoT
At cost less accumulated impairment IR AEE B EEE
losses

At beginning of the reporting period & B4 52,777 =
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 35) We BE BN B A B (A 2E35) 64,194 52,777
At end of the reporting period & BAR 116,971 52,777
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ERR N

Year ended 31 March 2019 B Z -—F—NWF=A=+—HIFFZF

17. 58 (&)
BREBAHNENRESREAS
EReELEN ([BeELSM]) Y
AR M T :

17. GOODWILL (continued)

Goodwill acquired through business combinations is
allocated to the Group's cash-generating units (“CGUs")
for impairment test as follows:

2019 2018
Note HK$°000 HK$°000
—E-hEF —ZET-N\F
H it BT BT
CGU REELBEN
Money lending business e S -
Supply chain management HEEETIERSES
services business - =
Ocean fishing business AR ER (i) 116,971 52,777
Cost RS 116,971 52,777
2019 2018
Note HK$°000 HK$°000
—B-AE —E)N\F
i3 B F T B TFoT
CGU HEEELEN
Money lending business WEFE S -
Supply chain management HEEEIE RS XS
services business = -
Ocean fishing business IR - -
Accumulated impairment losses R 515 B &8 - S
2019 2018
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
—E-hEF —E-)N\F
B it BT T BT T
CGU REEEEN
Money lending business WEER - -
Supply chain management HrEEE IR R EB
services business - -
Ocean fishing business SHESHEE Y (1) 116,971 52,777
Net book value REFE 116,971 52,777
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR RN

Year ended 31 March 2019 #Z - ZE— LF=A=+—HI FZ

17. GOODWILL (continued)

Impairment test for goodwill

Impairment assessment is carried out by determining the
value in use of the cash-generating unit. The value in use
is represented by the net present value of future forecast
net cash inflows of the cash generating unit which is
determined on the basis of the discounted cashflow
model.

(i) Ocean fishing business

For ocean fishing business, management calculates
value-in-use based on discounted cash flow
calculations. The discounted cash flow calculations
use cash flow projections developed based on
financial budgets approved by the management of
the Group covering a five-year period, with growth
rate of revenue of 0% to 15%. Cash flows beyond
the five-year period are extrapolated using an
estimated zero annual growth rate. The discount
rate used is pre-tax, which equals to the weighted
average costs of capital of 13.86%, is used to
determine the discount factor under the discount
rate cash flow model. A reasonably possible change
in a key assumption would not cause the recoverable
amount to fall below the carrying value of this
business unit. The results of test undertaken as at
31 March 2019 indicated no impairment charge was
necessary.
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(i) EFFEES
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BMRR S RETEAHEER
BE -BAERESREFTEERE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ERR N

Year ended 31 March 2019 B Z -—F—NWF=A=+—HIFFZF

18. INVENTORIES 18. FE
2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$000
—E-NE —E-N\F
BT T BT T
Raw Materials R# - -
Work in Progress 8 - -
Finished goods RIRK oh 530 =
530 -
19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 19. FEURBR TR &2 EL fth FE LUK

2019 2018
Note HK$'000 HK$°000
—E-hE —E—N\F
ok BT T BT T

Trade receivables from BE=AHEWERR
third parties 231,238 414,777
Less: loss allowance BB R (i) (564) =
() 230,674 414,777

Other receivables H i fE R R

Prepayments TEfT IR 674 828
Advance payment to suppliers [ 44 8 7 B RIB (iif) 739,434 137,489
Deposits e 10,959 7,452
Other receivables H th i U R 37,480 130,212
Other tax recoverable H b A Y [0 7 18 5,123 6,190
793,670 282,171
1,024,344 696,948
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR RN

Year ended 31 March 2019 & Z %

19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(continued)

()

(i)

Aging of trade receivables

Except for 360 days being granted to certain
customers under supply chain management services
business and ocean fishing business, the Group
grants credit term ranging from 30 days to 90 days
to its customers upon the delivery of products or

—NEF-_A=FSEHILFE

19.

FE W AR

0]

R E At FEULRR (48)

FE YR BR R 2 R

Br T IR IR RS TS R F
HBEK 2B TEFER360R
MEEHN AEERIHED
RIRHRB W B HHERAETHE
HF30HE0HEER - ZEE

when the services are rendered and invoices are BHIZ % 2 R URER 3R ($NBRIRLE
issued. The aging of trade receivables (net of loss BiEE) CRERWDT
allowances) based on invoice date is as follows:
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$000
—EBE-hEF = — \F
BT T BT T
Less than 90 days 90H AR 92,761 250,362
91 — 180 days 912180H 52,216 127,326
181 — 270 days 181£270H 44,616 37,089
271 — 365 days 271%£365H 4,050 -
Over 1 year —F L 37,031 =
230,674 414,777
Loss allowance for trade receivables (i) BUERFZEERE
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$°000
—E2-hE = — N\F
BT T BT T
At beginning of reporting period ¥R & B ) - -
Provision for loss allowance DRIERE L] 564 =
At end of reporting period RERERR 564 -
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20.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ERR N

Year ended 31 March 2019 B Z -—F—NWF=A=+—HIFFZF

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(continued)

(ii) Loss allowance for trade receivables
(continued)

Included in the Group's trade receivables balance
are debtors with carrying amounts of approximately
HK$164,725,000 (2018: approximately
HK$192,481,000), which were past due at the end
of the reporting period but no provision for loss
allowances has been made as there has not been a
significant change in credit quality and the directors
believe that the amounts are fully recoverable.

(iii) Advance payment to suppliers

The amounts represented payments made in advance
to suppliers for purchase of goods.

19. BWIRF R E U (&)

(i)

(iii)

FE W R 2 B B ()

AEERMEREEREHBIERT
B4 BB %164,725,000T (=
T — \F 4978 %192,481,000
TO)RERHRIE  RBERRE
BEEWEERERE REA
EREZTESANE BES
RAZFIA N 2 EHUE -

] f FE R B AY FRIR
%R IRE FLAE B T () (R e B
ZHRE

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 20. EBBEFZRAFEIEREZ2SH
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS BE
2019 2018
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
—B-hE —T—)\F
it BT T M T
Equity securities — listed in RABH-—REALT
Hong Kong 24 - 50,701

(@) The fair value of listed equity securities is based on
quoted market prices in active markets.

(b) At the end of the 31 March 2018 reporting period,
the Group has a margin facility of HK$4,000,000
from a security broker, which is secured by the
Group's financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss with carrying amount of HK$50,701,000.
The facility has been utilised HK$3,959,000 as at 31
March 2018. No margin facility is being utilised by
the Group as at 31 March 2019.

ERRARE 2 X HETIRRE
BHiGMEmELE-

RZE—N\F=ZA=+—HBE
WAL ER AEEEE—%
BHEELRETRERMELSK
4,000,00070 ' A A E B EREE
7 #50,701,000T 2 B B 1B &=
BEAFEIEzemEEER
H-ZMEER_ZE—NF=
A=+—H& R #%3,959,000
L -R-_E—hhF=H=+—H
FE-AEBWIHATATE
B& o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR RN

Year ended 31 March 2019 #Z - ZE— LF=A=+—HI FZ

21. LOANS RECEIVABLES

21. EWER

2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$000
—E-hAEFE ZZT-N\F
BT T BT T
Loans to customers BFEEX 3,746 103,500
Accrued interest receivables JrE U jE 5T B 346 13,452
4,092 116,952
Other loan Hh B 5 60,000 60,000
Accrued interest receivables JrE g 5 I B = 2,160
60,000 62,160
Loan to staff ETEX 6,395 =
Accrued interest receivables JrE U 5T B 426 -
6,821 -

Impairment allowance on individual 8 3 AE A R (B
assessment = =
70,913 179,112

Analysed as: DT A

Non-current assets EREBEE - -
Current assets mEEE 70,913 179,112
70,913 179,112

The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its
outstanding loans receivable to minimise credit risk.
Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by management.

The Group's loans receivable from customers which arise

from money lending business of providing personal loans
in Hong Kong, are denominated in Hong Kong dollars.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ERR N

Year ended 31 March 2019 B Z -—F—NWF=A=+—HIFFZF

21. LOANS RECEIVABLES (continued) 21. BRER (&)
The credit quality analysis of the loans receivable is as EWERNEEEEN MO T :
follows:
2019 2018
HK$°000 HK$°000

—®-nE —T-N\F
BEFT  BET

Neither past due nor impaired 37 #8380 B 71 R (B

— Unsecured — AR 66,821 129,879

Less than 1 month past due mHEN B —1{E A - 18,730

1 to 3 months past due BH—Z=EA - -

Over 3 months past due wHAR A =@ A 4,092 30,503
70,913 179,112

Impaired B IE - -
70,913 179,112

Note: Represents the gross amount of individually impaired loans
receivable for which impairment loss has been provided
partially or in full as at year end date.

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate
to a number of diversified customers for whom there was
no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate
to a number of individual customers that have a good
track record with the Group. Based on past experience,
the Directors are of the opinion that no provision for
impairment on these individual loans is necessary as these
loans receivable were substantially/fully settled subsequent
to the reporting period or there has not been a significant
change in credit quality that these balances are still
considered fully recoverable.

As at 31 March 2019, the Group did not hold any
collateral in respect of the loans receivable.

Hat: EREFEBERBEBEBIELED
sk 2 B i & 18 Bl R (B B W B 3R 4R
B o

P 42 380 5 7 458 (L ) R WK O BT B
W EE RN TERLNEFAR-

B8 HE I SR E A R Y RIR %
RASERRIFEFCHENEAZTS
B RIBAERLR aRZERKE
RERWEMRAED / S8 B
EELEYEEANE BZFER
H4%AR & 2 8k - ﬁ%$wﬁﬂ
R E I 55 (8 Bl & SR AE R E B

—NEFE=A=+—H 4A5E
IM%EEHFH&T RE AR 5 e
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR RN

Year ended 31 March 2019 #Z —E—WF=HA=+—HIFFZF

22. BANK BALANCES AND CASH

22. RITEBREBE

(a) Cash and cash equivalents comprises: (@ ReELRESFEMEIRE:
2019 2018
HK$°000 HK$°000
B FT BT T
Cash at bank and in hand RITRFHRIBE 14,326 19,829

Cash at bank earns interest at floating rates based on

daily bank deposit rates.

(b) Cash flow information — Reconciliation of
financing liabilities

RITRESLRE BRITFRAE
J’/( /? /%\ /ﬁ% HX ﬂ:IJ /%\ °©

(b) BREREM-BMEAGRHERX

Bank Other
borrowing - borrowings - Margin  Convertible  Corporate
secured secured facility bonds bonds Total
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS 000
BOEE-  HMfRE-
BER BER TREE  THRES AAES Ait
BT BT EEFT EEFT BEFT BEFT
Financing liabilities asat B =F—\EME—HH
1 Aprl 2018 m@é‘%% 20,000 - 3,959 50,238 - 74,197
Proceeds from other  EfbfE 52 Fi5UE
borrowings 11,628 85,000 - - 10,577 107,205
Repayment from other ~ EE MR
borrowings (2,675) (15,000) (3,959) - - (21,634)
Interest expenses fERY 188 4,882 = = 145 5215
Interest paid BRFIE (189) (4.882) 5 5 (99) (5,169)
Other changes: Hp 29
Conversion of gRTRRES
convertble bonds - - - (50,238) - (50,238)
Financing liabiltes asat ~ R=F—-NE=F=F—H
31 March 2019 MAERE 28,953 70,000 - - 10,623 109,576
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ERR N

Year ended 31 March 2019 B Z -—F—NWF=A=+—HIFFZF

23. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 23. BAERRRHAESRK
2019 2018
Note HK$°000 HK$°000
—E-NF —E-N\F
i3 BT T B FoT
Trade payables FERTRR SR (1) 56,216 160,874
Accruals fEEtEH 11,637 7,481
Contract liabilities BRERE (ii) 37,220 =
Other tax payables Hth BT IR 2,965 2,965
Due to directors JERTEEFIE 1,818 -
Other payables H A & 5K 105,232 90,956
215,088 262,276
(i) Aging of trade payables () ENRRZERER
At the end of the reporting period, the aging analysis RB|ER ERNERAH R
of the trade payables based on invoice date is as NEERZEREDTAT
follows:
2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$000

—E-hE  —TN\F
BT T BB F T

Less than 90 days 9B AR 48,951 56,914
91 — 180 days 91£180H 4,859 103,960
181 — 270 days 181£270H 681 -
271 — 365 days 2712365H 1,725 -
Over 1 year —FLAE - -
56,216 160,874
(ii) Contract liabilities (i) 6HNEE
Revenue recognised during the year ended 31 March HE-_T—hhF=-H=+—H
2019 that was included in the contract liability IEFE - REVGFAGHBES
balance at the beginning of the year amounted to nil BB BRREAT (ZE—N
(2018: nil). The Group expects to deliver the goods F ) AEBEH —FHUAA
to satisfy the remaining performance obligations of RNEMABITZESENEELZ
these contract liabilities within one year or less. HBBHEE-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR RN

Year ended 31 March 2019 #Z - ZE— LF=A=+—HI FZ

24. BORROWINGS 24. BE

2019 2018

Note HK$’000 HK$°000

—E-hAEFE ZZT-NF

Hi it EETT EET T

Loan from financial institution S RIMBER

Margin facility FERE
Bank borrowing — secured RITEE—HBEM
Other borrowing — secured HiEE - FHEH

The borrowings are repayable as follows:

20 - 3,959
28,953 20,000
70,000 =
98,953 23,959

fEENEEESBENT

2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$'000
—E-hE —E-N\FE

BETFT BETT

On demand or within 1 year BERSIER 87,325 23,959
After 1 and within 2 years 158 R2FR - -
After 2 and within 3 years 2F & K3FA 11,628 -
98,953 23,959

Portion of loan that are due for repayment —FRZEHEEERSRE

after one year but contain a repayment SRIEBBRRERE

on demand clause (shown under current  (FIARBEE)

liabilities) - S
Amount due for settlement within 12 +ZE AR EHERE B

months (shown under current liabilities) (BIARBEE) 87,325 23,959

The carrying amounts of the Group’s borrowings are
denominated in Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi.

The effective interest rate on the borrowings during the
year ended 31 March 2019 was approximately ranging
from 6.48% to 26.89% per annum (2018: 4.64%).

The Group’s bank borrowings of HK$98,953,000 were
secured by (i) personal guarantee by a director of the
Group and a related person and (ii) pledged properties
owned by a director of the Group and a property owned
by the Group with an carrying amount of HK$20,500,000.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Year ended 31 March 2019 B Z -—F—NWF=A=+—HIFFZF

e ERR N

DEFERRED INCOME 25. EFEW A
2019 2018
HK$°000 HK$°000
—E-NF —E-N\F
PRC government subsidy income Hh Bl BT i BY IR A BT BB TFoT
Opening book amount HYEREE 6,035 -
Additions NE 16,744 5,993
Acquisition in subsidiary W B BT B A &) 27,381 -
Transfer to statement of #BAZHKRE
comprehensive income (928) (333)
Exchange realignment PE W S (1,058) 375
Closing book amount HRBREE 48,174 6,035
During the year ended 2019 and 2018, the Group received AEER_ZE-NERZZT-NEFE
government subsidy from various PRC government 1S T [B] P B RO M4 ) 8 B DA 2 %
authorities in relation to support ocean fishing business. RABBES-
CONVERTIBLE BONDS 26. ARARRES

On 27 October 2017, the Group issued 13% convertible
bonds with an aggregate principal amount of
HK$100,000,000 due in 2019 with conversion price
of HK$0.24 per share (the “CB 1”). The Company
intended to use up all HK$100,000,000 for acquisition
of fishing-related business and for the Group's general
working capital. The effective interest rate of the liability
component was 9.01% per annum. The maturity date was
on the second anniversary of the date of issue of the CB
I. During the year ended 31 March 2018, the CB | with an
aggregate principal amount of HK$100,000,000 were fully
converted into shares.

On 30 November 2017, the Group issued zero coupon
convertible bonds with an aggregate principal amount
of HK$57,000,000 due in 2018 with conversion price of
HK$0.24 per share (the “CB II”). The Company issued CB
Il as part of the consideration for acquisition of Shenzhen
Qisen (note 32). The effective interest rate of the liability
component was 13.86% per annum. The maturity date
was on the first anniversary of the date of issue of the CB
ll. During the year ended 31 March 2018, the CB Il with
an aggregate principal amount of HK$57,000,000 were
remained outstanding. During the year ended 31 March
2019, the CB Il with an aggregate principal amount of
HK$57,000,000 were fully converted into shares.

R-ZE—+F+A-_++B K&
B ERETRBEK024TEITA
% 4858 /575 100,000,000 2 A =
E-NFRHZHIB3ERBRES
([T ER—]) ASEEREH
2 507 %100,000,0007T Y4 BB B2 4 &
ERNEBURBEAEEN—K
BEES BEBIZERFNERE
9.01% - Z|Hf H AR ] EH — 1T
HEZE-_BFER-HE-_ZFT—N
FZAZ+-BHLEFE ASREREAL
7 #100,000,0007C Z AT R E H —
E2HEBRARD -

R-ZZE—tF+—A=1+H £&£E
NEREFIREE0.24TBITAE
%8 57 #57,000,000c 2 R = ZE— )\
FRHzTEBS AR ES ([T
BH )  ARF) BT ES =
ERBMEBERIMAR R E (H:E32) ©
BEBHZEBRFNEE13.86% °
BB ATRRES —BHITHHZ
F—AFER-BE_ZT—N\F=A
T+t HLEFE X RBABEK
57,000,0007T 2 A] AR (&% — h R 82
B-HBHE_FT—NF=ZA=+—81
F[E A& #E% AE57,000,0007T
AR EAE AR BEE R AR

,f/'\ ®
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Year ended 31 March 2019 #Z - ZE— LF=A=+—HI FZ

26. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued) 26. AIEARER (&)
AEEDRERAIRARE SN S HER
B R IEAEAEB D 1T -

The various components of the Group's convertible bonds
recognised on initial recognition are as follows:

CBI CBII

HK$000 HK$ 000

AMRES— WUBRBREF=

BT T JE T T

Proceeds of issue, at face value BITRTSRUE  REE 141,406 139,036
Equity component = E D (41,406) (88,798)
Liability component at date of issue RBETHEBZBEHSD 100,000 50,238

The movements of the liability component of the Group’s

AEE Y RRES Y BERD B

convertible bonds are as follows: EZ N
CBI CBII
HK$'000 HK$°000
TMHRBRES— FBREHF=
VB F T BB F T
At 1 April 2017 RZZE—+FMA—H = —
Issued during the year FREETT 100,000 50,238
Interest expense MEBH 4,772 =
Interest paid EAFE (4,472) -
Conversion of convertible bonds s A MR E S (100,000) -
At 31 March 2018 R-ZEBE-N\F=ZHA=+—H - 50,238
Classified as current liabilities DEARBERE - (50,238)
Non-current liabilities ERBEE - =
At 1 April 2018 M-E—NEMA—H - 50,238
Conversion of convertible bonds ] A (& 5 - (50,238)

At 31 March 2019
Classified as current liabilities

Non-current liabilities

R-B-NF=A=+—8H
PERRBEE

FnBAaE
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Year ended 31 March 2019 B Z -—F—NWF=A=+—HIFFZF

27. CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION PAYABLES 27. BNSARE

Lianyungang

Anni
HK$000
(Note a)
BEEBZRE
BT T
(Hiita)
At 1 April 2018 R_ZE—-N\FHA—H -
Arising from acquisition of subsidiary BWERBAREEL KRATERE
at fair value 18,468
Reclassified to convertible bonds and ENoBEBRERES R
convertible bonds reserve AR ESFEE
— liabilities portion —BEHD -
— equity portion —REmE D -
Gain on change in fair value N EEZH NS (2,729)
At 31 March 2019 R-—E-hhE=HA=+—H 15,739
Analysed for reporting purposes as: MBEENITET
2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$000
—E-hEF —E-N\F
B F T BT T
Current liabilities MEAE 15,739 -
Non-current liabilities FERBEE - =
Total #Et 15,739 =
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Year ended 31 March 2019 #Z - ZE— LF=A=+—HI FZ

27. CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION PAYABLES

(continued)

Notes.

The initial considerations are HK$68,930,000 in cash upon
completion and principal amount of HK$16,209,440 of
convertible bonds in accordance with the sale and purchase
agreement for the acquisition of Lianyungang Annie Ocean

Fishing Co., Ltd..

The convertible bond (“CB IlI") with principal amount of
HK$16,209,440 was issued to the Vendors at completion date
of acquisition and were pledged by the Vendors to the Group
as a security for the performance of the Profit Guarantee.
The consideration is revalued to a fair value of approximately
HK$18,468,000 at completion date of acquisition, of which the
CB Il will be payable upon fulfilment of the agreed Guaranteed
Profits in the Relevant Period, details of the acquisition is set out

in Note 35.

The fair value of the contingent consideration payables were
determined by the Directors with reference to the valuation at the

completion date carried out by Peak Vision.

28. CORPORATE BOND

The carrying amount of corporate bond recognised at the

end of the reporting period was calculated as follows:

27.

28.

N HANRE (&)

REBUBEEELREFBEERARZ
BEha# Rl BISRERREER
68,930,0007T }. A 5 %8 /5 75 516,209,440
TLZ AR A

N4 %8 AHEH16,209,44070 7 Al IR & 5
([T ESH= 1) RIREER B Bi%4T 7
B BEABURRESF-ERTALEE
EBBITRFREFAIEM - RUREE /K B
B REEMHARFELE18,468,000
Lo AREF = RREBIEZETER
FmFEER BT BB EE
IBEA T FESS ©

BNRARBZATFEDHEE2RRHE
R AT Z HEEE -

RAEES
& BARRER 2 A REHFREER
B

Unsecured

corporate bond

HK$°000

EEBLAAES

BT T

At 1 April 2018 RZE—-NFEOHA—H -
Principal value of the corporate bond on RUIFTERFRARBF AR

initial recognition 11,500

Direct transaction costs BERXHKA (923)

10,577

Interest paid =EREES (99)

Effective interest expenses (Note 7) ERF SR (Mit7) 145

At 31 March 2019 RZE-NF=A=+—H 10,623
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Year ended 31 March 2019 B Z -—F—NWF=A=+—HIFFZF

28. CORPORATE BOND (continued)

e ERR N

28. REEH (&)

HK$000

JEEF T

Current liabilities mEEE 7,589
Non-current liabilities ERBEE 3,034
10,623

The Group issued two unsecured corporate bonds with
aggregate principal amount of HK$11,500,000, carrying
interest at the rate of 7% and 8% per annum payable
quarterly for a term of 2 years from the date of issue
of the bonds. The effective interest rate is 12.33% per
annum.

On initial recognition and subsequent measurements, the
Directors consider that the principal amount of corporate
bond approximate to its fair value.

For both the principal term of the 8% bonds and 7%
bonds, the Group has the right to redeem the outstanding
principal amount at agreed time before the optional
redemption date, with at least 10 clear business days
written notice (the “Redemption Right”), but for the
bondholder of the principal term of 8% bonds, they has
no right to require the Company to redeem the corporate
bond. The Redemption Right is not recognised in the
consolidated financial statements since the Directors
consider that the probability of exercise of the Redemption
Right is remote. The Directors have considered the fair
value of the Redemption Right at initial recognition is
insignificant. Accordingly, the fair value was not accounted
for in the consolidated financial statements as at 31 March
2019.

AEBBETREASBRBRBE
11,500,000 2 EE B QAR EFH - H
B7%K8% 2 EFEFBIEREFESX
- FHARESFETHHBTME-
EBRFHEE12.33% °

RN HERRERAER EFRRD
REEFZASEEREQNFERSE

AREBEENERUEREDR B YR Z&
ERE BEELTREREERZE
0 378 N [0 2 KB B 2 8% 1875 M7 %
BrzAeB([BO#E]) E8%E
HFERBERZEFTAABEERRAK
NEEEARES BEENERE
EMBHRRAER REAREERAR
TTEBELE A RN -EFERRD
R ERSERE 2 AFELTE
KRR AHEL AR -T—NF=
A=1t—BzHaMBHmERAIIEK-
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Year ended 31 March 2019 #Z - ZE— LF=A=+—HI FZ

29. SHARE CAPITAL 29. |
Note No. of shares HK$000
HiF R H BT

Authorised: EE:
At 31 March 2018 and 31 RZE-NF=ZA=+—HBK

March 2019, ordinary share —ZE—hE=A=+—-H"

of HK$0.01 each SREERY0.01THERR 20,000,000 20,000,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTRAR:
At 1 April 2017, ordinary shares R=Z—+FMA—H"

of HK$0.01 each FREEEB0.01THEBR 2,014,575,513 20,146
Shares issued upon placing A-Z—+FMOAREM

in April 2017 BATRID (i) 402,900,000 4,029
Shares issued upon placing T —tF+AREMETRN

in October 2017 (i) 483,480,000 4,835
Shares issued upon conversion RZZ— \F= BERARKES

of convertible bonds in TE:R5%)

March 2018 (i) 416,666,666 4,167
At 31 March 2018, ordinary R -TE—NF=ZA=+—H 8K

shares of HK$0.01 each EEAK0.01TH T B 3,317,622,179 33,177
Shares issued upon placing RZE-NFLAREM

in July 2018 BATRID (iv) 310,000,000 3,100
Shares issued upon placing RZZE-NFNAEEM

in August 2018 BT v) 360,000,000 3,600
Shares issued upon conversion RMZ—T—\F+= A&

of convertible bonds in AMRESMETRN

December 2018 (vi) 238,338,000 2,383
At 31 March 2019, R-B-NF=ZA=+-8>

ordinary shares of BREEE0.01TH

HK$0.01 each ZRR 4,225,960,179 42,260
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Year ended 31 March 2019 &%

29. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Note:

(i

(ii)

(iii)

In April 2017, a total of 402,900,000 ordinary shares
of HK$0.01 each were issued by way of placing to not
less than six independent investors at a price of HK$0.3
per share. The market value per share at the completion
date of the Placing was HK$0.295. The Company raised
approximately HK$120,870,000 before expenses, for
general working capital of the Group. Expenses of
approximately HK$3,173,000 arising from the placing were
recognized in the share premium account of the Company.

In October 2017, a total of 483,480,000 ordinary shares
of HK$0.01 each were issued by way of placing to not
less than six independent investors at a price of HK$0.48
per share. The market value per share at the completion
date of the Placing was HK$0.55. The Company raised
approximately HK$232,071,000 before expenses, for
general working capital of the Group. Expenses of
approximately HK$5,953,000 arising from the placing were
recognized in the share premium account of the Company.

On 29 May 2017, the Company entered into a subscription
agreement with a third party subscriber (the “Subscriber”),
in relation to the subscription of the convertible bonds in
the principal amount of HK$100,000,000 (the “Convertible
Bonds”, Note 25). The conversion price is HK$0.24 per
conversion share.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Subscriber
exercised the conversion rights of the Convertible Bonds to
convert into approximately 416,666,666 ordinary shares of
the Company of HK$0.01 each and the conversion shares
were allotted and issued to the Subscriber pursuant to the
subscription agreement. These shares rank pari passu in all
respects with the existing shares.

SENEZAEA—ALEE

MRS ()

Hiat:

(i

(ii)

(iii)

WZZET—+FWm™A A& H
402,900,000 & & & ¥0.0170 2
TERkEo@mBREREBI3TLZ
BREET IR ABBIIRES
MmET - RESTKAHSRTE
RABHE0.295T c AR RIEE KB
120,870,0007T ( R&ETFIZ) - AYEAR
KB —MEEES MEALE
#3,173,0007C 2 A AR R B AR 1D 4
BARHER -

WZZT—-—+tF+ A & H
483,480,000 & & B ¥0.01L 2
TEREBBILZERAB,048TT 2
BREET IR ABBLIRES

mET-REEETKBHERTE
BB AR AIEE N B
232,071,0007T (REtFIZ) - BIEAR
KB —MEEES MEAZLE
#5,953,0007C B2 R AR BB AR 1D 4
BARHER -

RZFE—+tFRHA=Z+IHE XA
A)E— %ﬁ*”—ﬁmuﬁﬁ}\n
_Lu?uJ\,g\%THDu @ﬁ?‘anugﬁzﬁi
7,%5%%1oo,ooo,ooo%ZT}ﬁH%fﬁ
([T ESH]  M7E25) - 8 (E
RERERRHAE0.245T

BE-_Z-N\F=ZRAR=+—HL#F
E-REATEITRRES 2 HIR
- DAEE R 5 49416,666,666 % & %
EE0.01 T i IR HER
Tﬁwuﬁﬁﬁﬂuiﬁa%&%ﬂ'%wugﬁj\
ZERMUEABERNMESTTEBE
BERISHAL
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Year ended 31 March 2019 #Z - ZE— LF=A=+—HI FZ

29. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Note: (continued)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

In July 2018, a total of 310,000,000 ordinary shares of
HK$0.01 each were issued by way of placing to three
independent investors at a price of HK$0.45 per share.
The market value per share at the completion date of the
Placing was HK$0.52. The Company raised approximately
HK$139,500,000 before expenses, for general working
capital of the Group.

In August 2018, a total of 360,000,000 ordinary shares
of HK$0.01 each were issued by way of placing to a
independent investor at a price of HK$0.45 per share.
The market value per share at the completion date of the
Placing was HK$0.5. The Company raised approximately
HK$162,000,000 before expenses, for general working
capital of the Group.

On 30 November 2017, the Company issued zero coupon
convertible bonds with an aggregate principal amount of
HK$57,000,000 (the “Convertible Bonds”, Note 26). The
conversion price is HK$0.24 per conversion share.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Subscribers
exercised the conversion rights of the Convertible Bonds to
convert into approximately 238,338,000 ordinary shares of
the Company of HK$0.01 each and the conversion shares
were allotted and issued to the Subscribers pursuant to the
subscription agreement. These shares rank pari passu in all
respects with the existing shares.

All shares issued during the year rank pari passu with the
existing shares in all respects.
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29. BRA& (&)
Hist: ()

(iv)

(vi)

WRZFTE—-—NFt+AH & H
310,000,000% & f& B #0.010 2 &
BREBBAKRSREBER045T (B
BEET=2BUREEMEIT RN
ISk B BB AR ™ (E A5 10.52
JC o AN B & 5 407 139,500,000
T (REFHALZ)  AERAEE 2 —K

BEET-

RZ=ZZFT—-—NFNA & H
360,000,0000% & J& B #0.010 2 &
BREBBAKRSRBER045T 2B
BRE T —BBUREEMET
MBS TR B B M (E BB 0.5
TG o AN A& 478 162,000,000
T (REFHALZ)  AEXAEE 2 —&%

REET-

RZZB—+t&F+—HA=+H KR
AT A $ B 58 /7B 57,000,000
T2 ERBBMRES ([AIRRE
%] MiFE26) - HIREAETRERR
B EE0.247T

HE_ZT-AEF=-ZA=+—HLEHF
E-REATEIIRRES 2 HIR
- DA 2 5 49238,338,0000% & Ik
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30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the
“Scheme™) on 18 October 2011. The purpose of the share
option scheme is to enable the directors of the Company,
at their discretion, to recognise and motivate the
contribution of the employees of the Group and to provide
incentives and help the Group in retaining its existing
employees and recruiting additional employees and to
provide them with a direct economic interest in attaining
the long-term business objectives of the Group.

Eligible participants include any employees, consultants,
suppliers or customers of the Company and its subsidiaries,
including any independent non-executive directors of the
Company. The Scheme became effective on 18 October
2011 and, unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will
remain in force for 10 years from that date.

The maximum number of unexercised share options
currently permitted to be granted under the Scheme, upon
their exercise may not be in aggregate exceed 10% of the
shares of the Company in issue at any time. The maximum
number of shares issuable to each eligible participant in
the Scheme within any 12-month period up to the date
of grant, is limited to 1% of the shares of the Company
in issue at that date of grant. Any further grant of share
options in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’
approval in a general meeting. As at 31 March 2019,
422,596,018 shares (2018: 331,762,218 shares) of the
Company, representing 10% (2018: 10%) of its issued
capital, are available for issue under the Scheme.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted
in writing within 7 days from the date of the offer, upon
payment of a nominal consideration of HK$1 per option
in total by the grantee. Any share option may be exercised
in accordance with the terms of the Scheme at any time
during a period to be notified by the board of directors
to an eligible participant but may not be exercised after
the expiry of 10 years from the date of grant of the share
option but subject to the early termination of the Scheme.

30.

B E
ARAR—F——F+A+/\B&RMA

—IRERER B ([R%AH8l)) - %Ak
BHETEE ERBARRESHES
ENBBAEBREMEZERIAR
RMEE YHAREAKRESURER
RERELHEREZRE NEFE
AREEREFHARRAARHTR

4B R -

BFERSRERRANALENBA
Al EEER  BF HERER
NEBEARBZEBLIFNTESE:-
Zi BB —E——F+AT/\BEL
Mo BRIFELEBURHZERT - B RIRKET
EHmERBSFTFRAER

BIEZTE B ATl AR H A9 18 R 1T
FHERESENFESETEER 64
®EZTHBARR RN ER RS BT
KD 210% - SZt8l 2 A BERL2H
ETEHEEREREEHRT 2@
ALIEEREA AT ERITHRRNRZ A
EREREEBARRBEBEITRMOA
1% o L HiBiBZ ERAOBARE  ©
ERBRERERS LHE-R=F
—hWEZA=1+—8 BEZ:T2 " K
A7) 2422,596,018/ M (—Z— N\
% :331,762,218f%) ((h AR E %
TRAZ10% (ZZE—N\F:10%) )
A EEfT o

AR AR RBAEZL B EFTRA
NERZMARIBREZEZD AR
REMAKESHERES A MBI
THRBARE -EERZEEAR
EXeMBAMIE AR RIEZE
RRIT R BERE BN SERK
R LE BT FEmRITE I
A&t BITE AT AR LERIBR S
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30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The exercise price of the share options is determinable
by the board of directors, but may not be less than the
highest of (i) the closing price of the Company’s shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on
the date of offer of the option, which must be a business
day, (ii) the average of the closing prices of the Company's
shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheets for the five business days immediately preceding the
date of offer of the option, (iii) the average of the closing
prices of the Company's shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the ten business
days immediately preceding the date of offer of the
option, and (iv) the nominal value of the Company’s shares

on the date of offer.

During the years ended 31 March 2019 and 2018, no
share options had been granted, exercised, cancelled or
lapsed under the Scheme. There were no share options

outstanding as at 31 March 2019 and 2018.

31. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong employees
to join the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
“MPF Scheme”). The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately in provident fund managed by independent
trustee. Under the MPF Scheme, the Group and each of
the employees make monthly contributions to the scheme
at 5% of the employees’ earnings as defined under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Legislation. Both the employer’s
and the employees’ monthly contributions are subject to a

cap of HK$1,500.

The Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC also participate in
defined contribution retirement schemes covering its PRC
employees. The schemes are administered by the relevant
government authorities which undertake to assume the
retirement benefit obligations of all existing and future

retired employees of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries.

During the year, the amount of employer’s contributions
made by the Group to the defined contribution plans was

approximately HK$277,000 (2018: HK$265,000).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

32. DEFERRED TAXATION
Deferred tax liability

The following is the deferred tax liability recognised by the
Group and movements thereon during the year:

e ERR N

Year ended 31 March 2019 #Z —ZE—hF=HA=+—HI FE

32. IRIERIE
BB EEE

AEERAFEERZELHEAR
AREESIOT -

Financial assets at
fair value through
profit or loss
HK$'000
EBRERRAFE
JIRzEeMEE
BT T

At 1 April 2018
Credit to profit or loss

At 31 March 2019

Unrecognised deferred tax assets arising from

Bé:g NFEIMA—H 4,406

(4,406)

UTNBREEE 2 RERELERAEE

2019 2018

HK$°000 HK$°000

—E-hEF —ZT-N\F

B FT B TFoT

Deductible temporary differences AR E R =5 3,022 3,249
Tax losses HIEEE 240,812 269,620
At end of the reporting period REEHR 243,834 272,869

At 31 March 2019, tax losses of HK$130,502,438 (2018:
HK$116,954,000) arising in Hong Kong have no expiry
date under current tax legislation. The tax losses of
HK$110,309,000 (2018: HK$152,666,000) arising in the
PRC can be used to set off against future taxable profits of
the respective subsidiaries for a maximum of 5 years. The
Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in respect
of these tax losses and deductible temporary differences
because it is uncertain that future taxable profits will be
available against which the Group can utilise the benefits

therefrom.

RZE-—NF=ZA=+—8 RER
TIRMBEN  KRRIRBBEEZH
TH 518 & 7B 130,502,438 (==
— J\ 4 : B #116,954,0007T ) I £ fF
o EAPR F#IF&ZW@%E;‘%M
110,309,000 (— T — \F: B
152,666,00071)Tﬁﬁﬁé%&m%ﬁﬁ%@
ARZAFZARERB G - A&
B3 K ph iz ST I8 B 18 I n] R B
EHEREERIBEE EREAE
AR AN EBEE DB B R IRERTF
mAETTIEmMER A -
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32. DEFERRED TAXATION (continued)

Unrecognised deferred tax assets arising from
(continued)

The unrecognised tax losses arising in the PRC at the
end of the reporting period which can be offset against
future taxable profits of the respective subsidiaries for a
maximum of 5 years will expire as follows:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Year ended 31 March 2019 #Z - ZE— LF=A=+—HI FZ

32. IEFERIE (&)

LT EBREEZABRELERAEE
(%)
AREERRENREPBEL 2 RHE
RIAEE R A AR E R B A w
RERKAFZEARABGEH - &7 IA
NHARE

2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$'000
—E-hEF —E-)N\F

EETT EET T

Year of expiry [E R 19

2018 B )\F
2019 —E-hnF
2020 —E-EE
2021 —E-—F
2022 —=E-=

2023 —E-=F

At 31 March 2019 and 2018, no deferred tax has been
recognised for withholding taxes that would be payable
on the unremitted earnings of the Group’s subsidiaries
established in the PRC. In the opinion of the directors, it
is probable that any undistributed profits are expected
to be retained in the PRC subsidiaries and not to be
remitted out of the PRC in the foreseeable future. The
estimated withholding tax effects on the distribution of
retained profits of these PRC subsidiaries were Nil (2018:
Nil). In addition, no deferred tax has been recognised
for withholding taxes that would be payable on the
unremitted earnings of the Group’s associates established
in the PRC as the deferred tax impact on these unremitted
earnings was insignificant.
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Year ended 31 March 2019 B Z -—F—NWF=A=+—HIFFZF

33. COMMITMENTS 33. A&iE
(a) Commitments under operating leases - the (a) REMNAE-TEBEEREME
Group as lessee A

AREBRBEERLYREMRR
ETWE-WEROTIFNE2F
(T \F 1225 ) hAH#
1TRERg -

The Group leases certain premises under operating
lease commitments. Leases for premises are
negotiated for terms of ranging from 1 to 2 years
(2018: 1 to 2 year).

REBEHR AEERET A
AN A TR 2 HIA R
REEEEONKABTEMT -

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
total future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases falling due as follows:

2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$°000
ZE-hF —T-N\F
BT BT T
Within one year R—FR 1,870 2,266
In the second to fifth years RE_FEZEEFRAFN
inclusive (BREEEMSE) 223 -
2,093 2,266
(b) Capital Commitments (b) EAREIE
2019 2018
HK$°000 HK$°000
—E-hEF —ZT-N\F
BT T BT T
— Capital expenditure contracted — B ERE k& E
for but not provided in BRI ABERRERE BT
the consolidated financial WMEPREBNELRF
statements in respect of the
acquisition of property, plant
and equipment 23,727 121,938
— Capital contribution to —-RBRARIREZHE
investment in subsidiaries 87,945 50,743

HESFBEERARAR
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34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a)

(b)

34. BEER RS

In addition to the transactions/information disclosed (a) BRZELEAMBREREMES
elsewhere in these consolidated financial statements, BBE2RS5,/ BRI FR K
during the year, the Group had the following SEEBE AL TR S:
transactions with related parties:
2019 2018
Related party Note HK$°000 HK$°000
relationship Nature of transaction —E-hEF —E-)N\F
BB 5 B R REMHE HiaF BT T BT T
Key management Salaries, allowances and
personnel benefits in kind and
(other than directors) contribution to defined
FEBEAER contribution schemes
(EEKRIN) e EMEREYHZN
FE GBI 2 K 852 798
License to use a property granted by a (b) H—XERELARRHEAY

related company

The Company was licensed a right to use an office
property at an zero consideration under a license
agreement by a related company of which an
executive director, Mr. Liu Rongsheng has significant
influence. Pursuant to the terms of the agreement,
the Company will bear the costs incurred for using
the property and both parties can terminate the
license by immediate notice.

China Ocean Fishing Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018-2019

RZ45TE

RBEEGHEENR (MITEES
RERERBEERZEN) AT
N2 R AN R R R
AHEEREER-BRAEYE-
IRIFEX a8 65K N A AHE
ERZMEMELEZER  Ma]
#) 88 77 BT LA BN RS 3B A AR IR AT
o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ERR N

Year ended 31 March 2019 B Z -—F—NWF=A=+—HIFFZF

35. BUSINESS COMBINATION
(@) For the year ended 31 March 2019 -

Acquisition of Lianyungang Anni Ocean
Fishing Co., Ltd

On 7 February 2018, Jin Yu Tang (Shenzhen) Fishery
Co., LLdCRYITEEERERRAA) ("Jin Yu
Tang”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group,
entered into a sale and purchase agreement with
two vendors (the “Vendors”), both are third parties
independent to the Company and its connected
persons, in relation to acquisition of 65% equity
interest in Lianyungang Anni Ocean Fishing Co.,
Ltd (“Lianyungang Anni”), a company incorporated
in the PRC, for a cash consideration of RMB59.28
million (equivalent to HK$68.93 million) payable
to the Vendors and by issue of the zero coupon
convertible bonds, at a conversion price of HK$0.52
per share with a total of 31,172,000 conversion
shares, in the principal amount of HK$16,209,000 by
the Company. Please refer to the Company's circular
dated 8 June 2018 for details.

35. ¥KE6f

(a)

BE-Z2-N&E=RA=+—H
LHFE-IWBEERREEFH
BERATE

R-_E—NEFEZA+B  ®Y
MEEERXEBRAF([EE
B AEBZEENBRA)
HREEAF([EF] HAEB
TYRARRIREBEALZE
=H)VEERE NRE
ARBEEBELTERFHEA
RARI([EEBFLZRE] K
BEMASZ AR Z65%MK
-ENEFZ2HeREAA
R #59,280,0007T (fHE B
68,930,0007T) ' I A AN A AR
EREFRBE052TRITTEE
B ES (& £31,172,000
BEBEKED ASBEABE
16,209,00070) & fF - ¥ 1B & &
BARARBEHA-T—N\FENA
J\B 28K e
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Year ended 31 March 2019 #Z - ZE— LF=A=+—HI FZ

35. BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued) 35. ¥56t#&)

(a) For the year ended 31 March 2019 - (@) BEZE=-F—-NF=A=+—H
Acquisition of Lianyungang Anni Ocean LHFE-WBEERRCEFH
Fishing Co., Ltd (continued) BERARE (&)

A summary of fair values of the identifiable assets REMSWKERR 22 A
and liabilities acquired at the respective date of the BAEERAGBZ A ERRLN
above acquisition were as follows: N
Fair value at
the date of
acquisition
HK$°000
RUkkE H
AN |
BT
Construction in progress fFRETITE 95,755
Other receivable Hh 8 WK 2,976
Cash and cash equivalents RekREFED 4
Other payables and accruals Hi R RETER (36,232)
Deferred income R FE WA (27,381)
Net identifiable assets acquired 2 U&7l s 5114 B FE 35,122
Goodwill arising on acquisition: W EEFTE £ R EE
Cash consideration RERE 68,555
Fair value of convertible bonds B #/TA] BREHMHAFE
issued 18,468
Plus: non-controlling interests N SRR E = 12,293
Less: fair values of identifiable & : BB RAIB A F EERN A FE
net assets acquired (35,122)
Goodwill EES 64,194
An analysis of cash and cash FERESFE R LB REFEY
equivalents in respect of the SWAT:
acquisition is as follows:
Consideration paid in cash ENRERE (68,555)
Less: Payable to vendor e E 5 A 37,535
Less: Cash and cash equivalents & : EWIBRE KRS FEY
acquired 4
Net cash outflow from acquisition W EEFTE A 5 E A 2 8 € 7 i F5E
of a subsidiary (31,016)
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Year ended 31 March 2019 B Z -—F—NWF=A=+—HIFFZF

35. BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued)
(@) For the year ended 31 March 2019 -

Acquisition of Lianyungang Anni Ocean
Fishing Co., Ltd (continued)

Included in the acquisition of Lianyungang Anni
Ocean Fishing Co., Ltd (“Lianyungang Anni”),
there was a Profit Guarantee pursuant to which the
vendor guaranteed to the Group that the profit of
Lianyungang Anni for the first financial year after
Completion once the fishing vessels have been put
into operation (“Relevant Periods”) shall not be
less than RMB20 million. If the profit is less than
the Guaranteed Profits for the Relevant Period,
the Vendors shall compensate the Group for the
difference between RMB20 million and the actual
profit.

If there is a net loss in the Relevant Period, the Group
is entitled to first request the Vendors to compensate
by way of cash, with the compensation amount
being the loss incurred by Lianyungang Anni and
RMB20 million, and no conversion of the Convertible
Bonds would take place.

The Directors are of the view that Lianyungang
Anni should be able to generate profit for the first
financial year after Completion once the fishing
vessels have been put into operation.

35. (¥BE6t (&)

(a)

BE-Z2-N&E=RA=+—H
LLEE-WBEESBZERTH
BERAT (&)

W BEALREFREBERA
RI([BEEBLE]PRIEEHR
MEEBLTEERBMIEAEE
BHTEREEBVTREE (5§
BAHIR]) 282 TERAR
#20,000,000 T [ AN S E fE &
R 2% FIIRE - w5 B BRI A0 i
FILRRERF  BEFARASE
E %8 AR #20,000,000 T 2 E
S 2 IR = HE o

MR ERBREEEEIBFE K
EEBEREEREAUNES
FAELHE HECHEAESE
BREEENEENEARE
20,000,0007t BT~ &y
B ES -

EERR —BEHBMERAE
tE EEBRERENTHREE
B8 B F R E L A o
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Year ended 31 March 2019 #Z - ZE— LF=A=+—HI FZ

35. BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued)
(b) For the year ended 31 March 2018 -

Acquisition of Shenzhen Qisen Fishery
Company Limited

On 30 November 2017, Jin Yu Tang (Shenzhen)
Fishery Co., Ltd CRIITEZTEREFR AT (“Jin
Yu Tang”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group,
entered into a sale and purchase agreement with
two vendors (the “Vendors”), both are third parties
independent to the Company and its connected
persons, in relation to acquisition of 70% equity
interest in Shenzhen Qisen Fishery Company Limited
(“Shenzhen Qisen”), a company incorporated in
the PRC, for a cash consideration of RMB10 million
(equivalent to HK$11.9 million) payable to the
Vendors and by issue of the zero coupon convertible
bonds, at a conversion price of HK$0.24 per share
with a total of 238,338,000 conversion shares, in
the principal amount of RMB50.9 million (equivalent
to HK$57.2 million) by the Company. Please refer to
the Company’s circular dated 13 November 2017 for
details.
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Year ended 31 March 2019 B Z -—F—NWF=A=+—HIFFZF

35. BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued) 35. ¥¥E6t#&)

(b) For the year ended 31 March 2018 - b) BZE=—FZ—NF=A=+—H
Acquisition of Shenzhen Qisen Fishery LFE - WERIBFRERR
Company Limited (continued) YNCIRE-P)

A summary of fair values of the identifiable assets REdSWEBR BB A
and liabilities acquired at the respective date of the BREERBBEZAFEMIL
above acquisition were as follows: ™
Fair value at
the date of
acquisition
HK$'000
RUkkE A
ZAYHE
BT
Property, plant and equipment  #% B M & 14,936
Construction in progress FEITE 112,824
Inventory FE 3,292
Trade receivables JiE L BR X 29,775
Other receivables, prepayments  H b fE U FRIA - BN &%
and deposits bk 96,370
Cash and cash equivalents ReEkREFEED 630
Other payables and accruals Hi K RETTER (95,401)
Bank borrowings RITEE (18,823)
Net identifiable assets acquired & 4BE Al 3% Bl & E FE 143,603
Goodwill arising on acquisition: W FTE £ R EE
Cash consideration BeRE 11,904
Fair value of convertible EBITABMKRESFNATE
bonds issued 139,036
Plus: non-controlling interests S iR E = 43,081
Less: fair values of identifiable & : B BRI BRI EEFERN R FE
net assets acquired (143,603)
Goodwill S 50,418
An analysis of cash and cash BERAWEEREZHE R
equivalents in respect of ReEFBWHTMT:
the acquisition is as follows:
Consideration paid in cash BENESRE (11,904)
Less: Cash and cash equivalents & : EWRIBRE KRS EED
acquired 630
Net cash outflow from WENBARELZ
acquisition of a subsidiary Remb#5 (11,274)
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35. BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued)
(b) For the year ended 31 March 2018 -

Acquisition of Shenzhen Qisen Fishery

Company Limited (continued)

Included in the revenue and net profit for the period
are HK$26.0 million and approximately HK$9.6
million attributable to the additional business
generated by this newly acquired subsidiary for the
period between the date of acquisition and 31 March

2018.

Had this business combination been effected on
1 April 2017, the revenue of the Group would be
approximately HK$78.1 million and net profit for
the year of the Group would be approximately
HK$11.7 million. The directors of the Company
consider this pro-formas an approximate measure
of the performance of the combined group on an
annualised basis and a reference point only for

comparison in future periods.

(c¢) Other business combination

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the
Group also acquired insignificant subsidiary. The
consideration for the acquisition was HK$6.6
million, fair value of net assets acquired, non-
controlling interests and goodwill recognised were
HK$4.2 million, HK$1.1 million and HK$2.4 million,

respectively.

The revenue and the results contributed by this
acquired entity for the period since respective
acquisition dates was insignificant to the Group.
The Group’s revenue and results for the year would
not be materially different if these acquisition had

occurred on 1 April 2017.
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LEFEE-WERIBFRAERR
YNNG
HEFTENR B RARNKEREE
T N\F=A=+—BHMAH
EEZBEINER BT AR A
AR 5 Bl &7 26,000,000
JC M #97%%9,600,0007T °

Wt EBEHN_Z—tFWMA
—HEK  AEBWAGL BB
#78,100,0007T R AN B F E 4L
ﬂ#l #) /578 #11,700,0007T ° A

REEERA/UBEZEIEIES
HEBIRFEE Y EEMON
IR MERRKRBABERHS
Z2o

HiEKE6

HEzE-_ZEZ—N\F=A=+—H
IEFE ANEEREKRE—RHEIE
ERAMBRA - ZWEBHRES
75 #6,600,0007T ° FT BB F &
E EEFIMERERERRAEE
E’J WE 7RI A 78 ¥4,200,000
7T~ 76 #1,100,0007T & 8 B
2,400,0007%0

WIEE IS B & B e EE B LATR Y
AEEEMABAREEH RS
EmsTEKN WKERZZ
—tFNA—H#ET AEEF
ARBAREET TEHERE
oo



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Year ended 31 March 2019 B Z -—F—NWF=A=+—HIFFZF

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The Group has classified its financial assets in the following

e ERR N

36. RERI I ENEMTH

AEECHESREEDEANUTE

categories: Al :
Financial Financial Financial
assets at assets at assets at
amortised cost FVPL FvocCl
Note HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
BB BRRER FEMNE
Giffz BAFEINER ROYEIE
Assets BE SRMEE <EMEE 2ZoREE
At 31 March 2019 R-ZZ-h$¥=ZA=1-H izt BYTFT BETFT BEFT
Trade and other receivables U R I L At K 1,024,344 - -
Loans receivables R E 3R 70,913 = =
Financial assets at FVPL BRBERATENRZeHEE - - -
Bank balance an cash RITEBRRES 14,326 = =
Total CH 1,109,583 - =
Financial
assets at
FVPL
Loans and (held for
receivables trading)
HK$'000 HK$'000
ZRFEY R
Bk (BEEEBE)Z
Assets BE JEU SRR TREE
At 31 March 2018 R=FB-NF=A=+—H BT T BT T
Trade and other receivables JrE Ui BR 3R K2 E Ath e U 3k 696,948 =
Loans receivables JEWE R 179,112 =
Financial assets at FVPL BREBEEBEAFEINEZ
TREE - 50,701
Bank balance and cash RITHEBRNIR S 19,829 =
Total A&t 895,889 50,701
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 36. RERSENEMIA (&)

170

(continued)
The Group has classified its financial liabilities in the rEECKHEMABESERAUTE
following categories: Al
Financial
liabilities at Financial
amortised liabilities at
cost FVPL
HK$’000 HK$’000
178 £ )0 N EBER
FlIlR >z RAFEIER
Liabilities =N cRAaE Zemas
At 31 March 2019 R-E-hFE=A=+—8 BT BT T
Trade and other payables JE AT BR R % EL At FE 5 3R 215,088 =
Borrowings EE 98,953 -
Corporate Bonds NGINEES 10,623 -
Contingent consideration payables JERTHARE - 15,739
Total A&t 329,831 15,739
Financial
liabilities at Financial
amortised liabilities at
cost FVPL
HK$'000 HK$'000
PR R AFEDER
Liabilities &8& EHBE ZemEAE
At 31 March 2018 R=FB-NF=A=+—H BT T BT T
Trade and other payables R AF BR K B HL A FE A5 R 262,276 -
Borrowings BEE 23,959 =
Convertible bonds Al E 5 = 50,238
Total A&t 286,235 50,238
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Year ended 31 March 2019 B Z -—F—NWF=A=+—HIFFZF

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group's principal financial instruments comprise bank
balances and cash, and borrowings. The main purpose of
these financial instruments is to raise and maintain finance
for the Group’s operations. The Group has various other
financial instruments such as loan receivables, trade and
other receivables and payables, which arise directly from its
business activities.

The accounting policies for financial instruments have been
described in Note 36.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial
instruments are credit risk, interest rate risk and
liquidity risk. The Group does not have any written risk
management policies and guidelines. However, the board
of directors generally adopts conservative strategies on the
Group's risk management and limits the Group's exposure
to these risks to a minimum.

37. eRiEREEEERBE

AEEZFEZeMTABERITAR
EBRE WREE -ZEFeRTAZE
ZEHNERBERBRAKE 2 EE
B -AEEHEAHEWNERKEN B
AR R R L A FEE LR A B FE S R 2 Bt
TRTHE BERREBEEHED-

BT TAEZ @5 BURARNHIFE36
e

AEEERTASIBMZEERARBIE
Rk FERERERBEER-
AEEMETANRREEZEBRR
Kigal- R EFERFTHAKELZ
b B IR B AR T RERIAB AEEE
W 2 B f E &K
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default
on its contractual obligations resulting in a financial loss to
the Group. The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable
to trade receivables. The Group's exposure to credit risk
arising from cash and cash equivalents and bank deposits
is limited because the counterparties are banks for which

the Group considers to have low credit risk.

Other receivables/loan and interest receivables

For loan and interest receivables, the Group’s management
manages and analyses the credit risk for each of their new
and existing customers before standard payment terms
and conditions are offered. The management assesses the
collateral and credit quality of each customer based on
customer’s background information, financial position,
past experience and relevant factors. The Group also
reviews from time to time the financial position of the

customers.

For all other instruments including other receivables,
loan and interest receivables, the Group measures the
loss allowance equal to 12-month ECL, unless when
there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The
assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised
based on significant increases in the likelihood or risk of
a default occurring since initial recognition. The Group
have assessed and concluded that the risk of default rate
for the other instruments are steadily based on the Group
assessment of the financial health of the counterparties.

The Group do not provide guarantees which would expose

the Group to credit risk.
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e ERR N

BE T NF=HA=1—HIFE

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss experience
over the past years. These rates are adjusted to reflect
differences between economic conditions during the
period over which the historic data has been collected,
current conditions and the Group’s view of economic
conditions over the expected lives of the receivables.

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 37. sREREEBEERBER (£)
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk (continued) EERR (&)
Trade receivables EWEZ KR
The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by rEENEERRIEXERREFPY
the individual characteristics of each customer rather than BRI FBTE ZRIXEPHEEM
the industry or country in which the customers operate EMHITENTE - AL EAEER
and therefore significant concentrations of credit risk RERNEFEERRBRE BE2E
primarily arise when the Group has significant exposure ERBRE AEF NBmEHR  BKE
to individual customers. At the end of the reporting SREMEIERTER20% (ZZE—N
period, 20% (2018: 36%) and 86% (2018: 92%) of F:136%)M%86% (ZF—/)\F:92%)
the total trade and other receivables was due from the ADHIKE AREZAEPRAAE
Group's largest customer and the five largest customers e
respectively.
The Group measures loss allowances for trade receivables AEBNUKRGEREEBEEN ST
at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, which is calculated ERKRBSERENBERE ZBEIN
using a provision matrix. As the Group's historical credit BEEAGE AR AEENBERN
loss experience does not indicate significantly different FEEEBRERI RKATRE P LN
loss patterns for different customer segments, the EEEXFEREZEZE BERA
loss allowance based on past due status is not further HkENEERETSE—PESA
distinguished between the Group's different customer SENTREFR-
bases.
The following table provides information about the TREHKEATIEER_T—NF=
Group's exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade A=+t—B0EERRLKEKE 5
receivables as at 31 March 2019: BHEEBENER:
Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
% $000 $000
AHEER REAE FERE
% FT Frr
Current N e = 65,949 =
Less than 90 days past due BB M T - 74,764 -
91 - 180 days past due B A Z1808 - 48,786 -
181 - 270 days past due #1818 22708 - 4,144 =
271 - 365 days past due #2718 =3658 1.5% 30,714 461
Over 1 year past due BH—F L 1.5% 6,881 103
231,238 564

BHEEXIERBERFNERE
RiBE - B R R HEARRIE
I 2 BUR MR M B AR - B AT
VIR S A0 7R £ B 5 PR WA RR SR TR B R (R
MEBERRNEBEZEHER -
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 37. SRiEREEEERBER (£)

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk (continued)
Comparative information under HKAS 39

Prior to 1 April 2018, an impairment loss was recognised
only when there was objective evidence of impairment
(see note 3(i)) — policy applicable prior to 1 April 2018).
At 31 March 2018, no impairment was made on trade
receivables. The aging analysis of trade debtors that were
not considered to be impaired was as follows:

EEmEME (&)

RIEE B E T EREIIRHILLEEFR
E-T-N\FOA—-HZH REE
BEBEBRAFEREDRE A
RREER (2RHEN-—ERR=
F-N\FOA-BAER) R=-F
—NF=ZA=+—8" EBYRERRILE
YR HRLE © $ R AR 3 R (B /Y B U &

SFERMBRERTT -
2018
$°000
—E-N\F
Fr
Current BHA 222,296
Less than 90 days past due BEOOH LA R 109,968
91 — 180 days past due #HA91H =180H 82,513
181 =270 days past due #HI181H E270H -
271 - 365 days past due #HEA271H E365H -
Over 1 year BHA—F A -
414,777

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
related to a wide range of customers for whom there was
no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired related
to a number of independent customers that had a good
track record with the Group. Based on past experience,
management believed that no impairment allowance was
necessary in respect of these balances as there had been
no significant change in credit quality and the balances
were still considered fully recoverable.
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

37.

e ERR N

—NF=ZA=+—HIFE

TREREEREREEK (£)

Credit risk (continued) EERR (&)
Comparative information under HKAS 39 RIZEBETERIFE39H LB EHF
(continued) (&)
Movement in the loss allowance account in respect of FRNEKESERNBERESZ W
trade receivables during the year is as follows: ™~
2019 2018
HK$°000 HK$°000
—B-AE —E)N\F
BYTFT BT
Balance 1 April REA—A - -
Impairment losses recognised FAREBE®RR
during the year 564 -
Balance at 31 March W=A=+—H 564 -
Interest rate risk FI == = B
The Group's exposure to cash flow interest rate risk mainly REEAXzReRMNEXRERFER

arises from the fluctuation of the prevailing market interest
rate on the bank balances and borrowings. However, the
management considers the Group’'s exposure to such
interest rate risk is not significant as bank balances and
borrowings are all short-term in nature. No sensitivity
analysis is prepared as the fluctuation and impact is
considered immaterial.

At 31 March 2019, it was estimated that a general
increase or decrease of 100 basis points in interest rates,
with all loss other variables held constant, would increase
or decrease the Group's profit/(loss) before taxation by
HK$91,000 (2018: HK$8,000)

RITEBRREEZRITM SN X KE
FE e AT > R EIRTTRESR R BT E
RHEE EEERS AKBZA
BN ERBR AN - HRNKERFEH
o AR E DT

R-ZE—AFE=A=+—8 &7

KRR EFAS T FH100EES - £FTE
E@Tﬂ@bI%%h?“Z’%iﬂTv
AEBBRBATAF], (E518) Bi% K
A #)78 #91,0000T (Z T — )\ 4
7B #8,0007T ) ©
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk

Management of the Group aims at maintaining sufficient
level of bank balances and cash to finance the Group’s
operations and expected expansion. The Group's primary
cash requirements include payments for operating
expenses and additions or upgrades of property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets.

The undiscounted contractual maturity profile of the
Group’s financial liabilities at the end of the reporting
period, based on the earliest date on which the Group is
required to settle the financial liabilities at the end of the
reporting period is summarised below:

37.

TREREEREREEK (&)

REE S E
AEBEEEREREHIRITHE
BhARE RAKE X NEE
RIEHES AKBEZTEREFKX
BREREEFAIEABELREYE
MR KR IA R BT B EM N 23
15

RBEPR AEEZEBBEZIR
BRRANZBMERTIRIEAEER
BEMREENERABEZRTAY
B -sam

2019 2018

b S F: “Z-)\F

Total Total

contractual contractual

Total carrying undiscounted Total carrying  undiscounted
value  cashflow Ondemand value cashflow ~ On demand
HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HK$ 000 HKS 000 HK$ 000

aRAMR ANARR
FEAE ReRBE REXR  RELE RERLE  REE
A¥Tn  BRTn B¥FL BETn BETr BRI
Trade and other payables ERRFRAMENK 215,088 215,088 215,088 262,276 262,276 262,276
Borrowings g 98,953 98,953 98,953 23959 23959 23959
Corporate bonds Rafs 10,623 10,623 10,623 = = =
Convertible bonds TRRER - - - 50,238 50,238 50,238
324,664 324,664 324,664 336,473 336,473 336,473

Exposure to currency risk B Rk

The following table details the Group’s exposure at the
end of the reporting period to currency risk arising from
recognised assets or liabilities denominated in a currency
other than the functional currency of the entity to which
they relate. For presentation purposes, the amounts of the
exposure are shown in Hong Kong dollars, translated using
the closing rate at the year end date.
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e ERR N

No financial assets and financial liabilities were subject to
offsetting, enforceable master netting arrangements and
similar arrangements as at 31 March 2019 and 2018.

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 37. SRIEMEEBERBE (&)
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Exposure to currency risk (continued) BE¥ERE (&)
2019 2018
—E-NE T -N\E
United United
(Expressed in Hong Kong States States
thousand dollars) Dollars ~ Metical Renminbi Dollars Metical ~ Renminbi
ERbR 37

(LB T T5R) £ WEFERL ARY ET BRRRT  AR%
Property, plant and mE BE k&

equipment 542 4,788 13,661 723 5,489 15,307
Construction in progress ~ Ei#T72 - 5698 416,081 = - 251,125
Intangible assets BN EE - - - - - 89
Goodwil BE - 2,358 114,684 - - 5,777
Trade and other receivables & 478R 5 & H i FE Y3 35722 11,683 871,797 157,549 12 43,128
Bank balances and cash ~ H1TEHEES 882 998 4,150 12,512 173 2,258
Trade and other payables — FE{TBR 3 R E L fE TR (1,871) (593) (189,497) (105,951) (712)  (92,798)
Borrowings EE - - = = - (20,000)
Tax payable FEfT5IE (5421)  (2,107)  (1,034) - - (10,355)
Deferred income BT A = - (48,174 = = (6,035)
Exposure arising from ERABERAR

recognised assets and EE R

liabilities 29,854 22,825 1,181,668 64,833 4962 623,649
Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities KiFEeRmEENSRMAE

R-EBE-NAFER-_FE-—NF=H
TR - HEcREELRERERE
AR AT T B BT
ke
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38.

39.

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The objectives of the Group's capital management
are to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern and to provide returns for shareholders.
The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments, including payment of dividend to
shareholders, return of capital to shareholders or issue of
new shares or sale of assets to reduce debts. No changes
were made in the objectives, policies or processes during
the years ended 31 March 2019 and 2018.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

The following table presents the carrying value of financial
instruments measured at fair value at the end of the
reporting period across the three levels of the fair value
hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement.
The level into which a fair value measurement is classified
is determined with reference to the observability and
significance of inputs used in the valuation techniques as
follows:

o Level 1 valuations: fair values measured using only
Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities at the
measurement date.

e Level 2 valuations: fair values measured using Level 2
inputs i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet Level
1, and not using significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are inputs for which market
data are not available.

o Level 3 valuations: fair value measured using
significant unobservable inputs.
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ARRBREHFE BHERRRIKE
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FHEEENREREE RBEE-F
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ATEME
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ERNE1{AFEFERRERFE
ERHE 2 —EAFRORFEAES
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39. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

The following table presents the Group’s assets and
liabilities that are measured at fair value at 31 March

39.

DF{ERTE (&)
TREJNAEER-FT—AF=A
S+-ARATEHENEEREA

2019. R
Fair Value Measurement
AV EFE
Carrying
amount Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
REE E1R E2R B3R st
BETT  BETT  BETT  BETT  BETx
Assets BE
Financial Assets at BREEEATE
Fair Value through PR eREE
profit or loss - - - - -
Total assets EERE - - - - -
Liabilities BfE
Liabilities component  AJ &A% &% 2
of convertible bonds B &Z 5
(note 26) (H12226) = = = = =
Contingent ERSHARE
consideration
payable 15,739 - - 15,739 15,739
Total liabilities BEAHE 15,739 - - 15,739 15,739

RENSFBEIERARAR  2018-2019F K

179



180

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR RN

Year ended 31 March 2019 #Z - ZE— LF=A=+—HI FZ

39. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

The following table presents the Group's assets that are
measured at fair value at 31 March 2018.

39.

AVEE (&)
TREJAEER-F—N\F=A
=t+-RERAFEIBNEE-

Fair Value Measurement

AFEHE
Carrying
amount Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
FuE E1R F2R £3; Bt
BT  BEFT  BETFT  BEFT BETT
Assets gE
Financial Assets at FEREmEATE
Fair Value through PRz S MEE
profit or loss 50,701 50,701 - - 50,701
Total assets BEERE 50,701 50,701 = - 50,701
Liabilities afE
Liabilities component  AJ &A% &5 2
of convertible bonds B &5
(note26) (Kiat26) 50,238 = = 50,238 50,238
Total liabilities BERE 50,238 = = 50,238 50,238
Note: Hiat -

The fair value of liability Component Convertible bonds is valued
by an independent valuer. The liability Component Convertible
bonds are calculated by Crank-Nicolson finite-difference model
and including some unobservable impacts.

The detail on fair value measurement of the contingent
consideration payable was set out in Note 27.
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40. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Subsequent Event

On 6 May 2019, Jin Yu Tang (Cambodia) Fishery Co.,
Ltd (“Jin Yu Tang (Cambodia)”), a company established
in Cambodia with limited liability and is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Group, entered into a Joint Venture
Agreement with Mr. Theang Chhoeung to enable the
Group to conduct aquaculture business in the Cambodia
for a period of 10 years. Pursuant to the Joint Venture
Agreement, Jin Yu Tang (Cambodia) and Mr. Theang
have conditionally agreed to make a capital contribution
in the amount of US$16.0 million and US$4.0 million,
respectively, to the Joint Venture Company in consideration
for the Ordinary Shares in the share capital of the
Joint Venture Company. Upon Completion, Jin Yu Tang
(Cambodia) and Mr. Theang will own 80% and 20%
of the voting interests in the Joint Venture Company,
respectively.

40. HEHREE

H#&EE

RZE—NFRANB EITER
E(REBP)ERAA ([EEE (R
WE)]) (—ERREEKIZE
RARRAEB 22EWBRF)
HTheang Chhoeung%t A 3T & &
ek LEAREB N RIFEARK
EREEL RBETF-REBESEWH
o EEREE (RIHEE) KTheangt &
EERUHRESHMEERRIHE
16,000,0003 7t X 4,000,000 7T * LA
BREEERRIRAT 2 EBAR 5T
Rig  ERE (RIS ) kTheangst 4
1D RIHE S %R F180% K20%KI 1%
e X
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41. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 41. XD T 2B R T

THE COMPANY

Pursuant to the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong

BREFBQRRGRI 2 WERE AR

Companies Ordinance, the statement of financial position Bl 2R R R EFEEEEE T W0
of the Company and the movements in its reserves are set ™~
out below:
2019 2018
Note HKS$°000 HK$000
—E-hEF —E-NF
&1t BT T BT T
Non-current assets kRBEE
Investment in subsidiaries ~ RHTEB AT 2R E - =
Current assets REEE
Other receivables H At JE YR 15,292 907
Due from subsidiaries i =N 1,307,496 925,344
Bank balances and cash RITEBR MRS 3,023 157
1,325,811 926,408
Current liabilities RBEE
Borrowings BE 50,000 —
Corporate bonds /NGIIEES 7,589 -
Other payables H b FET X 9,128 4,843
Due to subsidiaries XN ENGIE 6,290 3,622
Convertible bonds A R (E A - 50,238
Contingent consideration B AR E
payable 15,739 -
88,746 58,703
Net current assets REBEEFE 1,237,065 867,705
Non-current liabilities kFBEE
Corporate bonds /NGIIEES 3,034 -
NET ASSETS EEFE 1,234,031 867,705
Capital and reserves PR A R 5 1
Share capital &% < 29 42,260 33,176
Reserves ] 41(a) 1,191,771 834,529
TOTAL EQUITY R 1,234,031 867,705

R-ZE-HNhENA-THARESS
HEMEETE THIATESEAKEK
RE

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of
Directors on 24 June 2019 and signed on its behalf by

Liu Rongsheng Fan Guocheng

B4t 38 B 48
Chairman Director
FE EBZE
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41. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 41. KQAF 2R REK (&)
THE COMPANY (continued)

(a) Reserves (@) fEfE
Convertible
Share  Contributed bonds  Accumulated
premium surplus  equity reserve losses Total
Note Note (1) (Note (i)
TRRES
RAEE AABH R 2 ER ff
(In HKS'000) (NE%TTREMR) Vi3 () (i)
At 31 March 2017 and at 1 April 2017 RZE-tF=A=+-AR
R-E—+EMA-H 516,585 594,707 - (804,705) 306,587
Profit for the year and total comprehensive EnEHRENENEEE
income for the year - - - 8,360 8,360
Transactions with equity holders HRESFAETZRS
Contributions and distributions EERS R
Issue of shares upon placing in April 2017 R-Z—+EMAREMETRD 29 113,668 5 = = 113,668
Issue of shares upon placing in October 2017 B=S—+ &+ AREMEARA 21283 - - - 21283
Issue of convertible bonds BUERES 290) 5 5 88,798 = 88,798
Issue of shares upon conversion of convertible ~ E =~ \F= AR
bonds in March 2018 ErmETRR 290i) 95,833 = = = 95,833
430,784 - 88,798 - 519,582
At 31 March 2018 RZE-\E=F=1-H 947,369 594,707 88,798 (796,345) 834,529
Profit for the year and total comprehensive FRENRENZENELS
income for the year - - - 14,587 14,587
Transactions with equity holders HREREAETZRS
Contributions and distributions RERS R
Issue of shares upon placing in July 2018 R-5-)\E+ AREMEARD 290 136,400 5 = = 136,400
Issue of shares upon placing in August 2018~ B=F-\F\AREMETRG 29 158,400 - - - 158,400
Issue of Shares upon Conversion of Convertible ~ H =% —/\F+= f&#
bonds in December 2018 TRRESMETRD 29) 136,653 = (88,799) = 47,85
431,453 - (88,798) - 342,655
At 31 March 2019 R-B-NE=A=1-R 1378822 594,707 - (781,758) 1,191,771
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41. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY (continued)

(a) Reserves (continued)

Note:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Share premium represents the excess of the net
proceeds or consideration from issuance of the
Company'’s shares over their par value.

Contributed surplus represents (i) the difference
between the nominal value of the aggregate
share capital of the subsidiaries acquired and the
nominal value of the Company’s shares issued as
consideration pursuant to the Group’s reorganisation
took place in 2001, (ii) the reduction of share
premium and share capital took place in November
2012 and May 2013 respectively.

Under the Companies Act of Bermuda, the
Company's contributed surplus is available
for distribution to shareholders subject to the
requirements of the Companies Act of Bermuda.

As at 31 March 2019, no reserves of the Company
were available for distribution to the equity holders
of the Company (2018: Nil) in accordance with the
requirements of the Companies Act of Bermuda.
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41. ARATF 2R REK (&)

(a)

s
g

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(%)

BN aERBETARBRNE
KGR FEXRERSD
HmE{EZ& D

BABBIEORE-_ZZ—F
EITHARE B EHEFTWREEN B
RRERA Z AEEEANRE
MEET 2 AR BRNEEZ Z
B (i)VpRIRN—E——F+—
AR =_F—=Fh A#ETHH
R 35 18 I BB A% AN

REARERRE ARANH
BABBRAI DR T IR - A
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42. B A E]
R-ZE—-NE=A=+—H ' &2QF
FEMBARIZHFENOT:

42. SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the
Company as at 31 March 2019 are as follows:

Nominal value Percentage
Place of of issued of equity
incorporation/  ordinary shares/ indirectly
registration and registered  attributable to
Name of subsidiary operation capital the Company Principal activities
gMRYL/ EBRALER AOFAMEES
WEAREHE ERRLEnY EE/ZMRER REBAL TEXR
Business Ahead Management Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100%  Provision of administration service
FREBRERAA BE BT REEERE
China Marine Life Technology Hong Kong HK$1 100% Inactive during the year
Development Limited
PEEFENHRAE AR BA BRI REEERS
Golden Thai Marine Products Group Hong Kong HK$1 100% Provision of trading of seafood,
Limited investment holding and securities
holding
R BEREERAR BA AT HEERE S REBRLFEES
Global United Investment Consultants Hong Kong HK$2 100% Provision of money
Limited lending service
BRS-REBAERAA 0 B 2T REUEERD
Mindsim Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100% Inactive during the year
& E8%510,0007T AERERH
Rich Flash Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100%  Investment holding and supply chain
management services
KRBRAT &% % 10,0007 RELZR R EEEERSE
Wisdom Glory Technology Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100% Holding of property
BRMEBERRAA BA BT SERIES
Jin Yu Tang (Shenzhen) Fishery Group The PRC  RMB50,000,000 100% Provision of supply chain
Co. Ltd * management services,
trading of seafood
AITETERREEERAA hE AR® REHEEEEREREERE
50,000,0007T

RENSFBEIERARAR  2018-2019F K

185



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR RN

Year ended 31 March 2019 #Z - ZE— LF=A=+—HI FZ

42. SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 42. IBRAT) (#&)
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the R-ZB—-HAE=ZA=+—H XQF
Company as at 31 March 2019 are as follows: FEMBARZFHBOT: (&)
(continued)
Nominal value Percentage
Place of of issued of equity
incorporation/  ordinary shares/ indirectly
registration and registered  attributable to
Name of subsidiary operation capital the Company Principal activities
HMRYL/  EROEER AARHEERG
WEARER ERRSERY EE/IREXR REBDL TEER
Shen Zhen Qianhai Yuheng Industry The PRC Not yet paid up 100% Provision of supply chain management
Chain Co., Ltd* (Note b) service, trading of seafood
AFETEERREERERAA i RASR REUHEEERREREERE
(Histh )
Shenzhen Yu Heng SCM LTD.* The PRC RMB1,000,000 100% Inactive during the year
AT FEREEERERAT HmE AR%1,000,0007 FERERHK
Shenzhen Yuheng Trade Management The PRC RMB500,000,000 100% Provision of supply chain management
Co., Ltd* (Note a) service, trading of seafood
ANFEESERERAA HE AE® RUEREERELEERES
500,000,0007T
(Hiita)
Yu Heng Shipping (Hainan) Company The PRC RMB100,000,000 100%  Provision of ships building service,
Limited* (Note ¢) however, the operation commenced
subsequent to the year end
FEHH (88H) AR E AR® REHRRERE
100,000,0007C ERERRTRRES
(Hitc)
Jin Yu Tang (Cambodia) Fishery Cambodia US$10,000,000 100%  Provision of ocean fishing, however,
Co., Ltd (Note d) the operation commenced subsequent
to the year end
EFERE (RER)ERAA RHE  10,000,000% T RtEFES
(Hiitd) ERFRENRRER
Great Truths Developments Limited British Virgin US$1 100% Motor vehicles holding
Islands
ERERBRAA RRRUES 1%7T BARE
Shenzhen Qisen Fishery Company The PRC  RMB100,000,000 70% Provision of ocean fishing in
Limited Mozambique
RIBHEEERAA i AR® REARRURNEFRS
100,000,0007T
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42. SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 42. BT (#&)
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the R-ZB—-HAE=ZA=+—H &XQF
Company as at 31 March 2019 are as follows: FEMBARZFHBOT: (&)
(continued)
Nominal value Percentage
Place of of issued of equity
incorporation/  ordinary shares/ indirectly
registration and registered  attributable to
Name of subsidiary operation capital the Company Principal activities
WAL,/  BROZER AOAMRES
WEARER ERRSERYE EE/GIREXR REBDL TEER
Shenzhen Qisen Fishery (Thailand) Thailand THB3,000,000 49% Provision of ocean fishing
Co., Ltd
ABFEFRE (FR)BRAT ZE 3,000,005 REEERES
Stonechen Commercial - Produtos Da Mozambique MT5,000,000 100% Provision of ocean fishing in
Pesca De Moma Limitada Mozambique
NERRAEESBERBERAA EEIR® 50000008 REERRURNEFHS
China Ocean Industrial Investment Hong Kong  HKD10,000,000 52% Provision of supply chain management
Holding Limited service, trading of seafood
PEEFEFRERNBRAT & %%10,000,0007T REHEREERBLEERES
Lianyungang Anni Ocean Fishing Co The PRC  RMB30,000,000 65%  Provision of ocean fishing, however,
Ltd the operation commenced subsequent
to the year end
EERRERFHBAERLA i AR® REUETFHS ERERETRRER
30,000,0007T
Jin Yu Tang Aquatic Trading Co., Ltd* The PRC RMB5,000,000 99% Inactive during the year
ANTEEEREREHBRAA B AR%5,000,0007 rERERHK
Shenzhen Yuduoduo Ocean The PRC  RMB10,000,000 99% Inactive during the year
Technology Co., Ltd
RTRS S ELMBERAT Gl AR AEERENK
10,000,0007C
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42. SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the
Company as at 31 March 2019 are as follows:

42. BT (&)
R-ZEBE—-NFE=ZA=+—H ' XQT
FEMBARIZHERBNT: (&)

(continued)
Nominal value Percentage
Place of of issued of equity
incorporation/  ordinary shares/ indirectly
registration and registered  attributable to
Name of subsidiary operation capital the Company Principal activities
HMRYL/  EROEER AARHEERG
WEARER ERRSERY EE/IREXR REBDL TEEH
Jin Yu Tang Ocean Aquaculture The PRC RMB5,000,000 99% Inactive during the year
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd*
RTEEEEFREARAA B AR5,000,0007T AERERH
Jin Yu Tang Aquaclture (Cambodia) Cambodia UsD5,000 51% Inactive during the year
Co., Ltd
EXETRE (RER)ARAA RER 5,000% 7T AEEEEH

* for identification purpose only
Notes:
(@  The registered capital is RMB500,000,000 and paid up

capital is RMB298,356,000 the remaining capital has to be
injected on or before 22 October 2065.

(b)  The registered capital is HK$100,000,000 and has to be
injected on or before 1 January 2024.

(¢)  The registered capital is RMB100,000,000 and has to be
injected on or before 31 December 2058.

(d)  The registered capital is USD10,000,000 and paid up capital
is USD3,000,000 during the year ended 31 March 2019.
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(a) FEMEARARARMES00,000,0007T K
EHRER B ARM298,356,000
TLBTERBRA_ZTNAEFT+A
—t+-HSZAEA

(b) FEMEARAEEE100,000,0007TI7 78
RZZTE_NF—A—H=ZAEA °

(0 FEMEAXRAEARE100,000,0007T
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